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 1                       P R O C E E D I N G S
 2  REPORT 1: CHAIR'S REPORT
 3                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Good morning.  I guess we
 4            can call this meeting to order.  I've got 8:30.  It
 5            looks like we'll start off with the agenda.  My name
 6            is Mike Hernandez, Deputy Commissioner; I also serve
 7            as the chairman of the Charter Authorizing Panel.  So
 8            I'll start with our Chair's Report.  I don't have
 9            much to report other than just welcome and we're
10            ready to do the business of the Charter Authorizing
11            Panel today.  So I will turn it over to Ms. Perry.
12  REPORT 2: UPDATE ON CURRENT CHARTER APPLICATION CYCLES
13                 MS. PERRY:  Good morning.  The first item --
14            second report item is the current update on the
15            charter application cycles.  I do want to let you
16            know this is the last time that I'll be standing
17            before you with this update, that the positions have
18            changed as I know you're aware here, the Panel is
19            aware.  And I'm pleased to let you know that Cindy
20            Hogue is the -- Cindy, please stand up -- the
21            Director of the Office of Educational Options and
22            she'll be presenting the agenda items at all future
23            Charter Authorizing Panel meetings and presenting
24            agenda items that originate from the Charter and Home
25            School Unit as well as the other units that she
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 1            oversees at state board meetings.  So these other
 2            units do include ERZ, Scholastic Audit, School Health
 3            Services, and Schools of Innovation.  So we're very,
 4            very happy to make -- very, very happy to make that
 5            announcement.  I'm also thrilled to announce that Sky
 6            Bledsoe, who has been -- who has served for just
 7            about a year as the Charter Program Advisor, has been
 8            named the Coordinator of the Charter and Home Schools
 9            Office, and they are currently looking for a Program
10            Advisor for the Charter -- for charter schools.  So
11            that's the changes that have happened in that office.
12                 As the update for the application cycles, there
13            were seven open enrollment charter applications that
14            were submitted by the deadline; however, KIPP Delta
15            Public Schools withdrew its application to instead
16            submit a request for licensure through the amendment
17            process, and this was for KIPP Forrest City College
18            Preparatory School.  There were -- so there remains
19            for you to do hearings on six remaining applicants
20            for open enrollment.  Since we met last, there were
21            applications that came in for the district conversion
22            schools.  Those were due in last week, on September
23            9th, and there were five that were submitted by
24            deadline and one that will not be going forward
25            because it was not submitted by the deadline.  So the
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 1            hearings for the open enrollment charter applicants
 2            and amendments: KIPP will be coming to you, there is
 3            an amendment to their licensure, as well as one other
 4            school that has submitted an amendment request, in
 5            October, and those meetings will be on October 15th
 6            and 16th.  You'll have, again, six applicant hearings
 7            for open enrollment and you'll have two amendment
 8            hearings.
 9                 Then with the district conversion applications
10            -- I mentioned five -- those hearings are slated for
11            November 19th and 20th.
12                 The renewal applications cycle is also moving
13            forward and there are three open enrollment and five
14            district conversion charters that have contracts that
15            expire on June 30, 2015.  By rule, the applicant must
16            submit the renewal application according to a
17            schedule set forth by the State Board of Education.
18            So the timeline is going to be -- just a timeline --
19            going to the State Board in October, and it will
20            indicate that you will be handling those -- is it
21            January or February, Sky?
22                 MS. BLEDSOE:  February.
23                 MS. PERRY:  The February meeting is when you'll
24            handle the renewal hearings.
25                 Housekeeping before we get to the other pieces
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 1            of the agenda, Room 201 is reserved so that panel
 2            members will have a place for a short lunch on the
 3            15th and 16th.  Here's the bad news: lunch won't be
 4            provided.  We're looking at the budget so you're kind
 5            of on your own.  Sorry.
 6                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Thank you, Ms. Perry.
 7  CONSENT AGENDA
 8                 MS. PERRY:  In the minutes would you note --
 9            it's the Consent Agenda, but would you note that I've
10            given you a revised version and the error is
11            highlighted where they'd like to make the strike-
12            through and then of course any other changes that you
13            might request.
14                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  All right.  Charter
15            Members, you have the minutes before you so I will
16            give you a chance to review those and then I'll
17            entertain a motion.
18                      (FEW MOMENTS OF SILENCE)
19                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Ms. Coffman.
20                 MS. COFFMAN:  I make a motion we approve the
21            minutes as corrected.
22                 MS. BARNES:  Second.
23                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  I've got a motion and a
24            second.  All in favor say "aye."
25                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
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 1                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Any opposed say "nay."
 2            Motion passes.
 3  A-1:  REQUEST FOR DISTRICT CONVERSION PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL
 4  AMENDMENT: CLOVERDALE AEROSPACE TECHNOLOGY CONVERSION CHARTER
 5  MIDDLE SCHOOL, LITTLE ROCK SCHOOL DISTRICT
 6                 MS. PERRY:  Okay.  And the next item up is an
 7            action item; it's a request for an amendment for the
 8            district conversion public charter school, Cloverdale
 9            Aerospace Technology Conversion Charter Middle School
10            in Little Rock School District.  This application was
11            approved by the state board from Little Rock on
12            January 19, 2010.  The charter is approved to serve
13            students in grades 6 through 8 with a maximum
14            enrollment of 705.  Representatives of the Little
15            Rock School District are appearing before the Panel
16            to request an amendment to the current charter.  Dr.
17            Daniel Whitehorn will come and speak to you about the
18            item and others with Little Rock -- Dr. Whitehorn is
19            the associate superintendent over middle schools, and
20            there are a few other Little Rock folks who may be
21            able to entertain some questions from you.  And
22            before that Ms. Clay is here from Legal to discuss
23            the process over our hearing -- conducting this
24            hearing today.
25                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Ms. Clay.
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 1                 MS. CLAY:  Good morning.  I'll go over your
 2            hearing procedures for the amendment request before
 3            you today.  All parties with the exception of
 4            attorneys need to be sworn.  The conversion charter
 5            school will then have 20 minutes to present its case
 6            for approval of its amendment request.  Any parties
 7            that are opposed to the amendment request will have
 8            20 minutes after that, and then the conversion
 9            charter school will have an additional five minutes
10            in closing.  At that point you can discuss and ask
11            any questions that you have of anyone before you and
12            then either issue a final decision today, take the
13            matter under advisement, or allow the charter school
14            to come back and get some technical assistance and
15            bring the matter back before you at another meeting.
16            Are there any questions on that?
17                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Okay.  We'll get started.
18            I want to go ahead and -- if there's anybody here
19            speaking for or against this amendment, if they'd
20            please stand to be sworn in, if you'd raise your
21            right hand.  Do you swear or affirm to tell the
22            truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?
23               (ALL SPEAKERS ANSWERED AFFIRMATIVELY)
24                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  All right.  Thank you.
25                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Good morning.  Mr. Chair, Mr.
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 1            Hernandez, and Members of the Charter Authorizing
 2            Panel, my name is Dan Whitehorn; I'm associate
 3            superintendent of Little Rock School District.  And
 4            we are requesting that the test prep period at
 5            Cloverdale Conversion -- Cloverdale Aerospace
 6            Technology Conversion Charter School -- gosh, that's
 7            a long name -- we're requesting that we eliminate
 8            that test prep period.  And really our two main
 9            arguments on this, number one, it just hasn't worked.
10            And at this point from the data we have, when we
11            looked at the latest update, when we looked at the
12            latest benchmark scores what we found is that for all
13            students at the school, you know, the literacy scores
14            have actually decreased over the past two years by
15            one percent (1%) and that the math scores have
16            decreased by eight percent (8%) at the school.  The
17            other thing is that we're not sure test prep is
18            effective as a separate course, that we think that
19            test-taking skills can be integrated into all the
20            courses at the school.  And another thing that we've
21            had for the -- and this is the third year in the
22            Little Rock School District we've had built-in math
23            and literacy classes, intervention classes that are
24            specifically designed for kids that are below
25            proficient, that scored below proficient on the math
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 1            and/or literacy tests and that's built-in within the
 2            normal school day.  And those teachers work on the
 3            students where they need extra help, the skills that
 4            need help.  They collaborate and work with the
 5            students' regular math teachers and their regular
 6            English teachers too, and by working together they
 7            can focus on those skills that the kids need
 8            remediation in and help in.  So we found that -- you
 9            know -- that that helps.
10                 The other thing is that we do -- you know -- the
11            school does have an afterschool program through a
12            21st Century grant that they obtained and that is
13            also helping those schools, the students below
14            proficient.  It is open to all students.  It is an
15            opportunity to work with those students on the basic
16            skills, enrichment, and homework help.  And -- but
17            that, you know, our thing is, you know, at this point
18            we don't see that it's working and, you know, we --
19            because it's not working we don't see the need to
20            continue it.  And that's kind of our rationale for
21            these two main arguments right here.
22                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Is there anybody else that
23            you have to speak?
24                 DR. WHITEHORN:  I don't think so.  I have -- in
25            case of questions I have some -- you know -- I have
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 1            Dennis Glasgow, he's associate superintendent for
 2            accountability for the district, and I have Wanda
 3            Ruffins, who is the principal of Cloverdale.
 4                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  To answer questions?
 5                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Yes, sir.  But not to speak.
 6                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  All right.  So you want to
 7            yield your time to --
 8                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Yes, sir.  I may have to.  I
 9            mean, I'm not going to make up something or whatever.
10                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Right.
11                 DR. WHITEHORN:  So there may be some things I
12            don't know.
13                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Okay.  Fair enough.  Thank
14            you.
15                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Okay.
16                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Is there anybody here to
17            speak against the amendment?
18                     (BRIEF MOMENT OF SILENCE)
19                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Okay.  All right.  We'll
20            entertain questions.  We can -- we'll just go around
21            the table and, Ms. Barnes, we'll start with you if
22            you want to -- have any questions you'd like to ask.
23                 MS. BARNES:  I don't have any at this time.
24                 MS. PFEFFER:  Good morning.  Thank you --
25                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Good morning.
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 1                 MS. PFEFFER:  -- for being here.
 2                 DR. WHITEHORN:  You're welcome.
 3                 MS. PFEFFER:  One of the questions that -- in
 4            just reading the amendment that -- and you do point
 5            out that, you know, obviously this is not impacting
 6            your student achievement and you talk about that test
 7            prep will be included as a normal and integral part
 8            of instruction in the various subjects.  So I guess
 9            I'm wondering what do you envision this looking like
10            if, you know, we're taking something that originally
11            was part of the charter that's designed as a way to
12            help students and now, you know, it's going to become
13            part of that?  What kind of -- what is that going to
14            look like?  What kind of training are teachers going
15            to get?
16                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Well, one thing that we have
17            been doing for a few years in the middle school is
18            we've -- you know -- there's been a strong focus on
19            accompanying PD with it, of doing math -- a focus on
20            math and literacy across the curriculum in all the
21            courses, not just the core courses but your related
22            art courses too.  And really we found another way
23            that that is successful is that they can -- that
24            teachers can teach their own curriculum while
25            integrating math and literacy skills as they
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 1            naturally occur.  When you think about it almost any
 2            course you can think of they've got some math and
 3            literacy in it.  And what we've used to help with
 4            that too, we have -- we call them instructional
 5            facilitators now.  All the middle schools have a math
 6            instructional facilitator and a literacy -- earlier,
 7            they were called academic coaches but their job
 8            duties are very similar to what they've always been.
 9            But they help coordinate that and help the teachers
10            get materials they need to do that and, you know, the
11            PD for it and that sort of thing.  But that is one
12            way that a lot of the things that these kids need
13            that are below proficient, the skills they need are
14            integrated into all courses.
15                 MS. PFEFFER:  Okay.  So have you all developed
16            then a plan with teachers to talk about, okay, this
17            is maybe how instruction is going to look a little
18            different during the regular class time?  Is there --
19            has there been a plan for those instructional
20            facilitators to be in those classes and the teachers
21            --
22                 DR. WHITEHORN:  You know, I may have to -- there
23            should be.  Let me put it that way: it really should
24            be in the ACSIP, in the school's School Improvement
25            Plan.  It should be incorporated into that.  Now Ms.
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 1            Ruffins might be able to address more specifically
 2            what you're saying since she's right there in the
 3            building, you know, what you're asking me, because --
 4            is it okay if I let her --
 5                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Ms. Ruffins, please come on
 6            up to the mike.
 7                 MS. RUFFINS:  Good morning.  Well, as Dr.
 8            Whitehorn alluded to, our intervention classes -- all
 9            of our students that are not proficient are directly
10            placed into the intervention classes and our
11            instructional facilitators work directly in
12            collaboration with our classroom teachers.  In the
13            math classes they are front-loading the specific
14            skills that the regular classroom teacher is teaching
15            and most students are front-loaded in the
16            intervention classes in math and in literacy.  We
17            found that our students' reading ability was so low
18            and there is reading instruction and the students are
19            there every single day -- and we found that, as
20            opposed to test prep, with the intervention classes.
21            Test prep, yes, it did extend the day but it was
22            general in terms of working with the students' needs
23            and in our intervention classes it's more specific,
24            catered directly to the individual needs of the
25            students.  And in our extended day program that we're
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 1            about to start we've targeted -- again, all of our
 2            students in the intervention classes for literacy and
 3            math will have access to our extended day and that's
 4            a two-hour period at the end of each day, Monday
 5            through Thursday.
 6                 MS. PFEFFER:  Okay.  Have you had the
 7            intervention classes in place?  Currently, do you
 8            have those in place and have you had them the past
 9            couple of years?
10                 MS. RUFFINS:  Yes, we have.  And they are -- I
11            mean, it's -- we started it two years ago with our
12            eight-period day for middle school classes for
13            literacy and math, and we're evolving.  I mean, every
14            year we make a little change in how the intervention
15            instruction is presented and delivered to our
16            students.  And this year our instructional
17            facilitators -- whereas in the past they've not
18            worked directly with the students; they work mainly
19            with our teachers -- they're going to be pulling
20            small groups from our intervention classes also.
21                 MS. PFEFFER:  This would be a change you all
22            would want to enact --
23                 MS. RUFFINS:  This year.
24                 MS. PFEFFER:  -- this year?
25                 MS. RUFFINS:  Yes.


Sharon Hill Court Reporting







Page 16


 1                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Mr. Decker.
 2                 MR. DECKER:  Thank you for your presentation.
 3            I'm looking at the handout that was provided, the
 4            Cloverdale Amendment Request, and I believe you
 5            recall as well that literacy scores have decreased
 6            about one percent (1%) over the past two years; math
 7            scores have decreased about eight percent (8%) over
 8            the same time period.  I'm looking at the amendment
 9            request and towards the bottom of the rationale it
10            states, "District central office curriculum
11            instruction team will provide support or resources to
12            the school's leadership to support and monitor this
13            effort."  So my question is: what are those specific
14            supports or resources that the district is planning
15            to put into place to help with these efforts,
16            particularly considering that we're talking about or
17            discussing removing that test prep period?
18                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Right.  Well, one thing that the
19            district is -- you know -- the district no longer has
20            an external provider.  But what we do have and what
21            we think may be more effective in the long-run is
22            we've assigned School Improvement Specialists to work
23            with the schools.  And I believe Dr. Cleaver, who's
24            Director of Mathematics, Secondary Mathematics in the
25            district, has been assigned to Cloverdale.  But she
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 1            is there working closely with the school's leadership
 2            team and with the school and providing support and
 3            guidance and extra help there.  But we also have
 4            other individuals in the central office positions
 5            that go into the school and assist.  We, you know,
 6            have a director of literacy; you know, we have health
 7            and science, social studies; we have ESL support and
 8            help, and Cloverdale has a fairly significant
 9            population of ESL students.  And I go to the school
10            myself, you know, quite a bit and go to the
11            leadership team meetings and work with them too.  But
12            we realize that, you know, we have to give them all
13            the extra help and all the support that they need
14            because this is an academically distressed school.
15            And what has been -- well, you know, the shotgun
16            approach doesn't work; you know, we have to be much
17            more strategic, much more systematic with everything
18            we do and target those areas where, you know, there
19            are instructional weaknesses and give the extra
20            support to those students that are below proficient
21            and don't wait till the end of the game to find out
22            how they're doing.  But to measure that, you know, on
23            a regular basis and give -- you know -- I'm getting
24            into a lot of education talk so forgive me but I get
25            carried away.  But, you know, we realize they're


Sharon Hill Court Reporting







Page 18


 1            going to need a lot of support and we're trying to
 2            give them all the support that we possibly can.
 3                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Dr. Jones.
 4                 DR. JONES:  I have a question specifically about
 5            the schedule change for the students, so it may take
 6            Ms. Ruffins to answer this question.
 7                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Yes, ma'am.
 8                 DR. JONES:  But can you tell me the difference
 9            -- I heard you say that remediation is in addition to
10            the core class.  Tell me how the schedule changes for
11            a student that is non-proficient in both math and
12            literacy -- if this were granted how is it going to
13            change for a student?
14                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Well, if they're non-proficient
15            for both math and literacy they would have to take an
16            intervention class in math and literacy.  And the
17            intervention classes meet every other day, so on one
18            day they'd have a math class and the next class
19            they'd have -- they'd still have the regular English
20            and the regular math class in addition to that.  And
21            I do believe now if you had to take intervention in
22            both math and literacy it might cut down on your
23            electives; you know, you wouldn't have as many
24            electives that you could take because of that.  Now
25            possibly one elective that you would be able to take,
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 1            for example, in the 6th grade but there are students
 2            -- typically, we've found that if they're below
 3            proficient in for example literacy, chances are
 4            they're below -- a lot of the same students are below
 5            proficient in math too.  So there are a lot of, you
 6            know, kids that have to take both intervention
 7            classes in math and literacy.
 8                 DR. JONES:  Okay.  And I hear you talking about
 9            the afterschool 21st Century program and it sounds as
10            if this will be an additional --
11                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Yes, ma'am.
12                 DR. JONES:  -- educational time for students.
13            Is transportation provided for those students?
14                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Yes, ma'am.  It definitely is.
15            Am I not correct, Ms. Ruffins?
16                 MS. RUFFINS:  That is correct.
17                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Okay.
18                 DR. JONES:  Okay.  And then the communication to
19            the parents for those students that are non-
20            proficient, do you have the number of students that
21            are going to participate?
22                 MS. RUFFINS:  We're in the process of getting
23            that information as we speak.  We targeted our non-
24            proficient students through their literacy and math
25            intervention classes and mail-outs have gone out to
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 1            them and we're waiting for our parents to respond.
 2            But our target date to get it all launched is October
 3            1, so we're well into it; we're just getting our
 4            final number.
 5                 DR. JONES:  And then one -- I have one final
 6            question.  Can you speak to your RTI program within
 7            the school?  Is that developed?  And tell us a little
 8            bit about your program?
 9                 MS. RUFFINS:  What we -- and it's our S-BIT team
10            and it's similar to that where we are --
11                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  If you would, just please
12            come to the mic.
13                 MS. RUFFINS:  Yes.  We have an S-BIT team and
14            that's a team where we look at interventions within
15            our school when students are not performing
16            academically or are experiencing behavior issues.
17            Then we've got a team within our school and we look
18            at interventions to address those specific areas for
19            those students.  But it's an ongoing process.  We
20            meet -- it's scheduled monthly but we can call a
21            meeting at any time during our collaboration and our
22            RTI team for those students.
23                 DR. JONES:  Thank you.
24                 MR. WHITEHORN:  By the way, S-BIT stands for
25            School-Based Intervention Team in case anybody is
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 1            wondering.
 2                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  All right.  Dr. Saunders.
 3                 DR. SAUNDERS:  Good morning.  To clarify, this
 4            would be in effect the request for this current
 5            school year?
 6                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Yes, sir.
 7                 DR. SAUNDERS:  When you first talked about the
 8            percent proficiency being decreased in literacy and
 9            math and concern about the effectiveness of this
10            program do you feel that those would've been greater,
11            the decreases, if this program was not in place?
12                 DR. WHITEHORN:  I can't honestly answer that.  I
13            don't know.  I mean, I really don't know, to tell you
14            the truth.  You know, maybe it helped and maybe we
15            just can't see it; maybe the decrease would've been
16            worse if we'd not had it.  I mean, that just is the
17            most honest answer I can give you -- but, you know, I
18            really don't know.
19                 DR. SAUNDERS:  Okay.  On the -- are you looking
20            at viewing, the way I understand it, possibly the 21
21            CCLC as being a replacement to this program?
22                 DR. WHITEHORN:  No, sir.  I don't think so at
23            all.  I definitely don't view it that way and I don't
24            think Ms. Ruffins does either.  We just -- having
25            been a principal for years -- I was principal for
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 1            years at Pulaski Heights Middle School and we did
 2            everything in the district, Little Rock School
 3            District.  And we -- you know -- those kids below
 4            proficient, I found over the years that you have to
 5            do everything you can to help those kids and they
 6            have to -- you have to set in those specific
 7            interventions and you have to monitor that over time.
 8            But it's not -- you know -- back when I was doing it
 9            we didn't have the built-in intervention classes but
10            you had to look at before-school tutoring, you had to
11            look at tutoring, you had to look at working with,
12            you know, the afterschool program, anything that you
13            could do to help those kids below-proficient.  We
14            think it would enhance, it would help, but we
15            certainly don't view it as a replacement for the test
16            prep period.
17                 DR. SAUNDERS:  And enrollment in the 21 CCLC,
18            that would be optional?
19                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Yes, sir.  Yes, sir.
20                 DR. SAUNDERS:  Would students be able to fulfill
21            their intervention requirements by attending the 21
22            CCLC?
23                 DR. WHITEHORN:  No, sir.  No, sir.  They still
24            have to go to intervention classes because the
25            intervention classes are tied into their academic --
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 1            their AIP's, their academic improvement plans.  And,
 2            you know, we're required by the, you know, ADE, the
 3            state, to do things and to help remediate those kids
 4            that are below proficient, everything we can, so --
 5            no, sir.  No.
 6                 DR. SAUNDERS:  All right.  That's all I have
 7            right now.
 8                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Ms. Coffman.
 9                 MS. COFFMAN:  Thank you for being here today --
10                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Thank you.
11                 MS. COFFMAN:  -- and thank you for your
12            presentation.  I'd like to first start off by
13            clarifying in my mind what I think I heard you say.
14            Currently, today, you have an eight-period day plus a
15            test prep period.  Is that correct?
16                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Yes, ma'am.  The test prep
17            period is right before school.  It's -- I mean, not
18            before school; it's at the beginning of school, and
19            then you also have the eight-period day.  Right.
20                 MS. COFFMAN:  Okay.  So how long is your test
21            prep period currently?
22                 DR. WHITEHORN:  It's 30 minutes.
23                 MS. COFFMAN:  And under the current charter
24            could that test prep period, instead of being focused
25            on -- and I'm not sure what your curriculum is for
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 1            the test prep period, but could it not be revised to
 2            be an additional intervention time?
 3                 DR. WHITEHORN:  That's a possibility.
 4                 MS. COFFMAN:  So I'm trying to wrap my mind
 5            around how a school on academic distress with less
 6            than 49.5% of your children needs less time?  Help me
 7            understand.  I understand the afterschool program,
 8            and I think that's wonderful, but that's optional.
 9            So when one of two kids needs intervention why would
10            we provide less?  Why would we not provide more?
11                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Well, and, you know, I would
12            agree with you if we had any evidence that it's
13            working.  But we really don't have any evidence that
14            it's working and it's not revealed in the test scores
15            and, you know, this is over a period of time.  If we
16            had some idea that it was working then we would -- of
17            course, we would want to continue that and support
18            that because that would be beneficial for our
19            students.  But, you know, one thing as a principal I
20            found over the years is that it is so important to
21            integrate the skills that kids need in every class.
22            You don't need to isolate necessarily periods to just
23            focus on remediation or test-taking skills so much as
24            in the test prep, because I know we tried study
25            skills, of course.  And it was not really very
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 1            effective 'cause we found out that we could do the
 2            study skills and test preparation and all that in all
 3            of our classes; you know, incorporate infusing that
 4            into the curriculum.  So I don't think that things
 5            taught in isolation like that, like test prep, so
 6            much are as effective when we know that we can do it
 7            within our normal school day in all of our classes.
 8            And the other thing is we just don't see the
 9            evidence, like I say, that it's working.
10                 MS. COFFMAN:  I would probably agree with you
11            that the isolated test prep is not the best use of
12            time, so let me ask the question differently.  For
13            the period of time that you have the students
14            currently, for that block of time, from the time they
15            arrive in the morning until the time they leave in
16            the afternoon, could you not exceed your -- the
17            length of your periods to provide more targeted
18            intervention within those content areas?
19                 DR. WHITEHORN:  That's possible.  But I think
20            that we are providing targeted intervention already.
21            I think that with the intervention classes that we
22            have in math and literacy we're focused specifically
23            on those kids that are below proficient and what
24            their deficits are in trying to remediate those
25            deficits.  That is already being done.  And I also
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 1            think that, you know, doing the math and literacy
 2            across the curriculum where we -- you know -- we talk
 3            about math skills and literacy skills in all the
 4            courses, that is being done.  And the -- you know --
 5            and I think that the afterschool program will enhance
 6            and support what we're trying to do with our students
 7            that are below proficient and help them even further.
 8            And, you know, so I don't necessarily agree that
 9            extending courses, more time, may necessarily result
10            in greater student achievement because there's too
11            many variables there.  You know, it depends on the
12            quality of the teachers, et cetera and a lot of
13            things.  And so that's the best answer I can give to
14            that.
15                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  We'll go back to Ms.
16            Barnes.
17                 MS. BARNES:  Again, thank you for being here.
18                 DR. WHITEHORN:  You're welcome.
19                 MS. BARNES:  I do have a couple of questions.
20            And since we've talked about the fact that the school
21            is a priority school, the school is also classified
22            in academic distress currently -- and Mrs. Ruffins
23            may have to address some of these.  But one of my
24            questions has to do with -- I need to clarify, first
25            of all, you said that letters were going out to the
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 1            parents currently, right now?
 2                 MS. RUFFINS:  Yes.
 3                 MS. BARNES:  Was that for academic improvement
 4            plans, consultation, afterschool program?
 5                 MS. RUFFINS:  The afterschool program.
 6                 MS. BARNES:  Okay.  So under the 21 CCLC, if
 7            parents for whatever reason do not have -- or do not
 8            feel that they can allow their children to remain,
 9            for whatever reason, those students would not have
10            access to this additional remediation that you're
11            talking about.  Is that correct?
12                 MS. RUFFINS:  That is correct.  We do have also
13            though included in our 21st Century grant a before-
14            school tutoring hour.  And our buses get there pretty
15            early and they can enroll in our before-school
16            program also, before school and after school; an hour
17            before and two hours after.
18                 MS. BARNES:  Okay.  So there's nothing written
19            into the academic improvement plans to address -- one
20            or the other would be a supplemental support to
21            academic improvement plans to provide that additional
22            support for those students who are below proficient?
23                 MS. RUFFINS:  Other than our program,
24            intervention that's built within the school day --
25                 MS. BARNES:  Okay.
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 1                 MS. RUFFINS:  -- for non-proficient students.
 2                 MS. BARNES:  Right.  Okay.  You're currently
 3            operating your program as approved.  You're asking to
 4            remove the test prep period.  This is effective, if
 5            it's granted, for this year.  What does the
 6            transition to that look like?  What is the
 7            anticipated interruption to the process of the school
 8            day?  Students are a month in.  How does that look?
 9                 MS. RUFFINS:  Not much differently in that
10            almost all -- well, probably 85% of our students are
11            bus riders and our school day normally would begin at
12            8:45 and with our test prep it's 8:30.  So it's only
13            a 15-minute difference before and 15-minutes after
14            the regular school day.  So if it does change, if at
15            all -- if at all, period, five or ten minutes
16            difference in the pickup time.
17                 MS. BARNES:  Okay.  So the pickup time, that's
18            -- if I were to set it over here -- I'm looking at in
19            your school day.  Since the students -- you've been
20            doing this for two, three years and they've grown
21            accustomed to the way the schedule is set-up; they've
22            started school with this same type of schedule,
23            anticipating what they're going to be doing.  I do
24            agree that it obviously is not having the impact, but
25            along with some of the other statements there are
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 1            other ways to look at it.  And so looking at the
 2            least amount of disruption to what has already begun
 3            and then impacting or maximizing instructional time
 4            -- I'm trying to visualize that -- is it just dealing
 5            with bus time?
 6                 MS. RUFFINS:  Pretty much.  Because we put the
 7            full 30 minutes at the beginning of the day and then
 8            at the end of the day; you know, the buses would come
 9            at 4:00 instead of 3:45.  And if we were to, you
10            know, embed the other 30 minutes into the day it
11            would afford each period about four minutes --
12                 MS. BARNES:  Okay.
13                 MS. RUFFINS:  -- each additional.
14                 MS. BARNES:  So my final question has to do with
15            what's written in your priority intervention plan,
16            your PIP.  Is this particular amendment request
17            supported through what is going on in your school
18            improvement planning process?
19                 MS. RUFFINS:  Our school -- our initial school
20            improvement plan is due today, so the outcome of this
21            meeting will determine what's written in there.
22                 MS. BARNES:  Okay.  But you do have -- you have
23            been working with --
24                 MS. RUFFINS:  Yes.
25                 MS. BARNES:  -- your data and you've looked at
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 1            attendance and how well instructors are utilizing
 2            their time and all of those pieces put together to
 3            determine that "we would like to rewrite it and pull
 4            this piece out to enhance the instruction process?"
 5            I guess what I'm really asking is how much
 6            conversation has gone on with school improvement
 7            specialists -- with the school improvement
 8            specialists from the Department, with the leadership
 9            team, to support changing this in your priority
10            intervention plan?
11                 MS. RUFFINS:  And this is my second year at
12            Cloverdale and we've made a few changes to that 30-
13            minute block since I've been there.  But there's
14            always been concern that the test prep time, the way
15            we've utilized it has been, like Dr. Whitehorn said,
16            the shotgun approach.  We looked at our overarching
17            measure of strands that we're weak in as a school,
18            but it hasn't been individualized to meet the needs
19            of the students and logistically that's kind of a
20            challenge.  So we've talked about it.  We have
21            students that arrive late and that's a concern.  You
22            know, we do spend money to pay the teachers to come
23            this time and we've got students arriving late and we
24            don't want that, you know, waste to be there.  For
25            one thing, I think with our students starting to
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 1            school a little bit later our first period should
 2            have all of our kids in it ready to go.  So that's
 3            just a thought.  We've talked about it, we've tweaked
 4            it, but -- and again, as Dr. Whitehorn said, you
 5            know, it is very difficult to determine that the
 6            extension of the day school-wide and the manner in
 7            which we've used it if it's been the most beneficial
 8            for our students.
 9                 MS. BARNES:  Thank you.
10                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Ms. Pfeffer.
11                 MS. PFEFFER:  And again we do appreciate the
12            fact that you're looking at your data and your
13            student performance and your school day and you're
14            looking at things that are and are not working.  But
15            I guess kind of going back to some of the questions
16            that Ms. Coffman was asking, how did you come to the
17            decision to shorten the day rather than to reallocate
18            that time in a different manner?  Who was part of
19            that discussion or decision-making?  How do parents
20            feel about the shortening of the school day?  And are
21            we shortening the school day more out of convenience
22            or are we shortening it -- you know -- are there not
23            other options for this extended time that would yield
24            different results?  Because, you know, you all -- and
25            just from my background I would've loved to have had
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 1            an extra 30 minutes to the school day when I was a
 2            principal.  So I guess my question would be, you
 3            know, were there other considerations and things like
 4            that?
 5                 DR. WHITEHORN:  As far as the impact on parents
 6            and the school, that sort of thing -- I may ask Ms.
 7            Ruffins later to come up but I can tell you that, you
 8            know, the bottom line for us if we saw evidence that
 9            this was working we would not be here; there is no
10            way that we would be here today.  And we haven't seen
11            that.  And, you know, it's getting back to the -- you
12            know -- they've tried things; they've tried different
13            things, my understanding, in test prep, in talking to
14            Ms. Ruffins.  They've tried different things and
15            nothing really seems to make -- is making a
16            significant change that we can determine as far as
17            the data goes.  And once again, I get back to the
18            argument that integrating these basic skills within
19            all the classes seems to work better.  And also, you
20            know, the fact that we had these intervention classes
21            in math and literacy where all these kids that need
22            help that are below proficient they get it too.  And
23            we -- you know -- we have an umbrella where we can do
24            different things to help those kids.  But, you know,
25            there was -- you know -- you know -- discussion under
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 1            the leadership team and -- the school leadership team
 2            and they did not see that, you know, we could get any
 3            data from it that it was really effective.  And I
 4            know the -- as far as the, you know, the parents and
 5            what they think, their influence or whatever, I may
 6            have to defer to Ms. Ruffins within the actual
 7            school.
 8                 MS. RUFFINS:  I would have --
 9                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Come up here.
10                 MS. RUFFINS:  Oh, sorry.  I talk so loud.  Just
11            the parents, the few parents -- we did not survey the
12            parents, but the ones that I spoke to concerning the
13            shortening of the school day, because it did not
14            impact a lot, you know, before school or after
15            school, there wasn't much opposition to it, nor was
16            there a lot of talk about what the purpose of the 30
17            minutes was either though.  It was about the
18            scheduling.
19                 MS. PFEFFER:  Okay.
20                 MS. RUFFINS:  And we talked about the extended
21            day that we would be offering our students.
22                 MS. PFEFFER:  Okay.  But I guess going back to
23            were there other considerations for what might be
24            done with the extended time, I'm not saying keep
25            doing test prep if you've recognized that isn't
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 1            working.  But were there stakeholders involved in
 2            looking at -- okay.  If we realize that this isn't
 3            working are there things we might do different within
 4            this time that we have with students?  You know,
 5            particularly, you have the intervention classes in
 6            place.  I don't know.  I mean, you know, is there
 7            evidence that those are working in the way you're
 8            doing them now?  So I guess our question is going
 9            back to is shortening the day what needs to be done
10            or are there other considerations that might -- and I
11            didn't know if you all had kind of talked through
12            those or if the stakeholders had been involved in
13            this decision or is this just something that the
14            school leadership has talked about?
15                 MS. RUFFINS:  It's not one that we discussed
16            other than with our 21st Century.  There's a three-
17            hour maximum time that we have to allow for the grant
18            usage and an hour can be used before school and two
19            hours after.  And we did discuss, you know, being
20            able to start our afterschool program 15 minutes
21            earlier.  That would allow for our kids to be home a
22            little bit sooner in the evening and we would
23            definitely target our non-proficient students.
24            That's the biggest discussion we had but not much
25            about how we would look at the 30 minutes embedded
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 1            and use it in a different way.
 2                 MS. PFEFFER:  And I do want to follow-up on a
 3            question that I had asked earlier when I was -- when
 4            you were talking about the actions.  You know, if
 5            we're not looking at -- and again going back to your
 6            application here, your amendment, that that
 7            instruction might look different during those times
 8            allowed.  And you said it should be in your ACSIP
 9            plan, so I'm assuming you have your strategies
10            outlined in your ACSIP plan.  What type of monitoring
11            will you have in place that you can be monitoring
12            success throughout the year to make sure that things
13            aren't falling off?  Because you're asking us to
14            shorten your day in a school where there's already
15            evidence of issues with student achievement, so --
16                 MR. GLASGOW:  May I answer that?
17                 MS. PFEFFER:  Okay.
18                 MR. GLASGOW:  Hello.  My name is Dennis Glasgow;
19            I'm associate superintendent for accountability.  And
20            we have -- of course, we'll be back talking to the
21            ADE board on October 14th about our plan to assist
22            the schools that are in academic distress, Cloverdale
23            being one of them, but I'll kind of let the cat out
24            of the bag on that a little bit with you all.  We
25            feel like that the main problem with Cloverdale and
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 1            with all of our schools on academic distress is
 2            ineffective instruction across the board.  So we have
 3            some actions that may sound simple but we think
 4            they'll be very effective.  We had training for our
 5            principals and our instructional facilitators and our
 6            teachers on several key areas that we think are
 7            deficits in those schools; one of them is lesson
 8            planning.  We even met with our teachers' union and
 9            got them to agree that they'll support every teacher.
10            And I know in some school districts across the state
11            I'm sure this is required but we haven't really done
12            it in our district.  Teachers are required to have
13            lesson plans.  They're required to have eight
14            components in their lesson plans.  They're then
15            trained on how to do the lesson plans.  And we found
16            that the biggest problems over the years at our
17            schools in doing our classroom walk-throughs were,
18            number one, student engagement was low; number two,
19            rigor was low; number three, rituals and routines in
20            the classroom and throughout the schools weren't in
21            place.  Now at least two of those things, student
22            engagement and rigor, has to be planned for.  You
23            can't show up in the classroom and those things just
24            happen.  So teachers are doing lesson plans.  The
25            principals are required -- and I know you remember
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 1            Smart Accountability, the state initiative, and
 2            principals then were required to do several hours of
 3            CWT's every day.  We found that CWT's -- although
 4            they have a place, we've suspended doing CWT's this
 5            year because that doesn't give direct feedback to
 6            teachers.  We know that there's an effect size of
 7            point-seven (.7) if the principal is in the classroom
 8            and giving feedback to the teacher on the
 9            instruction, what's going well and what's not going
10            well.  So all of our principals are required to
11            observe the classrooms frequently; they're required
12            to give the teachers good feedback.  So how do we
13            know that's happening?  We have an electronic tool
14            that when the principals go in the classrooms they
15            take notes electronically, they script what's
16            happening in the lesson, and then they give feedback
17            to the teacher on how the lesson went.  As soon as
18            they leave the classroom they push a button and that
19            feedback goes to the teacher.  Well, I can look at
20            the feedback all over the district, the
21            superintendent can, Dr. Whitehorn can.  We can see
22            exactly what principals are scripting; we can see
23            what principals -- what kind of feedback principals
24            are giving to the teachers.  Then our job, which we
25            have our own district 30-day plan, is that we're
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 1            providing support to the principals; at every
 2            leadership meeting we're training them on the
 3            elements in the lesson plan; we're training them on
 4            how to observe and give feedback.  As we look at the
 5            feedback that they're giving, for those principals --
 6            if we see that Ms. Ruffins is not visiting -- by the
 7            way, on the feedback form it tells the time you went
 8            in the classroom and the time that you left the
 9            classroom, so we know exactly how long the principals
10            are in the classrooms.  We can actually read what
11            they wrote; we can read the feedback that they're
12            giving the teachers.  So if Ms. Ruffins is not doing
13            her job, Dr. Whitehorn is looking at her work and
14            he's giving her feedback on it.  If we see there are
15            teachers that are not being observed and if we see
16            the feedback is not high-quality feedback that's
17            based on the lesson plan and the alignment between
18            the lesson plan and the instruction that's being
19            given then it's our job to make sure that -- to
20            support her in doing better.  It may be training.  So
21            we think the problem is what's going on in the
22            classroom during the normal time that's scheduled for
23            students to be there.  The teachers, not all of them
24            but especially in our schools on academic distress,
25            teachers aren't doing their job.  Quite frankly,
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 1            principals aren't doing their job.  And quite
 2            frankly, I'm not doing my job.  So we're going to all
 3            start doing our job and we think we have a plan in
 4            place to hold everyone accountable from the top down
 5            to the bottom and we have data that we can get.  We
 6            can configure the data that comes from those
 7            observations any way we want.  We can look at it, say
 8            -- let's say we have a teacher and we're looking at
 9            the score that you all are now producing.  And if we
10            see that a teacher is not very effective on student
11            growth, well, that teacher ought to be observed more
12            often.  So we can select that teacher to see how many
13            times that teacher was observed electronically and
14            see the feedback that the principal has been giving
15            that teacher.  So we think that we're getting to the
16            heart of the matter and that's what's actually
17            happening in the classroom during the normal time
18            that we have scheduled.  We can schedule all kinds of
19            time but unless what's going on in the classroom is
20            effective -- which at Cloverdale and our other
21            schools on academic distress obviously it hasn't been
22            effective; we admit that.  It has not been good and
23            we're responding to that.
24                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  How in your opinion would
25            keeping this time hinder the process that you've just
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 1            outlined?
 2                 MR. GLASGOW:  I don't think the time that we're
 3            talking about would have necessarily any effect on
 4            this process, other than we have a regular eight-
 5            period day at our middle schools and a teacher's
 6            contract is based on that eight-period day.  Now the
 7            extra time that they work, teachers get a per diem
 8            for that time.  So it is expensive to do that and we
 9            think there's a better way to do it at less expense.
10            If we thought extending the school day for four
11            minutes per period -- eight periods times four is 32;
12            so if four minutes was going to yield dividends based
13            upon the cost of about $340,000 that we're paying for
14            that we'd gladly do it.  But we think our other plan
15            would be less expensive and would give better
16            results.
17                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  And that was one of my
18            questions.  So the way that this extra time has
19            worked in your district is by just an hourly
20            timesheet type basis, not a contractual agreement
21            between you and the employees?
22                 MR. GLASGOW:  Well, no.  There's a contract but
23            not part of the normal contract; it's supplemental.
24                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  So the savings that we're
25            talking about here would be immediately realized?
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 1                 MR. GLASGOW:  That's correct.
 2                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Thank you.
 3                 MR. GLASGOW:  Of course, you know, we're cutting
 4            corners on the budget as you well know.
 5                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  I understand.  And this
 6            might be a question for Ms. Perry: when is this --
 7            the charter for Cloverdale up for renewal?
 8                 MS. PERRY:  This is one of the charters with a
 9            contract ending in July.
10                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  June 30 of this year?
11                 MS. PERRY:  June 30 of this year, of 2015.  Yes,
12            sir.
13                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Okay.  Thank you.  Other
14            questions?  I think we're at Mr. Decker.
15                 MR. DECKER:  No questions at this time.
16                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Dr. Jones.
17                 DR. JONES:  I do have additional questions.
18            What are the total instructional minutes that
19            Cloverdale currently has, cutting out lunchtime,
20            passing time, just instructional minutes?
21                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Three-sixty.
22                 MS. RUFFINS:  Whatever the requirements are.
23                 DR. JONES:  I didn't hear that other part.
24                 DR. WHITEHORN:  I think it's 360.  It should be
25            anyway.  Let's see --
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 1                 MS. RUFFINS:  Ours is 360, whatever the
 2            requirements are.
 3                 DR. WHITEHORN:  It is 360.  It's 360, not
 4            including the test prep.
 5                 MS. RUFFINS:  Three-sixty.
 6                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Because it's 45 minutes per
 7            period and eight periods; 45 minutes per period.
 8                 DR. JONES:  Okay.  And so the 30 minutes would
 9            be additional time --
10                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Yes.
11                 DR. JONES:  -- on top of that six hours?
12                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Yes, ma'am.
13                 DR. JONES:  If you cut that back to six hours
14            then will that be the equivalent of all the other
15            middle schools?
16                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Yes, ma'am.
17                 DR. JONES:  Okay.  So this original time was
18            written into the charter, which was an agreement when
19            we approved the charter.  How now will this charter
20            school be different from any of your other middle
21            schools?
22                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Well, I think it will be
23            different in that it's an academically distressed
24            school and that we are focusing -- you know -- we
25            have a school improvement specialist assigned to this
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 1            school and intensive support from my central office
 2            that works with the school.  It's definitely
 3            different in they need extra help, and we realize
 4            that, because of not only priority status but because
 5            the school is academically distressed.  But the
 6            schedule will be similar to the other middle schools
 7            and everything.  The thing is is that, you know, by
 8            having the school improvement specialist assigned and
 9            us working with the school, you know, we just have to
10            provide more time and support at the school to
11            monitor, support, and make sure those things are done
12            to help those students that are in need or are below
13            proficient.
14                 DR. JONES:  Are instructional specialists not
15            assigned to the other middle schools in Little Rock?
16                 DR. WHITEHORN:  The school improvement
17            specialists are assigned to the priority academically
18            distressed schools.  They have -- now all the schools
19            have instructional facilitators, one in literacy and
20            one in math.  But, you know, we had Pearson as our
21            external provider here in years past and we no longer
22            have Pearson.  We've replaced that with school
23            improvement specialists for our, you know, priority
24            schools and academically distressed.
25                 DR. JONES:  I heard Ms. Ruffins say that there
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 1            was a concern getting students to school on time that
 2            first period.  Have you attempted to move that 30-
 3            minute test prep -- and I don't like that either --
 4            but that time to another part of the day, in the
 5            middle of the day?  Has the time period been moved
 6            itself?
 7                 MS. RUFFINS:  Prior to me getting there it's my
 8            understanding at one time it was at the end of the
 9            day, so -- and then when I came it was the beginning
10            of the day.  And if I'm not -- 'cause it's been four
11            years, five years, and I think at some point it may
12            have been in the middle of the day but they moved it
13            around, trying to get the most from the period.  But
14            I think wherever it's been there's been an issue or
15            two with it.
16                 DR. JONES:  Okay.  Thank you.
17                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  I've got a question.  Dr.
18            Jones asked about being different or how it would be
19            different from other middle schools.  You do have
20            additional waivers, some of them being in reference
21            to teacher licensure and physical education and world
22            -- or, I'm sorry -- Arkansas history.  Currently are
23            those waivers being utilized, meaning that you are
24            not giving the full PE requirements or that you have
25            any teachers that are not licensed currently on
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 1            staff?
 2                 MS. RUFFINS:  We are following the PE
 3            requirements for all of our students.  We do have
 4            only one employee that's not fully licensed, but
 5            other -- and we are -- we have a focus theme,
 6            aerospace science and technology, and the one teacher
 7            that is teaching in that area is not fully licensed.
 8            But other than that, we meet all the state
 9            requirements for licensure.
10                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Dr. Saunders.
11                 DR. SAUNDERS:  Other than financial, what would
12            be the benefit of doing this?
13                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Well, I think that one benefit
14            that would result in this is, you know, they already
15            have eight periods that they're moving around and
16            this is tacked on top of that and, you know, that's a
17            disadvantage of an eight-period day.  And I've been a
18            principal when we had block scheduling and when we've
19            had an eight-period day and, you know, the eight-
20            period day results in kids being in the hallway and
21            transitioning twice as much.  So this would be yet
22            another transition for students; you know, it would
23            cut down on that.  And, you know, I -- and as I said,
24            you know, it all gets back to the idea, you know,
25            it's just not working.  I mean, if it was working,
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 1            you know, you know, we would definitely keep it, but
 2            we just don't have any evidence that it is at this
 3            point.
 4                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Ms. Coffman.
 5                 MS. COFFMAN:  A point of clarification.  Your
 6            question was, Mr. Hernandez, that the charter would
 7            be reviewed at the end of this school year.  Is that
 8            correct?
 9                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Yes.
10                 MS. COFFMAN:  No more questions.
11                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Is it your -- and this may
12            not be a question that you can answer, but do you
13            intend to ask for renewal of this application at the
14            end of this school year?
15                 MR. GLASGOW:  We don't.
16                 DR. WHITEHORN:  No, sir.  We don't.
17                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Are there any other
18            questions?  All right.  You've heard the testimony
19            given here today, so I will -- let me ask Ms. Clay to
20            come back up and give us our options again just to
21            make sure we're clear.
22                 MS. CLAY:  You have the option of issuing a
23            final decision today or taking the matter under
24            advisement.  Part of taking the matter under
25            advisement is you can send the charter school back to
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 1            get more technical assistance from Department staff
 2            if you feel like that's something that you need.
 3            Otherwise, your decision is to either approve the
 4            amendment, deny the amendment, or take the matter
 5            under advisement.
 6                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  So I will entertain a
 7            motion.
 8                 DR. JONES:  I make the motion that this
 9            amendment be denied.
10                 MS. COFFMAN:  Second that motion.
11                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  You've heard the motion to
12            deny and a second.  All in favor say "aye."
13                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
14                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Any opposed?  Motion to
15            deny carries.
16  A-2:  CONSIDERATION OF THE 2013-2014 REPORT ON THE STATUS OF
17  THE PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS PROGRAM TO THE HOUSE INTERIM
18  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND THE SENATE INTERIM COMMITTEE ON
19  EDUCATION
20                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  All right.  We'll go back
21            to our agenda here.  It looks like we have Ms. Perry.
22                 MS. PERRY:  The last item on the agenda today is
23            the Consideration of the 13-14 Report on the Status
24            of Public Charter Schools Program to the House
25            Interim Committee on Education and the Senate Interim
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 1            Committee on Education.  This is a report that we
 2            bring to you where the legislation is very brief on
 3            what the report is to include; it says simply that
 4            the authorizer is to "report on the status of the
 5            open-enrollment public charter school programs to the
 6            General Assembly each biennium and to the House
 7            Committee on Education and the Senate Committee on
 8            Education during the interim between the regular
 9            sessions of the Assembly."  The piece that was in
10            quotation marks on the description of the agenda item
11            is basically all that is said in that section about
12            what should be reported.  You will find that the
13            report includes district conversion charter operation
14            information as well.  It does seem important that
15            that information is included to get a true picture of
16            charters in Arkansas.  Although reports in the past
17            were many, many pages longer than this we feel like
18            this is in keeping with the statutory requirement.
19            Should you approve this today it will eventually get
20            to the director of Legislative Services for release
21            to the legislature.
22                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Panel, you've had a chance
23            to review this.  I will entertain a motion to approve
24            or deny this report.
25                 MR. DECKER:  I move to approve.
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 1                 MS. PFEFFER:  Second.
 2                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  I've got a motion to
 3            approve by Mr. Decker, second by Ms. Pfeffer.  All in
 4            favor say "aye."
 5                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
 6                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Any opposed?  Motion
 7            carries.
 8  FUTURE CAP MEETING DATES AND ADJOURNMENT
 9                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Ms. Perry, I don't see
10            anything else on our agenda for today.  And so our
11            next meeting will be, right now, October 13th and
12            14th.  Is that correct?
13                 MS. PERRY:  15th and 16th.
14                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  15th and 16th.  Okay.  I'm
15            off on dates here.  All right.  I will entertain a
16            motion to adjourn.
17                 MS. COFFMAN:  So moved.
18                 DR. SAUNDERS:  Second.
19                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  All in favor say "aye."
20                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
21                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  We are adjourned.
22
23              (The meeting was adjourned at 9:35 a.m.)
24
25
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 1                       P R O C E E D I N G S
 2  REPORT 1: CHAIR'S REPORT
 3                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: Good morning.  I guess we


 4            can call this meeting to order.  I've got 8:30.  It
 5            looks like we'll start off with the agenda.  My name
 6            is Mike Hernandez, Deputy Commissioner; I also serve
 7            as the chairman of the Charter Authorizing Panel.  So
 8            I'll start with our Chair's Report.  I don't have
 9            much to report other than just welcome and we're
10            ready to do the business of the Charter Authorizing
11            Panel today.  So I will turn it over to Ms. Perry.
12  REPORT 2: UPDATE ON CURRENT CHARTER APPLICATION CYCLES


13                 MS. PERRY: Good morning.  The first item --
14            second report item is the current update on the
15            charter application cycles.  I do want to let you
16            know this is the last time that I'll be standing
17            before you with this update, that the positions have
18            changed as I know you're aware here, the Panel is
19            aware.  And I'm pleased to let you know that Cindy
20            Hogue is the -- Cindy, please stand up -- the
21            Director of the Office of Educational Options and
22            she'll be presenting the agenda items at all future
23            Charter Authorizing Panel meetings and presenting
24            agenda items that originate from the Charter and Home
25            School Unit as well as the other units that she
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 1            oversees at state board meetings.  So these other
 2            units do include ERZ, Scholastic Audit, School Health
 3            Services, and Schools of Innovation.  So we're very,
 4            very happy to make -- very, very happy to make that
 5            announcement.  I'm also thrilled to announce that Sky
 6            Bledsoe, who has been -- who has served for just
 7            about a year as the Charter Program Advisor, has been
 8            named the Coordinator of the Charter and Home Schools
 9            Office, and they are currently looking for a Program
10            Advisor for the Charter -- for charter schools.  So
11            that's the changes that have happened in that office.
12                 As the update for the application cycles, there
13            were seven open enrollment charter applications that
14            were submitted by the deadline; however, KIPP Delta
15            Public Schools withdrew its application to instead
16            submit a request for licensure through the amendment
17            process, and this was for KIPP Forrest City College
18            Preparatory School.  There were -- so there remains
19            for you to do hearings on six remaining applicants
20            for open enrollment.  Since we met last, there were
21            applications that came in for the district conversion
22            schools.  Those were due in last week, on September
23            9th, and there were five that were submitted by
24            deadline and one that will not be going forward
25            because it was not submitted by the deadline.  So the
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 1            hearings for the open enrollment charter applicants
 2            and amendments: KIPP will be coming to you, there is
 3            an amendment to their licensure, as well as one other
 4            school that has submitted an amendment request, in
 5            October, and those meetings will be on October 15th
 6            and 16th.  You'll have, again, six applicant hearings
 7            for open enrollment and you'll have two amendment
 8            hearings.
 9                 Then with the district conversion applications
10            -- I mentioned five -- those hearings are slated for
11            November 19th and 20th.
12                 The renewal applications cycle is also moving
13            forward and there are three open enrollment and five
14            district conversion charters that have contracts that
15            expire on June 30, 2015.  By rule, the applicant must
16            submit the renewal application according to a
17            schedule set forth by the State Board of Education.
18            So the timeline is going to be -- just a timeline --
19            going to the State Board in October, and it will
20            indicate that you will be handling those -- is it
21            January or February, Sky?
22                 MS. BLEDSOE: February.
23                 MS. PERRY: The February meeting is when you'll
24            handle the renewal hearings.
25                 Housekeeping before we get to the other pieces
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 1            of the agenda, Room 201 is reserved so that panel
 2            members will have a place for a short lunch on the
 3            15th and 16th.  Here's the bad news: lunch won't be
 4            provided.  We're looking at the budget so you're kind
 5            of on your own.  Sorry.
 6                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: Thank you, Ms. Perry.


 7  CONSENT AGENDA
 8                 MS. PERRY: In the minutes would you note --
 9            it's the Consent Agenda, but would you note that I've
10            given you a revised version and the error is
11            highlighted where they'd like to make the strike-
12            through and then of course any other changes that you
13            might request.
14                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: All right.  Charter
15            Members, you have the minutes before you so I will
16            give you a chance to review those and then I'll
17            entertain a motion.
18                      (FEW MOMENTS OF SILENCE)
19                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: Ms. Coffman.
20                 MS. COFFMAN: I make a motion we approve the
21            minutes as corrected.
22                 MS. BARNES: Second.
23                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: I've got a motion and a


24            second.  All in favor say "aye."
25                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
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 1                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: Any opposed say "nay."


 2            Motion passes.
 3  A-1: REQUEST FOR DISTRICT CONVERSION PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL


 4  AMENDMENT: CLOVERDALE AEROSPACE TECHNOLOGY CONVERSION CHARTER


 5  MIDDLE SCHOOL, LITTLE ROCK SCHOOL DISTRICT
 6                 MS. PERRY: Okay.  And the next item up is an
 7            action item; it's a request for an amendment for the
 8            district conversion public charter school, Cloverdale
 9            Aerospace Technology Conversion Charter Middle School
10            in Little Rock School District.  This application was
11            approved by the state board from Little Rock on
12            January 19, 2010.  The charter is approved to serve
13            students in grades 6 through 8 with a maximum
14            enrollment of 705.  Representatives of the Little
15            Rock School District are appearing before the Panel
16            to request an amendment to the current charter.  Dr.
17            Daniel Whitehorn will come and speak to you about the
18            item and others with Little Rock -- Dr. Whitehorn is
19            the associate superintendent over middle schools, and
20            there are a few other Little Rock folks who may be
21            able to entertain some questions from you.  And
22            before that Ms. Clay is here from Legal to discuss
23            the process over our hearing -- conducting this
24            hearing today.
25                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: Ms. Clay.
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 1                 MS. CLAY: Good morning.  I'll go over your
 2            hearing procedures for the amendment request before
 3            you today.  All parties with the exception of
 4            attorneys need to be sworn.  The conversion charter
 5            school will then have 20 minutes to present its case
 6            for approval of its amendment request.  Any parties
 7            that are opposed to the amendment request will have
 8            20 minutes after that, and then the conversion
 9            charter school will have an additional five minutes
10            in closing.  At that point you can discuss and ask
11            any questions that you have of anyone before you and
12            then either issue a final decision today, take the
13            matter under advisement, or allow the charter school
14            to come back and get some technical assistance and
15            bring the matter back before you at another meeting.
16            Are there any questions on that?
17                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: Okay.  We'll get started.


18            I want to go ahead and -- if there's anybody here
19            speaking for or against this amendment, if they'd
20            please stand to be sworn in, if you'd raise your
21            right hand.  Do you swear or affirm to tell the
22            truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?
23               (ALL SPEAKERS ANSWERED AFFIRMATIVELY)
24                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: All right.  Thank you.


25                 DR. WHITEHORN: Good morning.  Mr. Chair, Mr.
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 1            Hernandez, and Members of the Charter Authorizing
 2            Panel, my name is Dan Whitehorn; I'm associate
 3            superintendent of Little Rock School District.  And
 4            we are requesting that the test prep period at
 5            Cloverdale Conversion -- Cloverdale Aerospace
 6            Technology Conversion Charter School -- gosh, that's
 7            a long name -- we're requesting that we eliminate
 8            that test prep period.  And really our two main
 9            arguments on this, number one, it just hasn't worked.
10            And at this point from the data we have, when we
11            looked at the latest update, when we looked at the
12            latest benchmark scores what we found is that for all
13            students at the school, you know, the literacy scores
14            have actually decreased over the past two years by
15            one percent (1%) and that the math scores have
16            decreased by eight percent (8%) at the school.  The
17            other thing is that we're not sure test prep is
18            effective as a separate course, that we think that
19            test-taking skills can be integrated into all the
20            courses at the school.  And another thing that we've
21            had for the -- and this is the third year in the
22            Little Rock School District we've had built-in math
23            and literacy classes, intervention classes that are
24            specifically designed for kids that are below
25            proficient, that scored below proficient on the math
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 1            and/or literacy tests and that's built-in within the
 2            normal school day.  And those teachers work on the
 3            students where they need extra help, the skills that
 4            need help.  They collaborate and work with the
 5            students' regular math teachers and their regular
 6            English teachers too, and by working together they
 7            can focus on those skills that the kids need
 8            remediation in and help in.  So we found that -- you
 9            know -- that that helps.
10                 The other thing is that we do -- you know -- the
11            school does have an afterschool program through a
12            21st Century grant that they obtained and that is
13            also helping those schools, the students below
14            proficient.  It is open to all students.  It is an
15            opportunity to work with those students on the basic
16            skills, enrichment, and homework help.  And -- but
17            that, you know, our thing is, you know, at this point
18            we don't see that it's working and, you know, we --
19            because it's not working we don't see the need to
20            continue it.  And that's kind of our rationale for
21            these two main arguments right here.
22                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: Is there anybody else that


23            you have to speak?
24                 DR. WHITEHORN: I don't think so.  I have -- in
25            case of questions I have some -- you know -- I have
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 1            Dennis Glasgow, he's associate superintendent for
 2            accountability for the district, and I have Wanda
 3            Ruffins, who is the principal of Cloverdale.
 4                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: To answer questions?


 5                 DR. WHITEHORN: Yes, sir.  But not to speak.
 6                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: All right.  So you want to


 7            yield your time to --
 8                 DR. WHITEHORN: Yes, sir.  I may have to.  I
 9            mean, I'm not going to make up something or whatever.
10                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: Right.
11                 DR. WHITEHORN: So there may be some things I
12            don't know.
13                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: Okay.  Fair enough.  Thank


14            you.
15                 DR. WHITEHORN: Okay.
16                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: Is there anybody here to


17            speak against the amendment?
18                     (BRIEF MOMENT OF SILENCE)
19                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: Okay.  All right.  We'll


20            entertain questions.  We can -- we'll just go around
21            the table and, Ms. Barnes, we'll start with you if
22            you want to -- have any questions you'd like to ask.
23                 MS. BARNES: I don't have any at this time.
24                 MS. PFEFFER: Good morning.  Thank you --
25                 DR. WHITEHORN: Good morning.
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 1                 MS. PFEFFER: -- for being here.
 2                 DR. WHITEHORN: You're welcome.
 3                 MS. PFEFFER: One of the questions that -- in
 4            just reading the amendment that -- and you do point
 5            out that, you know, obviously this is not impacting
 6            your student achievement and you talk about that test
 7            prep will be included as a normal and integral part
 8            of instruction in the various subjects.  So I guess
 9            I'm wondering what do you envision this looking like
10            if, you know, we're taking something that originally
11            was part of the charter that's designed as a way to
12            help students and now, you know, it's going to become
13            part of that?  What kind of -- what is that going to
14            look like?  What kind of training are teachers going
15            to get?
16                 DR. WHITEHORN: Well, one thing that we have
17            been doing for a few years in the middle school is
18            we've -- you know -- there's been a strong focus on
19            accompanying PD with it, of doing math -- a focus on
20            math and literacy across the curriculum in all the
21            courses, not just the core courses but your related
22            art courses too.  And really we found another way
23            that that is successful is that they can -- that
24            teachers can teach their own curriculum while
25            integrating math and literacy skills as they
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 1            naturally occur.  When you think about it almost any
 2            course you can think of they've got some math and
 3            literacy in it.  And what we've used to help with
 4            that too, we have -- we call them instructional
 5            facilitators now.  All the middle schools have a math
 6            instructional facilitator and a literacy -- earlier,
 7            they were called academic coaches but their job
 8            duties are very similar to what they've always been.
 9            But they help coordinate that and help the teachers
10            get materials they need to do that and, you know, the
11            PD for it and that sort of thing.  But that is one
12            way that a lot of the things that these kids need
13            that are below proficient, the skills they need are
14            integrated into all courses.
15                 MS. PFEFFER: Okay.  So have you all developed
16            then a plan with teachers to talk about, okay, this
17            is maybe how instruction is going to look a little
18            different during the regular class time?  Is there --
19            has there been a plan for those instructional
20            facilitators to be in those classes and the teachers
21            --
22                 DR. WHITEHORN: You know, I may have to -- there


23            should be.  Let me put it that way: it really should
24            be in the ACSIP, in the school's School Improvement
25            Plan.  It should be incorporated into that.  Now Ms.
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 1            Ruffins might be able to address more specifically
 2            what you're saying since she's right there in the
 3            building, you know, what you're asking me, because --
 4            is it okay if I let her --
 5                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: Ms. Ruffins, please come on


 6            up to the mike.
 7                 MS. RUFFINS: Good morning.  Well, as Dr.
 8            Whitehorn alluded to, our intervention classes -- all
 9            of our students that are not proficient are directly
10            placed into the intervention classes and our
11            instructional facilitators work directly in
12            collaboration with our classroom teachers.  In the
13            math classes they are front-loading the specific
14            skills that the regular classroom teacher is teaching
15            and most students are front-loaded in the
16            intervention classes in math and in literacy.  We
17            found that our students' reading ability was so low
18            and there is reading instruction and the students are
19            there every single day -- and we found that, as
20            opposed to test prep, with the intervention classes.
21            Test prep, yes, it did extend the day but it was
22            general in terms of working with the students' needs
23            and in our intervention classes it's more specific,
24            catered directly to the individual needs of the
25            students.  And in our extended day program that we're
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 1            about to start we've targeted -- again, all of our
 2            students in the intervention classes for literacy and
 3            math will have access to our extended day and that's
 4            a two-hour period at the end of each day, Monday
 5            through Thursday.
 6                 MS. PFEFFER: Okay.  Have you had the
 7            intervention classes in place?  Currently, do you
 8            have those in place and have you had them the past
 9            couple of years?
10                 MS. RUFFINS: Yes, we have.  And they are -- I
11            mean, it's -- we started it two years ago with our
12            eight-period day for middle school classes for
13            literacy and math, and we're evolving.  I mean, every
14            year we make a little change in how the intervention
15            instruction is presented and delivered to our
16            students.  And this year our instructional
17            facilitators -- whereas in the past they've not
18            worked directly with the students; they work mainly
19            with our teachers -- they're going to be pulling
20            small groups from our intervention classes also.
21                 MS. PFEFFER: This would be a change you all
22            would want to enact --
23                 MS. RUFFINS: This year.
24                 MS. PFEFFER: -- this year?
25                 MS. RUFFINS: Yes.
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 1                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: Mr. Decker.
 2                 MR. DECKER: Thank you for your presentation.
 3            I'm looking at the handout that was provided, the
 4            Cloverdale Amendment Request, and I believe you
 5            recall as well that literacy scores have decreased
 6            about one percent (1%) over the past two years; math
 7            scores have decreased about eight percent (8%) over
 8            the same time period.  I'm looking at the amendment
 9            request and towards the bottom of the rationale it
10            states, "District central office curriculum
11            instruction team will provide support or resources to
12            the school's leadership to support and monitor this
13            effort."  So my question is: what are those specific
14            supports or resources that the district is planning
15            to put into place to help with these efforts,
16            particularly considering that we're talking about or
17            discussing removing that test prep period?
18                 DR. WHITEHORN: Right.  Well, one thing that the
19            district is -- you know -- the district no longer has
20            an external provider.  But what we do have and what
21            we think may be more effective in the long-run is
22            we've assigned School Improvement Specialists to work
23            with the schools.  And I believe Dr. Cleaver, who's
24            Director of Mathematics, Secondary Mathematics in the
25            district, has been assigned to Cloverdale.  But she
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 1            is there working closely with the school's leadership
 2            team and with the school and providing support and
 3            guidance and extra help there.  But we also have
 4            other individuals in the central office positions
 5            that go into the school and assist.  We, you know,
 6            have a director of literacy; you know, we have health
 7            and science, social studies; we have ESL support and
 8            help, and Cloverdale has a fairly significant
 9            population of ESL students.  And I go to the school
10            myself, you know, quite a bit and go to the
11            leadership team meetings and work with them too.  But
12            we realize that, you know, we have to give them all
13            the extra help and all the support that they need
14            because this is an academically distressed school.
15            And what has been -- well, you know, the shotgun
16            approach doesn't work; you know, we have to be much
17            more strategic, much more systematic with everything
18            we do and target those areas where, you know, there
19            are instructional weaknesses and give the extra
20            support to those students that are below proficient
21            and don't wait till the end of the game to find out
22            how they're doing.  But to measure that, you know, on
23            a regular basis and give -- you know -- I'm getting
24            into a lot of education talk so forgive me but I get
25            carried away.  But, you know, we realize they're
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 1            going to need a lot of support and we're trying to
 2            give them all the support that we possibly can.
 3                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: Dr. Jones.
 4                 DR. JONES: I have a question specifically about
 5            the schedule change for the students, so it may take
 6            Ms. Ruffins to answer this question.
 7                 DR. WHITEHORN: Yes, ma'am.
 8                 DR. JONES: But can you tell me the difference
 9            -- I heard you say that remediation is in addition to
10            the core class.  Tell me how the schedule changes for
11            a student that is non-proficient in both math and
12            literacy -- if this were granted how is it going to
13            change for a student?
14                 DR. WHITEHORN: Well, if they're non-proficient
15            for both math and literacy they would have to take an
16            intervention class in math and literacy.  And the
17            intervention classes meet every other day, so on one
18            day they'd have a math class and the next class
19            they'd have -- they'd still have the regular English
20            and the regular math class in addition to that.  And
21            I do believe now if you had to take intervention in
22            both math and literacy it might cut down on your
23            electives; you know, you wouldn't have as many
24            electives that you could take because of that.  Now
25            possibly one elective that you would be able to take,
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 1            for example, in the 6th grade but there are students
 2            -- typically, we've found that if they're below
 3            proficient in for example literacy, chances are
 4            they're below -- a lot of the same students are below
 5            proficient in math too.  So there are a lot of, you
 6            know, kids that have to take both intervention
 7            classes in math and literacy.
 8                 DR. JONES: Okay.  And I hear you talking about
 9            the afterschool 21st Century program and it sounds as
10            if this will be an additional --
11                 DR. WHITEHORN: Yes, ma'am.
12                 DR. JONES: -- educational time for students.
13            Is transportation provided for those students?
14                 DR. WHITEHORN: Yes, ma'am.  It definitely is.
15            Am I not correct, Ms. Ruffins?
16                 MS. RUFFINS: That is correct.
17                 DR. WHITEHORN: Okay.
18                 DR. JONES: Okay.  And then the communication to
19            the parents for those students that are non-
20            proficient, do you have the number of students that
21            are going to participate?
22                 MS. RUFFINS: We're in the process of getting
23            that information as we speak.  We targeted our non-
24            proficient students through their literacy and math
25            intervention classes and mail-outs have gone out to
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 1            them and we're waiting for our parents to respond.
 2            But our target date to get it all launched is October
 3            1, so we're well into it; we're just getting our
 4            final number.
 5                 DR. JONES: And then one -- I have one final
 6            question.  Can you speak to your RTI program within
 7            the school?  Is that developed?  And tell us a little
 8            bit about your program?
 9                 MS. RUFFINS: What we -- and it's our S-BIT team
10            and it's similar to that where we are --
11                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: If you would, just please


12            come to the mic.
13                 MS. RUFFINS: Yes.  We have an S-BIT team and
14            that's a team where we look at interventions within
15            our school when students are not performing
16            academically or are experiencing behavior issues.
17            Then we've got a team within our school and we look
18            at interventions to address those specific areas for
19            those students.  But it's an ongoing process.  We
20            meet -- it's scheduled monthly but we can call a
21            meeting at any time during our collaboration and our
22            RTI team for those students.
23                 DR. JONES: Thank you.
24                 MR. WHITEHORN: By the way, S-BIT stands for
25            School-Based Intervention Team in case anybody is
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 1            wondering.
 2                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: All right.  Dr. Saunders.


 3                 DR. SAUNDERS: Good morning.  To clarify, this
 4            would be in effect the request for this current
 5            school year?
 6                 DR. WHITEHORN: Yes, sir.
 7                 DR. SAUNDERS: When you first talked about the
 8            percent proficiency being decreased in literacy and
 9            math and concern about the effectiveness of this
10            program do you feel that those would've been greater,
11            the decreases, if this program was not in place?
12                 DR. WHITEHORN: I can't honestly answer that.  I
13            don't know.  I mean, I really don't know, to tell you
14            the truth.  You know, maybe it helped and maybe we
15            just can't see it; maybe the decrease would've been
16            worse if we'd not had it.  I mean, that just is the
17            most honest answer I can give you -- but, you know, I
18            really don't know.
19                 DR. SAUNDERS: Okay.  On the -- are you looking
20            at viewing, the way I understand it, possibly the 21
21            CCLC as being a replacement to this program?
22                 DR. WHITEHORN: No, sir.  I don't think so at
23            all.  I definitely don't view it that way and I don't
24            think Ms. Ruffins does either.  We just -- having
25            been a principal for years -- I was principal for
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 1            years at Pulaski Heights Middle School and we did
 2            everything in the district, Little Rock School
 3            District.  And we -- you know -- those kids below
 4            proficient, I found over the years that you have to
 5            do everything you can to help those kids and they
 6            have to -- you have to set in those specific
 7            interventions and you have to monitor that over time.
 8            But it's not -- you know -- back when I was doing it
 9            we didn't have the built-in intervention classes but
10            you had to look at before-school tutoring, you had to
11            look at tutoring, you had to look at working with,
12            you know, the afterschool program, anything that you
13            could do to help those kids below-proficient.  We
14            think it would enhance, it would help, but we
15            certainly don't view it as a replacement for the test
16            prep period.
17                 DR. SAUNDERS: And enrollment in the 21 CCLC,
18            that would be optional?
19                 DR. WHITEHORN: Yes, sir.  Yes, sir.
20                 DR. SAUNDERS: Would students be able to fulfill
21            their intervention requirements by attending the 21
22            CCLC?
23                 DR. WHITEHORN: No, sir.  No, sir.  They still
24            have to go to intervention classes because the
25            intervention classes are tied into their academic --
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 1            their AIP's, their academic improvement plans.  And,
 2            you know, we're required by the, you know, ADE, the
 3            state, to do things and to help remediate those kids
 4            that are below proficient, everything we can, so --
 5            no, sir.  No.
 6                 DR. SAUNDERS: All right.  That's all I have
 7            right now.
 8                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: Ms. Coffman.
 9                 MS. COFFMAN: Thank you for being here today --
10                 DR. WHITEHORN: Thank you.
11                 MS. COFFMAN: -- and thank you for your
12            presentation.  I'd like to first start off by
13            clarifying in my mind what I think I heard you say.
14            Currently, today, you have an eight-period day plus a
15            test prep period.  Is that correct?
16                 DR. WHITEHORN: Yes, ma'am.  The test prep
17            period is right before school.  It's -- I mean, not
18            before school; it's at the beginning of school, and
19            then you also have the eight-period day.  Right.
20                 MS. COFFMAN: Okay.  So how long is your test
21            prep period currently?
22                 DR. WHITEHORN: It's 30 minutes.
23                 MS. COFFMAN: And under the current charter
24            could that test prep period, instead of being focused
25            on -- and I'm not sure what your curriculum is for
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 1            the test prep period, but could it not be revised to
 2            be an additional intervention time?
 3                 DR. WHITEHORN: That's a possibility.
 4                 MS. COFFMAN: So I'm trying to wrap my mind
 5            around how a school on academic distress with less
 6            than 49.5% of your children needs less time?  Help me
 7            understand.  I understand the afterschool program,
 8            and I think that's wonderful, but that's optional.
 9            So when one of two kids needs intervention why would
10            we provide less?  Why would we not provide more?
11                 DR. WHITEHORN: Well, and, you know, I would
12            agree with you if we had any evidence that it's
13            working.  But we really don't have any evidence that
14            it's working and it's not revealed in the test scores
15            and, you know, this is over a period of time.  If we
16            had some idea that it was working then we would -- of
17            course, we would want to continue that and support
18            that because that would be beneficial for our
19            students.  But, you know, one thing as a principal I
20            found over the years is that it is so important to
21            integrate the skills that kids need in every class.
22            You don't need to isolate necessarily periods to just
23            focus on remediation or test-taking skills so much as
24            in the test prep, because I know we tried study
25            skills, of course.  And it was not really very
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 1            effective 'cause we found out that we could do the
 2            study skills and test preparation and all that in all
 3            of our classes; you know, incorporate infusing that
 4            into the curriculum.  So I don't think that things
 5            taught in isolation like that, like test prep, so
 6            much are as effective when we know that we can do it
 7            within our normal school day in all of our classes.
 8            And the other thing is we just don't see the
 9            evidence, like I say, that it's working.
10                 MS. COFFMAN: I would probably agree with you
11            that the isolated test prep is not the best use of
12            time, so let me ask the question differently.  For
13            the period of time that you have the students
14            currently, for that block of time, from the time they
15            arrive in the morning until the time they leave in
16            the afternoon, could you not exceed your -- the
17            length of your periods to provide more targeted
18            intervention within those content areas?
19                 DR. WHITEHORN: That's possible.  But I think
20            that we are providing targeted intervention already.
21            I think that with the intervention classes that we
22            have in math and literacy we're focused specifically
23            on those kids that are below proficient and what
24            their deficits are in trying to remediate those
25            deficits.  That is already being done.  And I also
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 1            think that, you know, doing the math and literacy
 2            across the curriculum where we -- you know -- we talk
 3            about math skills and literacy skills in all the
 4            courses, that is being done.  And the -- you know --
 5            and I think that the afterschool program will enhance
 6            and support what we're trying to do with our students
 7            that are below proficient and help them even further.
 8            And, you know, so I don't necessarily agree that
 9            extending courses, more time, may necessarily result
10            in greater student achievement because there's too
11            many variables there.  You know, it depends on the
12            quality of the teachers, et cetera and a lot of
13            things.  And so that's the best answer I can give to
14            that.
15                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: We'll go back to Ms.
16            Barnes.
17                 MS. BARNES: Again, thank you for being here.
18                 DR. WHITEHORN: You're welcome.
19                 MS. BARNES: I do have a couple of questions.
20            And since we've talked about the fact that the school
21            is a priority school, the school is also classified
22            in academic distress currently -- and Mrs. Ruffins
23            may have to address some of these.  But one of my
24            questions has to do with -- I need to clarify, first
25            of all, you said that letters were going out to the
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 1            parents currently, right now?
 2                 MS. RUFFINS: Yes.
 3                 MS. BARNES: Was that for academic improvement
 4            plans, consultation, afterschool program?
 5                 MS. RUFFINS: The afterschool program.
 6                 MS. BARNES: Okay.  So under the 21 CCLC, if
 7            parents for whatever reason do not have -- or do not
 8            feel that they can allow their children to remain,
 9            for whatever reason, those students would not have
10            access to this additional remediation that you're
11            talking about.  Is that correct?
12                 MS. RUFFINS: That is correct.  We do have also
13            though included in our 21st Century grant a before-
14            school tutoring hour.  And our buses get there pretty
15            early and they can enroll in our before-school
16            program also, before school and after school; an hour
17            before and two hours after.
18                 MS. BARNES: Okay.  So there's nothing written
19            into the academic improvement plans to address -- one
20            or the other would be a supplemental support to
21            academic improvement plans to provide that additional
22            support for those students who are below proficient?
23                 MS. RUFFINS: Other than our program,
24            intervention that's built within the school day --
25                 MS. BARNES: Okay.
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 1                 MS. RUFFINS: -- for non-proficient students.
 2                 MS. BARNES: Right.  Okay.  You're currently
 3            operating your program as approved.  You're asking to
 4            remove the test prep period.  This is effective, if
 5            it's granted, for this year.  What does the
 6            transition to that look like?  What is the
 7            anticipated interruption to the process of the school
 8            day?  Students are a month in.  How does that look?
 9                 MS. RUFFINS: Not much differently in that
10            almost all -- well, probably 85% of our students are
11            bus riders and our school day normally would begin at
12            8:45 and with our test prep it's 8:30.  So it's only
13            a 15-minute difference before and 15-minutes after
14            the regular school day.  So if it does change, if at
15            all -- if at all, period, five or ten minutes
16            difference in the pickup time.
17                 MS. BARNES: Okay.  So the pickup time, that's
18            -- if I were to set it over here -- I'm looking at in
19            your school day.  Since the students -- you've been
20            doing this for two, three years and they've grown
21            accustomed to the way the schedule is set-up; they've
22            started school with this same type of schedule,
23            anticipating what they're going to be doing.  I do
24            agree that it obviously is not having the impact, but
25            along with some of the other statements there are
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 1            other ways to look at it.  And so looking at the
 2            least amount of disruption to what has already begun
 3            and then impacting or maximizing instructional time
 4            -- I'm trying to visualize that -- is it just dealing
 5            with bus time?
 6                 MS. RUFFINS: Pretty much.  Because we put the
 7            full 30 minutes at the beginning of the day and then
 8            at the end of the day; you know, the buses would come
 9            at 4:00 instead of 3:45.  And if we were to, you
10            know, embed the other 30 minutes into the day it
11            would afford each period about four minutes --
12                 MS. BARNES: Okay.
13                 MS. RUFFINS: -- each additional.
14                 MS. BARNES: So my final question has to do with
15            what's written in your priority intervention plan,
16            your PIP.  Is this particular amendment request
17            supported through what is going on in your school
18            improvement planning process?
19                 MS. RUFFINS: Our school -- our initial school
20            improvement plan is due today, so the outcome of this
21            meeting will determine what's written in there.
22                 MS. BARNES: Okay.  But you do have -- you have
23            been working with --
24                 MS. RUFFINS: Yes.
25                 MS. BARNES: -- your data and you've looked at


Page 30


 1            attendance and how well instructors are utilizing
 2            their time and all of those pieces put together to
 3            determine that "we would like to rewrite it and pull
 4            this piece out to enhance the instruction process?"
 5            I guess what I'm really asking is how much
 6            conversation has gone on with school improvement
 7            specialists -- with the school improvement
 8            specialists from the Department, with the leadership
 9            team, to support changing this in your priority
10            intervention plan?
11                 MS. RUFFINS: And this is my second year at
12            Cloverdale and we've made a few changes to that 30-
13            minute block since I've been there.  But there's
14            always been concern that the test prep time, the way
15            we've utilized it has been, like Dr. Whitehorn said,
16            the shotgun approach.  We looked at our overarching
17            measure of strands that we're weak in as a school,
18            but it hasn't been individualized to meet the needs
19            of the students and logistically that's kind of a
20            challenge.  So we've talked about it.  We have
21            students that arrive late and that's a concern.  You
22            know, we do spend money to pay the teachers to come
23            this time and we've got students arriving late and we
24            don't want that, you know, waste to be there.  For
25            one thing, I think with our students starting to
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 1            school a little bit later our first period should
 2            have all of our kids in it ready to go.  So that's
 3            just a thought.  We've talked about it, we've tweaked
 4            it, but -- and again, as Dr. Whitehorn said, you
 5            know, it is very difficult to determine that the
 6            extension of the day school-wide and the manner in
 7            which we've used it if it's been the most beneficial
 8            for our students.
 9                 MS. BARNES: Thank you.
10                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: Ms. Pfeffer.
11                 MS. PFEFFER: And again we do appreciate the
12            fact that you're looking at your data and your
13            student performance and your school day and you're
14            looking at things that are and are not working.  But
15            I guess kind of going back to some of the questions
16            that Ms. Coffman was asking, how did you come to the
17            decision to shorten the day rather than to reallocate
18            that time in a different manner?  Who was part of
19            that discussion or decision-making?  How do parents
20            feel about the shortening of the school day?  And are
21            we shortening the school day more out of convenience
22            or are we shortening it -- you know -- are there not
23            other options for this extended time that would yield
24            different results?  Because, you know, you all -- and
25            just from my background I would've loved to have had
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 1            an extra 30 minutes to the school day when I was a
 2            principal.  So I guess my question would be, you
 3            know, were there other considerations and things like
 4            that?
 5                 DR. WHITEHORN: As far as the impact on parents
 6            and the school, that sort of thing -- I may ask Ms.
 7            Ruffins later to come up but I can tell you that, you
 8            know, the bottom line for us if we saw evidence that
 9            this was working we would not be here; there is no
10            way that we would be here today.  And we haven't seen
11            that.  And, you know, it's getting back to the -- you
12            know -- they've tried things; they've tried different
13            things, my understanding, in test prep, in talking to
14            Ms. Ruffins.  They've tried different things and
15            nothing really seems to make -- is making a
16            significant change that we can determine as far as
17            the data goes.  And once again, I get back to the
18            argument that integrating these basic skills within
19            all the classes seems to work better.  And also, you
20            know, the fact that we had these intervention classes
21            in math and literacy where all these kids that need
22            help that are below proficient they get it too.  And
23            we -- you know -- we have an umbrella where we can do
24            different things to help those kids.  But, you know,
25            there was -- you know -- you know -- discussion under
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 1            the leadership team and -- the school leadership team
 2            and they did not see that, you know, we could get any
 3            data from it that it was really effective.  And I
 4            know the -- as far as the, you know, the parents and
 5            what they think, their influence or whatever, I may
 6            have to defer to Ms. Ruffins within the actual
 7            school.
 8                 MS. RUFFINS: I would have --
 9                 DR. WHITEHORN: Come up here.
10                 MS. RUFFINS: Oh, sorry.  I talk so loud.  Just
11            the parents, the few parents -- we did not survey the
12            parents, but the ones that I spoke to concerning the
13            shortening of the school day, because it did not
14            impact a lot, you know, before school or after
15            school, there wasn't much opposition to it, nor was
16            there a lot of talk about what the purpose of the 30
17            minutes was either though.  It was about the
18            scheduling.
19                 MS. PFEFFER: Okay.
20                 MS. RUFFINS: And we talked about the extended
21            day that we would be offering our students.
22                 MS. PFEFFER: Okay.  But I guess going back to
23            were there other considerations for what might be
24            done with the extended time, I'm not saying keep
25            doing test prep if you've recognized that isn't
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 1            working.  But were there stakeholders involved in
 2            looking at -- okay.  If we realize that this isn't
 3            working are there things we might do different within
 4            this time that we have with students?  You know,
 5            particularly, you have the intervention classes in
 6            place.  I don't know.  I mean, you know, is there
 7            evidence that those are working in the way you're
 8            doing them now?  So I guess our question is going
 9            back to is shortening the day what needs to be done
10            or are there other considerations that might -- and I
11            didn't know if you all had kind of talked through
12            those or if the stakeholders had been involved in
13            this decision or is this just something that the
14            school leadership has talked about?
15                 MS. RUFFINS: It's not one that we discussed
16            other than with our 21st Century.  There's a three-
17            hour maximum time that we have to allow for the grant
18            usage and an hour can be used before school and two
19            hours after.  And we did discuss, you know, being
20            able to start our afterschool program 15 minutes
21            earlier.  That would allow for our kids to be home a
22            little bit sooner in the evening and we would
23            definitely target our non-proficient students.
24            That's the biggest discussion we had but not much
25            about how we would look at the 30 minutes embedded
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 1            and use it in a different way.
 2                 MS. PFEFFER: And I do want to follow-up on a
 3            question that I had asked earlier when I was -- when
 4            you were talking about the actions.  You know, if
 5            we're not looking at -- and again going back to your
 6            application here, your amendment, that that
 7            instruction might look different during those times
 8            allowed.  And you said it should be in your ACSIP
 9            plan, so I'm assuming you have your strategies
10            outlined in your ACSIP plan.  What type of monitoring
11            will you have in place that you can be monitoring
12            success throughout the year to make sure that things
13            aren't falling off?  Because you're asking us to
14            shorten your day in a school where there's already
15            evidence of issues with student achievement, so --
16                 MR. GLASGOW: May I answer that?
17                 MS. PFEFFER: Okay.
18                 MR. GLASGOW: Hello.  My name is Dennis Glasgow;


19            I'm associate superintendent for accountability.  And
20            we have -- of course, we'll be back talking to the
21            ADE board on October 14th about our plan to assist
22            the schools that are in academic distress, Cloverdale
23            being one of them, but I'll kind of let the cat out
24            of the bag on that a little bit with you all.  We
25            feel like that the main problem with Cloverdale and


Page 36


 1            with all of our schools on academic distress is
 2            ineffective instruction across the board.  So we have
 3            some actions that may sound simple but we think
 4            they'll be very effective.  We had training for our
 5            principals and our instructional facilitators and our
 6            teachers on several key areas that we think are
 7            deficits in those schools; one of them is lesson
 8            planning.  We even met with our teachers' union and
 9            got them to agree that they'll support every teacher.
10            And I know in some school districts across the state
11            I'm sure this is required but we haven't really done
12            it in our district.  Teachers are required to have
13            lesson plans.  They're required to have eight
14            components in their lesson plans.  They're then
15            trained on how to do the lesson plans.  And we found
16            that the biggest problems over the years at our
17            schools in doing our classroom walk-throughs were,
18            number one, student engagement was low; number two,
19            rigor was low; number three, rituals and routines in
20            the classroom and throughout the schools weren't in
21            place.  Now at least two of those things, student
22            engagement and rigor, has to be planned for.  You
23            can't show up in the classroom and those things just
24            happen.  So teachers are doing lesson plans.  The
25            principals are required -- and I know you remember
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 1            Smart Accountability, the state initiative, and
 2            principals then were required to do several hours of
 3            CWT's every day.  We found that CWT's -- although
 4            they have a place, we've suspended doing CWT's this
 5            year because that doesn't give direct feedback to
 6            teachers.  We know that there's an effect size of
 7            point-seven (.7) if the principal is in the classroom
 8            and giving feedback to the teacher on the
 9            instruction, what's going well and what's not going
10            well.  So all of our principals are required to
11            observe the classrooms frequently; they're required
12            to give the teachers good feedback.  So how do we
13            know that's happening?  We have an electronic tool
14            that when the principals go in the classrooms they
15            take notes electronically, they script what's
16            happening in the lesson, and then they give feedback
17            to the teacher on how the lesson went.  As soon as
18            they leave the classroom they push a button and that
19            feedback goes to the teacher.  Well, I can look at
20            the feedback all over the district, the
21            superintendent can, Dr. Whitehorn can.  We can see
22            exactly what principals are scripting; we can see
23            what principals -- what kind of feedback principals
24            are giving to the teachers.  Then our job, which we
25            have our own district 30-day plan, is that we're
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 1            providing support to the principals; at every
 2            leadership meeting we're training them on the
 3            elements in the lesson plan; we're training them on
 4            how to observe and give feedback.  As we look at the
 5            feedback that they're giving, for those principals --
 6            if we see that Ms. Ruffins is not visiting -- by the
 7            way, on the feedback form it tells the time you went
 8            in the classroom and the time that you left the
 9            classroom, so we know exactly how long the principals
10            are in the classrooms.  We can actually read what
11            they wrote; we can read the feedback that they're
12            giving the teachers.  So if Ms. Ruffins is not doing
13            her job, Dr. Whitehorn is looking at her work and
14            he's giving her feedback on it.  If we see there are
15            teachers that are not being observed and if we see
16            the feedback is not high-quality feedback that's
17            based on the lesson plan and the alignment between
18            the lesson plan and the instruction that's being
19            given then it's our job to make sure that -- to
20            support her in doing better.  It may be training.  So
21            we think the problem is what's going on in the
22            classroom during the normal time that's scheduled for
23            students to be there.  The teachers, not all of them
24            but especially in our schools on academic distress,
25            teachers aren't doing their job.  Quite frankly,
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 1            principals aren't doing their job.  And quite
 2            frankly, I'm not doing my job.  So we're going to all
 3            start doing our job and we think we have a plan in
 4            place to hold everyone accountable from the top down
 5            to the bottom and we have data that we can get.  We
 6            can configure the data that comes from those
 7            observations any way we want.  We can look at it, say
 8            -- let's say we have a teacher and we're looking at
 9            the score that you all are now producing.  And if we
10            see that a teacher is not very effective on student
11            growth, well, that teacher ought to be observed more
12            often.  So we can select that teacher to see how many
13            times that teacher was observed electronically and
14            see the feedback that the principal has been giving
15            that teacher.  So we think that we're getting to the
16            heart of the matter and that's what's actually
17            happening in the classroom during the normal time
18            that we have scheduled.  We can schedule all kinds of
19            time but unless what's going on in the classroom is
20            effective -- which at Cloverdale and our other
21            schools on academic distress obviously it hasn't been
22            effective; we admit that.  It has not been good and
23            we're responding to that.
24                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: How in your opinion would


25            keeping this time hinder the process that you've just
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 1            outlined?
 2                 MR. GLASGOW: I don't think the time that we're
 3            talking about would have necessarily any effect on
 4            this process, other than we have a regular eight-
 5            period day at our middle schools and a teacher's
 6            contract is based on that eight-period day.  Now the
 7            extra time that they work, teachers get a per diem
 8            for that time.  So it is expensive to do that and we
 9            think there's a better way to do it at less expense.
10            If we thought extending the school day for four
11            minutes per period -- eight periods times four is 32;
12            so if four minutes was going to yield dividends based
13            upon the cost of about $340,000 that we're paying for
14            that we'd gladly do it.  But we think our other plan
15            would be less expensive and would give better
16            results.
17                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: And that was one of my


18            questions.  So the way that this extra time has
19            worked in your district is by just an hourly
20            timesheet type basis, not a contractual agreement
21            between you and the employees?
22                 MR. GLASGOW: Well, no.  There's a contract but
23            not part of the normal contract; it's supplemental.
24                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: So the savings that we're


25            talking about here would be immediately realized?
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 1                 MR. GLASGOW: That's correct.
 2                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: Thank you.
 3                 MR. GLASGOW: Of course, you know, we're cutting


 4            corners on the budget as you well know.
 5                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: I understand.  And this


 6            might be a question for Ms. Perry: when is this --
 7            the charter for Cloverdale up for renewal?
 8                 MS. PERRY: This is one of the charters with a
 9            contract ending in July.
10                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: June 30 of this year?
11                 MS. PERRY: June 30 of this year, of 2015.  Yes,
12            sir.
13                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: Okay.  Thank you.  Other


14            questions?  I think we're at Mr. Decker.
15                 MR. DECKER: No questions at this time.
16                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: Dr. Jones.
17                 DR. JONES: I do have additional questions.
18            What are the total instructional minutes that
19            Cloverdale currently has, cutting out lunchtime,
20            passing time, just instructional minutes?
21                 DR. WHITEHORN: Three-sixty.
22                 MS. RUFFINS: Whatever the requirements are.
23                 DR. JONES: I didn't hear that other part.
24                 DR. WHITEHORN: I think it's 360.  It should be
25            anyway.  Let's see --
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 1                 MS. RUFFINS: Ours is 360, whatever the
 2            requirements are.
 3                 DR. WHITEHORN: It is 360.  It's 360, not
 4            including the test prep.
 5                 MS. RUFFINS: Three-sixty.
 6                 DR. WHITEHORN: Because it's 45 minutes per
 7            period and eight periods; 45 minutes per period.
 8                 DR. JONES: Okay.  And so the 30 minutes would
 9            be additional time --
10                 DR. WHITEHORN: Yes.
11                 DR. JONES: -- on top of that six hours?
12                 DR. WHITEHORN: Yes, ma'am.
13                 DR. JONES: If you cut that back to six hours
14            then will that be the equivalent of all the other
15            middle schools?
16                 DR. WHITEHORN: Yes, ma'am.
17                 DR. JONES: Okay.  So this original time was
18            written into the charter, which was an agreement when
19            we approved the charter.  How now will this charter
20            school be different from any of your other middle
21            schools?
22                 DR. WHITEHORN: Well, I think it will be
23            different in that it's an academically distressed
24            school and that we are focusing -- you know -- we
25            have a school improvement specialist assigned to this
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 1            school and intensive support from my central office
 2            that works with the school.  It's definitely
 3            different in they need extra help, and we realize
 4            that, because of not only priority status but because
 5            the school is academically distressed.  But the
 6            schedule will be similar to the other middle schools
 7            and everything.  The thing is is that, you know, by
 8            having the school improvement specialist assigned and
 9            us working with the school, you know, we just have to
10            provide more time and support at the school to
11            monitor, support, and make sure those things are done
12            to help those students that are in need or are below
13            proficient.
14                 DR. JONES: Are instructional specialists not
15            assigned to the other middle schools in Little Rock?
16                 DR. WHITEHORN: The school improvement
17            specialists are assigned to the priority academically
18            distressed schools.  They have -- now all the schools
19            have instructional facilitators, one in literacy and
20            one in math.  But, you know, we had Pearson as our
21            external provider here in years past and we no longer
22            have Pearson.  We've replaced that with school
23            improvement specialists for our, you know, priority
24            schools and academically distressed.
25                 DR. JONES: I heard Ms. Ruffins say that there
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 1            was a concern getting students to school on time that
 2            first period.  Have you attempted to move that 30-
 3            minute test prep -- and I don't like that either --
 4            but that time to another part of the day, in the
 5            middle of the day?  Has the time period been moved
 6            itself?
 7                 MS. RUFFINS: Prior to me getting there it's my
 8            understanding at one time it was at the end of the
 9            day, so -- and then when I came it was the beginning
10            of the day.  And if I'm not -- 'cause it's been four
11            years, five years, and I think at some point it may
12            have been in the middle of the day but they moved it
13            around, trying to get the most from the period.  But
14            I think wherever it's been there's been an issue or
15            two with it.
16                 DR. JONES: Okay.  Thank you.
17                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: I've got a question.  Dr.


18            Jones asked about being different or how it would be
19            different from other middle schools.  You do have
20            additional waivers, some of them being in reference
21            to teacher licensure and physical education and world
22            -- or, I'm sorry -- Arkansas history.  Currently are
23            those waivers being utilized, meaning that you are
24            not giving the full PE requirements or that you have
25            any teachers that are not licensed currently on
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 1            staff?
 2                 MS. RUFFINS: We are following the PE
 3            requirements for all of our students.  We do have
 4            only one employee that's not fully licensed, but
 5            other -- and we are -- we have a focus theme,
 6            aerospace science and technology, and the one teacher
 7            that is teaching in that area is not fully licensed.
 8            But other than that, we meet all the state
 9            requirements for licensure.
10                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: Dr. Saunders.
11                 DR. SAUNDERS: Other than financial, what would
12            be the benefit of doing this?
13                 DR. WHITEHORN: Well, I think that one benefit
14            that would result in this is, you know, they already
15            have eight periods that they're moving around and
16            this is tacked on top of that and, you know, that's a
17            disadvantage of an eight-period day.  And I've been a
18            principal when we had block scheduling and when we've
19            had an eight-period day and, you know, the eight-
20            period day results in kids being in the hallway and
21            transitioning twice as much.  So this would be yet
22            another transition for students; you know, it would
23            cut down on that.  And, you know, I -- and as I said,
24            you know, it all gets back to the idea, you know,
25            it's just not working.  I mean, if it was working,
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 1            you know, you know, we would definitely keep it, but
 2            we just don't have any evidence that it is at this
 3            point.
 4                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: Ms. Coffman.
 5                 MS. COFFMAN: A point of clarification.  Your
 6            question was, Mr. Hernandez, that the charter would
 7            be reviewed at the end of this school year.  Is that
 8            correct?
 9                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: Yes.
10                 MS. COFFMAN: No more questions.
11                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: Is it your -- and this may


12            not be a question that you can answer, but do you
13            intend to ask for renewal of this application at the
14            end of this school year?
15                 MR. GLASGOW: We don't.
16                 DR. WHITEHORN: No, sir.  We don't.
17                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: Are there any other
18            questions?  All right.  You've heard the testimony
19            given here today, so I will -- let me ask Ms. Clay to
20            come back up and give us our options again just to
21            make sure we're clear.
22                 MS. CLAY: You have the option of issuing a
23            final decision today or taking the matter under
24            advisement.  Part of taking the matter under
25            advisement is you can send the charter school back to
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 1            get more technical assistance from Department staff
 2            if you feel like that's something that you need.
 3            Otherwise, your decision is to either approve the
 4            amendment, deny the amendment, or take the matter
 5            under advisement.
 6                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: So I will entertain a
 7            motion.
 8                 DR. JONES: I make the motion that this
 9            amendment be denied.
10                 MS. COFFMAN: Second that motion.
11                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: You've heard the motion to


12            deny and a second.  All in favor say "aye."
13                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
14                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: Any opposed?  Motion to


15            deny carries.
16  A-2: CONSIDERATION OF THE 2013-2014 REPORT ON THE STATUS OF


17  THE PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS PROGRAM TO THE HOUSE INTERIM


18  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND THE SENATE INTERIM COMMITTEE ON


19  EDUCATION
20                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: All right.  We'll go back


21            to our agenda here.  It looks like we have Ms. Perry.
22                 MS. PERRY: The last item on the agenda today is
23            the Consideration of the 13-14 Report on the Status
24            of Public Charter Schools Program to the House
25            Interim Committee on Education and the Senate Interim
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 1            Committee on Education.  This is a report that we
 2            bring to you where the legislation is very brief on
 3            what the report is to include; it says simply that
 4            the authorizer is to "report on the status of the
 5            open-enrollment public charter school programs to the
 6            General Assembly each biennium and to the House
 7            Committee on Education and the Senate Committee on
 8            Education during the interim between the regular
 9            sessions of the Assembly."  The piece that was in
10            quotation marks on the description of the agenda item
11            is basically all that is said in that section about
12            what should be reported.  You will find that the
13            report includes district conversion charter operation
14            information as well.  It does seem important that
15            that information is included to get a true picture of
16            charters in Arkansas.  Although reports in the past
17            were many, many pages longer than this we feel like
18            this is in keeping with the statutory requirement.
19            Should you approve this today it will eventually get
20            to the director of Legislative Services for release
21            to the legislature.
22                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: Panel, you've had a chance


23            to review this.  I will entertain a motion to approve
24            or deny this report.
25                 MR. DECKER: I move to approve.
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 1                 MS. PFEFFER: Second.
 2                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: I've got a motion to
 3            approve by Mr. Decker, second by Ms. Pfeffer.  All in
 4            favor say "aye."
 5                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
 6                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: Any opposed?  Motion


 7            carries.
 8  FUTURE CAP MEETING DATES AND ADJOURNMENT
 9                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: Ms. Perry, I don't see
10            anything else on our agenda for today.  And so our
11            next meeting will be, right now, October 13th and
12            14th.  Is that correct?
13                 MS. PERRY: 15th and 16th.
14                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: 15th and 16th.  Okay.  I'm


15            off on dates here.  All right.  I will entertain a
16            motion to adjourn.
17                 MS. COFFMAN: So moved.
18                 DR. SAUNDERS: Second.
19                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: All in favor say "aye."


20                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
21                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ: We are adjourned.
22 
23              (The meeting was adjourned at 9:35 a.m.)
24 
25 
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 1                        P R O C E E D I N G S
  


 2   REPORT 1: CHAIR'S REPORT
  


 3                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Good morning.  I guess we
  


 4             can call this meeting to order.  I've got 8:30.  It
  


 5             looks like we'll start off with the agenda.  My name
  


 6             is Mike Hernandez, Deputy Commissioner; I also serve
  


 7             as the chairman of the Charter Authorizing Panel.  So
  


 8             I'll start with our Chair's Report.  I don't have
  


 9             much to report other than just welcome and we're
  


10             ready to do the business of the Charter Authorizing
  


11             Panel today.  So I will turn it over to Ms. Perry.
  


12   REPORT 2: UPDATE ON CURRENT CHARTER APPLICATION CYCLES
  


13                  MS. PERRY:  Good morning.  The first item --
  


14             second report item is the current update on the
  


15             charter application cycles.  I do want to let you
  


16             know this is the last time that I'll be standing
  


17             before you with this update, that the positions have
  


18             changed as I know you're aware here, the Panel is
  


19             aware.  And I'm pleased to let you know that Cindy
  


20             Hogue is the -- Cindy, please stand up -- the
  


21             Director of the Office of Educational Options and
  


22             she'll be presenting the agenda items at all future
  


23             Charter Authorizing Panel meetings and presenting
  


24             agenda items that originate from the Charter and Home
  


25             School Unit as well as the other units that she
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 1             oversees at state board meetings.  So these other
  


 2             units do include ERZ, Scholastic Audit, School Health
  


 3             Services, and Schools of Innovation.  So we're very,
  


 4             very happy to make -- very, very happy to make that
  


 5             announcement.  I'm also thrilled to announce that Sky
  


 6             Bledsoe, who has been -- who has served for just
  


 7             about a year as the Charter Program Advisor, has been
  


 8             named the Coordinator of the Charter and Home Schools
  


 9             Office, and they are currently looking for a Program
  


10             Advisor for the Charter -- for charter schools.  So
  


11             that's the changes that have happened in that office.
  


12                  As the update for the application cycles, there
  


13             were seven open enrollment charter applications that
  


14             were submitted by the deadline; however, KIPP Delta
  


15             Public Schools withdrew its application to instead
  


16             submit a request for licensure through the amendment
  


17             process, and this was for KIPP Forrest City College
  


18             Preparatory School.  There were -- so there remains
  


19             for you to do hearings on six remaining applicants
  


20             for open enrollment.  Since we met last, there were
  


21             applications that came in for the district conversion
  


22             schools.  Those were due in last week, on September
  


23             9th, and there were five that were submitted by
  


24             deadline and one that will not be going forward
  


25             because it was not submitted by the deadline.  So the
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 1             hearings for the open enrollment charter applicants
  


 2             and amendments: KIPP will be coming to you, there is
  


 3             an amendment to their licensure, as well as one other
  


 4             school that has submitted an amendment request, in
  


 5             October, and those meetings will be on October 15th
  


 6             and 16th.  You'll have, again, six applicant hearings
  


 7             for open enrollment and you'll have two amendment
  


 8             hearings.
  


 9                  Then with the district conversion applications
  


10             -- I mentioned five -- those hearings are slated for
  


11             November 19th and 20th.
  


12                  The renewal applications cycle is also moving
  


13             forward and there are three open enrollment and five
  


14             district conversion charters that have contracts that
  


15             expire on June 30, 2015.  By rule, the applicant must
  


16             submit the renewal application according to a
  


17             schedule set forth by the State Board of Education.
  


18             So the timeline is going to be -- just a timeline --
  


19             going to the State Board in October, and it will
  


20             indicate that you will be handling those -- is it
  


21             January or February, Sky?
  


22                  MS. BLEDSOE:  February.
  


23                  MS. PERRY:  The February meeting is when you'll
  


24             handle the renewal hearings.
  


25                  Housekeeping before we get to the other pieces
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 1             of the agenda, Room 201 is reserved so that panel
  


 2             members will have a place for a short lunch on the
  


 3             15th and 16th.  Here's the bad news: lunch won't be
  


 4             provided.  We're looking at the budget so you're kind
  


 5             of on your own.  Sorry.
  


 6                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Thank you, Ms. Perry.
  


 7   CONSENT AGENDA
  


 8                  MS. PERRY:  In the minutes would you note --
  


 9             it's the Consent Agenda, but would you note that I've
  


10             given you a revised version and the error is
  


11             highlighted where they'd like to make the strike-
  


12             through and then of course any other changes that you
  


13             might request.
  


14                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  All right.  Charter
  


15             Members, you have the minutes before you so I will
  


16             give you a chance to review those and then I'll
  


17             entertain a motion.
  


18                       (FEW MOMENTS OF SILENCE)
  


19                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Ms. Coffman.
  


20                  MS. COFFMAN:  I make a motion we approve the
  


21             minutes as corrected.
  


22                  MS. BARNES:  Second.
  


23                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  I've got a motion and a
  


24             second.  All in favor say "aye."
  


25                      (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
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 1                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Any opposed say "nay."
  


 2             Motion passes.
  


 3   A-1:  REQUEST FOR DISTRICT CONVERSION PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL
  


 4   AMENDMENT: CLOVERDALE AEROSPACE TECHNOLOGY CONVERSION CHARTER
  


 5   MIDDLE SCHOOL, LITTLE ROCK SCHOOL DISTRICT
  


 6                  MS. PERRY:  Okay.  And the next item up is an
  


 7             action item; it's a request for an amendment for the
  


 8             district conversion public charter school, Cloverdale
  


 9             Aerospace Technology Conversion Charter Middle School
  


10             in Little Rock School District.  This application was
  


11             approved by the state board from Little Rock on
  


12             January 19, 2010.  The charter is approved to serve
  


13             students in grades 6 through 8 with a maximum
  


14             enrollment of 705.  Representatives of the Little
  


15             Rock School District are appearing before the Panel
  


16             to request an amendment to the current charter.  Dr.
  


17             Daniel Whitehorn will come and speak to you about the
  


18             item and others with Little Rock -- Dr. Whitehorn is
  


19             the associate superintendent over middle schools, and
  


20             there are a few other Little Rock folks who may be
  


21             able to entertain some questions from you.  And
  


22             before that Ms. Clay is here from Legal to discuss
  


23             the process over our hearing -- conducting this
  


24             hearing today.
  


25                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Ms. Clay.







Sharon Hill Court Reporting
(501) 847-0510


- September 17, 2014


8


  
 1                  MS. CLAY:  Good morning.  I'll go over your
  


 2             hearing procedures for the amendment request before
  


 3             you today.  All parties with the exception of
  


 4             attorneys need to be sworn.  The conversion charter
  


 5             school will then have 20 minutes to present its case
  


 6             for approval of its amendment request.  Any parties
  


 7             that are opposed to the amendment request will have
  


 8             20 minutes after that, and then the conversion
  


 9             charter school will have an additional five minutes
  


10             in closing.  At that point you can discuss and ask
  


11             any questions that you have of anyone before you and
  


12             then either issue a final decision today, take the
  


13             matter under advisement, or allow the charter school
  


14             to come back and get some technical assistance and
  


15             bring the matter back before you at another meeting.
  


16             Are there any questions on that?
  


17                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Okay.  We'll get started.
  


18             I want to go ahead and -- if there's anybody here
  


19             speaking for or against this amendment, if they'd
  


20             please stand to be sworn in, if you'd raise your
  


21             right hand.  Do you swear or affirm to tell the
  


22             truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?
  


23                (ALL SPEAKERS ANSWERED AFFIRMATIVELY)
  


24                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  All right.  Thank you.
  


25                  DR. WHITEHORN:  Good morning.  Mr. Chair, Mr.
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 1             Hernandez, and Members of the Charter Authorizing
  


 2             Panel, my name is Dan Whitehorn; I'm associate
  


 3             superintendent of Little Rock School District.  And
  


 4             we are requesting that the test prep period at
  


 5             Cloverdale Conversion -- Cloverdale Aerospace
  


 6             Technology Conversion Charter School -- gosh, that's
  


 7             a long name -- we're requesting that we eliminate
  


 8             that test prep period.  And really our two main
  


 9             arguments on this, number one, it just hasn't worked.
  


10             And at this point from the data we have, when we
  


11             looked at the latest update, when we looked at the
  


12             latest benchmark scores what we found is that for all
  


13             students at the school, you know, the literacy scores
  


14             have actually decreased over the past two years by
  


15             one percent (1%) and that the math scores have
  


16             decreased by eight percent (8%) at the school.  The
  


17             other thing is that we're not sure test prep is
  


18             effective as a separate course, that we think that
  


19             test-taking skills can be integrated into all the
  


20             courses at the school.  And another thing that we've
  


21             had for the -- and this is the third year in the
  


22             Little Rock School District we've had built-in math
  


23             and literacy classes, intervention classes that are
  


24             specifically designed for kids that are below
  


25             proficient, that scored below proficient on the math
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 1             and/or literacy tests and that's built-in within the
  


 2             normal school day.  And those teachers work on the
  


 3             students where they need extra help, the skills that
  


 4             need help.  They collaborate and work with the
  


 5             students' regular math teachers and their regular
  


 6             English teachers too, and by working together they
  


 7             can focus on those skills that the kids need
  


 8             remediation in and help in.  So we found that -- you
  


 9             know -- that that helps.
  


10                  The other thing is that we do -- you know -- the
  


11             school does have an afterschool program through a
  


12             21st Century grant that they obtained and that is
  


13             also helping those schools, the students below
  


14             proficient.  It is open to all students.  It is an
  


15             opportunity to work with those students on the basic
  


16             skills, enrichment, and homework help.  And -- but
  


17             that, you know, our thing is, you know, at this point
  


18             we don't see that it's working and, you know, we --
  


19             because it's not working we don't see the need to
  


20             continue it.  And that's kind of our rationale for
  


21             these two main arguments right here.
  


22                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Is there anybody else that
  


23             you have to speak?
  


24                  DR. WHITEHORN:  I don't think so.  I have -- in
  


25             case of questions I have some -- you know -- I have
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 1             Dennis Glasgow, he's associate superintendent for
  


 2             accountability for the district, and I have Wanda
  


 3             Ruffins, who is the principal of Cloverdale.
  


 4                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  To answer questions?
  


 5                  DR. WHITEHORN:  Yes, sir.  But not to speak.
  


 6                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  All right.  So you want to
  


 7             yield your time to --
  


 8                  DR. WHITEHORN:  Yes, sir.  I may have to.  I
  


 9             mean, I'm not going to make up something or whatever.
  


10                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Right.
  


11                  DR. WHITEHORN:  So there may be some things I
  


12             don't know.
  


13                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Okay.  Fair enough.  Thank
  


14             you.
  


15                  DR. WHITEHORN:  Okay.
  


16                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Is there anybody here to
  


17             speak against the amendment?
  


18                      (BRIEF MOMENT OF SILENCE)
  


19                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Okay.  All right.  We'll
  


20             entertain questions.  We can -- we'll just go around
  


21             the table and, Ms. Barnes, we'll start with you if
  


22             you want to -- have any questions you'd like to ask.
  


23                  MS. BARNES:  I don't have any at this time.
  


24                  MS. PFEFFER:  Good morning.  Thank you --
  


25                  DR. WHITEHORN:  Good morning.
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 1                  MS. PFEFFER:  -- for being here.
  


 2                  DR. WHITEHORN:  You're welcome.
  


 3                  MS. PFEFFER:  One of the questions that -- in
  


 4             just reading the amendment that -- and you do point
  


 5             out that, you know, obviously this is not impacting
  


 6             your student achievement and you talk about that test
  


 7             prep will be included as a normal and integral part
  


 8             of instruction in the various subjects.  So I guess
  


 9             I'm wondering what do you envision this looking like
  


10             if, you know, we're taking something that originally
  


11             was part of the charter that's designed as a way to
  


12             help students and now, you know, it's going to become
  


13             part of that?  What kind of -- what is that going to
  


14             look like?  What kind of training are teachers going
  


15             to get?
  


16                  DR. WHITEHORN:  Well, one thing that we have
  


17             been doing for a few years in the middle school is
  


18             we've -- you know -- there's been a strong focus on
  


19             accompanying PD with it, of doing math -- a focus on
  


20             math and literacy across the curriculum in all the
  


21             courses, not just the core courses but your related
  


22             art courses too.  And really we found another way
  


23             that that is successful is that they can -- that
  


24             teachers can teach their own curriculum while
  


25             integrating math and literacy skills as they
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 1             naturally occur.  When you think about it almost any
  


 2             course you can think of they've got some math and
  


 3             literacy in it.  And what we've used to help with
  


 4             that too, we have -- we call them instructional
  


 5             facilitators now.  All the middle schools have a math
  


 6             instructional facilitator and a literacy -- earlier,
  


 7             they were called academic coaches but their job
  


 8             duties are very similar to what they've always been.
  


 9             But they help coordinate that and help the teachers
  


10             get materials they need to do that and, you know, the
  


11             PD for it and that sort of thing.  But that is one
  


12             way that a lot of the things that these kids need
  


13             that are below proficient, the skills they need are
  


14             integrated into all courses.
  


15                  MS. PFEFFER:  Okay.  So have you all developed
  


16             then a plan with teachers to talk about, okay, this
  


17             is maybe how instruction is going to look a little
  


18             different during the regular class time?  Is there --
  


19             has there been a plan for those instructional
  


20             facilitators to be in those classes and the teachers
  


21             --
  


22                  DR. WHITEHORN:  You know, I may have to -- there
  


23             should be.  Let me put it that way: it really should
  


24             be in the ACSIP, in the school's School Improvement
  


25             Plan.  It should be incorporated into that.  Now Ms.
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 1             Ruffins might be able to address more specifically
  


 2             what you're saying since she's right there in the
  


 3             building, you know, what you're asking me, because --
  


 4             is it okay if I let her --
  


 5                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Ms. Ruffins, please come on
  


 6             up to the mike.
  


 7                  MS. RUFFINS:  Good morning.  Well, as Dr.
  


 8             Whitehorn alluded to, our intervention classes -- all
  


 9             of our students that are not proficient are directly
  


10             placed into the intervention classes and our
  


11             instructional facilitators work directly in
  


12             collaboration with our classroom teachers.  In the
  


13             math classes they are front-loading the specific
  


14             skills that the regular classroom teacher is teaching
  


15             and most students are front-loaded in the
  


16             intervention classes in math and in literacy.  We
  


17             found that our students' reading ability was so low
  


18             and there is reading instruction and the students are
  


19             there every single day -- and we found that, as
  


20             opposed to test prep, with the intervention classes.
  


21             Test prep, yes, it did extend the day but it was
  


22             general in terms of working with the students' needs
  


23             and in our intervention classes it's more specific,
  


24             catered directly to the individual needs of the
  


25             students.  And in our extended day program that we're
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 1             about to start we've targeted -- again, all of our
  


 2             students in the intervention classes for literacy and
  


 3             math will have access to our extended day and that's
  


 4             a two-hour period at the end of each day, Monday
  


 5             through Thursday.
  


 6                  MS. PFEFFER:  Okay.  Have you had the
  


 7             intervention classes in place?  Currently, do you
  


 8             have those in place and have you had them the past
  


 9             couple of years?
  


10                  MS. RUFFINS:  Yes, we have.  And they are -- I
  


11             mean, it's -- we started it two years ago with our
  


12             eight-period day for middle school classes for
  


13             literacy and math, and we're evolving.  I mean, every
  


14             year we make a little change in how the intervention
  


15             instruction is presented and delivered to our
  


16             students.  And this year our instructional
  


17             facilitators -- whereas in the past they've not
  


18             worked directly with the students; they work mainly
  


19             with our teachers -- they're going to be pulling
  


20             small groups from our intervention classes also.
  


21                  MS. PFEFFER:  This would be a change you all
  


22             would want to enact --
  


23                  MS. RUFFINS:  This year.
  


24                  MS. PFEFFER:  -- this year?
  


25                  MS. RUFFINS:  Yes.
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 1                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Mr. Decker.
  


 2                  MR. DECKER:  Thank you for your presentation.
  


 3             I'm looking at the handout that was provided, the
  


 4             Cloverdale Amendment Request, and I believe you
  


 5             recall as well that literacy scores have decreased
  


 6             about one percent (1%) over the past two years; math
  


 7             scores have decreased about eight percent (8%) over
  


 8             the same time period.  I'm looking at the amendment
  


 9             request and towards the bottom of the rationale it
  


10             states, "District central office curriculum
  


11             instruction team will provide support or resources to
  


12             the school's leadership to support and monitor this
  


13             effort."  So my question is: what are those specific
  


14             supports or resources that the district is planning
  


15             to put into place to help with these efforts,
  


16             particularly considering that we're talking about or
  


17             discussing removing that test prep period?
  


18                  DR. WHITEHORN:  Right.  Well, one thing that the
  


19             district is -- you know -- the district no longer has
  


20             an external provider.  But what we do have and what
  


21             we think may be more effective in the long-run is
  


22             we've assigned School Improvement Specialists to work
  


23             with the schools.  And I believe Dr. Cleaver, who's
  


24             Director of Mathematics, Secondary Mathematics in the
  


25             district, has been assigned to Cloverdale.  But she
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 1             is there working closely with the school's leadership
  


 2             team and with the school and providing support and
  


 3             guidance and extra help there.  But we also have
  


 4             other individuals in the central office positions
  


 5             that go into the school and assist.  We, you know,
  


 6             have a director of literacy; you know, we have health
  


 7             and science, social studies; we have ESL support and
  


 8             help, and Cloverdale has a fairly significant
  


 9             population of ESL students.  And I go to the school
  


10             myself, you know, quite a bit and go to the
  


11             leadership team meetings and work with them too.  But
  


12             we realize that, you know, we have to give them all
  


13             the extra help and all the support that they need
  


14             because this is an academically distressed school.
  


15             And what has been -- well, you know, the shotgun
  


16             approach doesn't work; you know, we have to be much
  


17             more strategic, much more systematic with everything
  


18             we do and target those areas where, you know, there
  


19             are instructional weaknesses and give the extra
  


20             support to those students that are below proficient
  


21             and don't wait till the end of the game to find out
  


22             how they're doing.  But to measure that, you know, on
  


23             a regular basis and give -- you know -- I'm getting
  


24             into a lot of education talk so forgive me but I get
  


25             carried away.  But, you know, we realize they're
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 1             going to need a lot of support and we're trying to
  


 2             give them all the support that we possibly can.
  


 3                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Dr. Jones.
  


 4                  DR. JONES:  I have a question specifically about
  


 5             the schedule change for the students, so it may take
  


 6             Ms. Ruffins to answer this question.
  


 7                  DR. WHITEHORN:  Yes, ma'am.
  


 8                  DR. JONES:  But can you tell me the difference
  


 9             -- I heard you say that remediation is in addition to
  


10             the core class.  Tell me how the schedule changes for
  


11             a student that is non-proficient in both math and
  


12             literacy -- if this were granted how is it going to
  


13             change for a student?
  


14                  DR. WHITEHORN:  Well, if they're non-proficient
  


15             for both math and literacy they would have to take an
  


16             intervention class in math and literacy.  And the
  


17             intervention classes meet every other day, so on one
  


18             day they'd have a math class and the next class
  


19             they'd have -- they'd still have the regular English
  


20             and the regular math class in addition to that.  And
  


21             I do believe now if you had to take intervention in
  


22             both math and literacy it might cut down on your
  


23             electives; you know, you wouldn't have as many
  


24             electives that you could take because of that.  Now
  


25             possibly one elective that you would be able to take,
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 1             for example, in the 6th grade but there are students
  


 2             -- typically, we've found that if they're below
  


 3             proficient in for example literacy, chances are
  


 4             they're below -- a lot of the same students are below
  


 5             proficient in math too.  So there are a lot of, you
  


 6             know, kids that have to take both intervention
  


 7             classes in math and literacy.
  


 8                  DR. JONES:  Okay.  And I hear you talking about
  


 9             the afterschool 21st Century program and it sounds as
  


10             if this will be an additional --
  


11                  DR. WHITEHORN:  Yes, ma'am.
  


12                  DR. JONES:  -- educational time for students.
  


13             Is transportation provided for those students?
  


14                  DR. WHITEHORN:  Yes, ma'am.  It definitely is.
  


15             Am I not correct, Ms. Ruffins?
  


16                  MS. RUFFINS:  That is correct.
  


17                  DR. WHITEHORN:  Okay.
  


18                  DR. JONES:  Okay.  And then the communication to
  


19             the parents for those students that are non-
  


20             proficient, do you have the number of students that
  


21             are going to participate?
  


22                  MS. RUFFINS:  We're in the process of getting
  


23             that information as we speak.  We targeted our non-
  


24             proficient students through their literacy and math
  


25             intervention classes and mail-outs have gone out to
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 1             them and we're waiting for our parents to respond.
  


 2             But our target date to get it all launched is October
  


 3             1, so we're well into it; we're just getting our
  


 4             final number.
  


 5                  DR. JONES:  And then one -- I have one final
  


 6             question.  Can you speak to your RTI program within
  


 7             the school?  Is that developed?  And tell us a little
  


 8             bit about your program?
  


 9                  MS. RUFFINS:  What we -- and it's our S-BIT team
  


10             and it's similar to that where we are --
  


11                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  If you would, just please
  


12             come to the mic.
  


13                  MS. RUFFINS:  Yes.  We have an S-BIT team and
  


14             that's a team where we look at interventions within
  


15             our school when students are not performing
  


16             academically or are experiencing behavior issues.
  


17             Then we've got a team within our school and we look
  


18             at interventions to address those specific areas for
  


19             those students.  But it's an ongoing process.  We
  


20             meet -- it's scheduled monthly but we can call a
  


21             meeting at any time during our collaboration and our
  


22             RTI team for those students.
  


23                  DR. JONES:  Thank you.
  


24                  MR. WHITEHORN:  By the way, S-BIT stands for
  


25             School-Based Intervention Team in case anybody is
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 1             wondering.
  


 2                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  All right.  Dr. Saunders.
  


 3                  DR. SAUNDERS:  Good morning.  To clarify, this
  


 4             would be in effect the request for this current
  


 5             school year?
  


 6                  DR. WHITEHORN:  Yes, sir.
  


 7                  DR. SAUNDERS:  When you first talked about the
  


 8             percent proficiency being decreased in literacy and
  


 9             math and concern about the effectiveness of this
  


10             program do you feel that those would've been greater,
  


11             the decreases, if this program was not in place?
  


12                  DR. WHITEHORN:  I can't honestly answer that.  I
  


13             don't know.  I mean, I really don't know, to tell you
  


14             the truth.  You know, maybe it helped and maybe we
  


15             just can't see it; maybe the decrease would've been
  


16             worse if we'd not had it.  I mean, that just is the
  


17             most honest answer I can give you -- but, you know, I
  


18             really don't know.
  


19                  DR. SAUNDERS:  Okay.  On the -- are you looking
  


20             at viewing, the way I understand it, possibly the 21
  


21             CCLC as being a replacement to this program?
  


22                  DR. WHITEHORN:  No, sir.  I don't think so at
  


23             all.  I definitely don't view it that way and I don't
  


24             think Ms. Ruffins does either.  We just -- having
  


25             been a principal for years -- I was principal for
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 1             years at Pulaski Heights Middle School and we did
  


 2             everything in the district, Little Rock School
  


 3             District.  And we -- you know -- those kids below
  


 4             proficient, I found over the years that you have to
  


 5             do everything you can to help those kids and they
  


 6             have to -- you have to set in those specific
  


 7             interventions and you have to monitor that over time.
  


 8             But it's not -- you know -- back when I was doing it
  


 9             we didn't have the built-in intervention classes but
  


10             you had to look at before-school tutoring, you had to
  


11             look at tutoring, you had to look at working with,
  


12             you know, the afterschool program, anything that you
  


13             could do to help those kids below-proficient.  We
  


14             think it would enhance, it would help, but we
  


15             certainly don't view it as a replacement for the test
  


16             prep period.
  


17                  DR. SAUNDERS:  And enrollment in the 21 CCLC,
  


18             that would be optional?
  


19                  DR. WHITEHORN:  Yes, sir.  Yes, sir.
  


20                  DR. SAUNDERS:  Would students be able to fulfill
  


21             their intervention requirements by attending the 21
  


22             CCLC?
  


23                  DR. WHITEHORN:  No, sir.  No, sir.  They still
  


24             have to go to intervention classes because the
  


25             intervention classes are tied into their academic --
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 1             their AIP's, their academic improvement plans.  And,
  


 2             you know, we're required by the, you know, ADE, the
  


 3             state, to do things and to help remediate those kids
  


 4             that are below proficient, everything we can, so --
  


 5             no, sir.  No.
  


 6                  DR. SAUNDERS:  All right.  That's all I have
  


 7             right now.
  


 8                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Ms. Coffman.
  


 9                  MS. COFFMAN:  Thank you for being here today --
  


10                  DR. WHITEHORN:  Thank you.
  


11                  MS. COFFMAN:  -- and thank you for your
  


12             presentation.  I'd like to first start off by
  


13             clarifying in my mind what I think I heard you say.
  


14             Currently, today, you have an eight-period day plus a
  


15             test prep period.  Is that correct?
  


16                  DR. WHITEHORN:  Yes, ma'am.  The test prep
  


17             period is right before school.  It's -- I mean, not
  


18             before school; it's at the beginning of school, and
  


19             then you also have the eight-period day.  Right.
  


20                  MS. COFFMAN:  Okay.  So how long is your test
  


21             prep period currently?
  


22                  DR. WHITEHORN:  It's 30 minutes.
  


23                  MS. COFFMAN:  And under the current charter
  


24             could that test prep period, instead of being focused
  


25             on -- and I'm not sure what your curriculum is for
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 1             the test prep period, but could it not be revised to
  


 2             be an additional intervention time?
  


 3                  DR. WHITEHORN:  That's a possibility.
  


 4                  MS. COFFMAN:  So I'm trying to wrap my mind
  


 5             around how a school on academic distress with less
  


 6             than 49.5% of your children needs less time?  Help me
  


 7             understand.  I understand the afterschool program,
  


 8             and I think that's wonderful, but that's optional.
  


 9             So when one of two kids needs intervention why would
  


10             we provide less?  Why would we not provide more?
  


11                  DR. WHITEHORN:  Well, and, you know, I would
  


12             agree with you if we had any evidence that it's
  


13             working.  But we really don't have any evidence that
  


14             it's working and it's not revealed in the test scores
  


15             and, you know, this is over a period of time.  If we
  


16             had some idea that it was working then we would -- of
  


17             course, we would want to continue that and support
  


18             that because that would be beneficial for our
  


19             students.  But, you know, one thing as a principal I
  


20             found over the years is that it is so important to
  


21             integrate the skills that kids need in every class.
  


22             You don't need to isolate necessarily periods to just
  


23             focus on remediation or test-taking skills so much as
  


24             in the test prep, because I know we tried study
  


25             skills, of course.  And it was not really very
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 1             effective 'cause we found out that we could do the
  


 2             study skills and test preparation and all that in all
  


 3             of our classes; you know, incorporate infusing that
  


 4             into the curriculum.  So I don't think that things
  


 5             taught in isolation like that, like test prep, so
  


 6             much are as effective when we know that we can do it
  


 7             within our normal school day in all of our classes.
  


 8             And the other thing is we just don't see the
  


 9             evidence, like I say, that it's working.
  


10                  MS. COFFMAN:  I would probably agree with you
  


11             that the isolated test prep is not the best use of
  


12             time, so let me ask the question differently.  For
  


13             the period of time that you have the students
  


14             currently, for that block of time, from the time they
  


15             arrive in the morning until the time they leave in
  


16             the afternoon, could you not exceed your -- the
  


17             length of your periods to provide more targeted
  


18             intervention within those content areas?
  


19                  DR. WHITEHORN:  That's possible.  But I think
  


20             that we are providing targeted intervention already.
  


21             I think that with the intervention classes that we
  


22             have in math and literacy we're focused specifically
  


23             on those kids that are below proficient and what
  


24             their deficits are in trying to remediate those
  


25             deficits.  That is already being done.  And I also
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 1             think that, you know, doing the math and literacy
  


 2             across the curriculum where we -- you know -- we talk
  


 3             about math skills and literacy skills in all the
  


 4             courses, that is being done.  And the -- you know --
  


 5             and I think that the afterschool program will enhance
  


 6             and support what we're trying to do with our students
  


 7             that are below proficient and help them even further.
  


 8             And, you know, so I don't necessarily agree that
  


 9             extending courses, more time, may necessarily result
  


10             in greater student achievement because there's too
  


11             many variables there.  You know, it depends on the
  


12             quality of the teachers, et cetera and a lot of
  


13             things.  And so that's the best answer I can give to
  


14             that.
  


15                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  We'll go back to Ms.
  


16             Barnes.
  


17                  MS. BARNES:  Again, thank you for being here.
  


18                  DR. WHITEHORN:  You're welcome.
  


19                  MS. BARNES:  I do have a couple of questions.
  


20             And since we've talked about the fact that the school
  


21             is a priority school, the school is also classified
  


22             in academic distress currently -- and Mrs. Ruffins
  


23             may have to address some of these.  But one of my
  


24             questions has to do with -- I need to clarify, first
  


25             of all, you said that letters were going out to the
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 1             parents currently, right now?
  


 2                  MS. RUFFINS:  Yes.
  


 3                  MS. BARNES:  Was that for academic improvement
  


 4             plans, consultation, afterschool program?
  


 5                  MS. RUFFINS:  The afterschool program.
  


 6                  MS. BARNES:  Okay.  So under the 21 CCLC, if
  


 7             parents for whatever reason do not have -- or do not
  


 8             feel that they can allow their children to remain,
  


 9             for whatever reason, those students would not have
  


10             access to this additional remediation that you're
  


11             talking about.  Is that correct?
  


12                  MS. RUFFINS:  That is correct.  We do have also
  


13             though included in our 21st Century grant a before-
  


14             school tutoring hour.  And our buses get there pretty
  


15             early and they can enroll in our before-school
  


16             program also, before school and after school; an hour
  


17             before and two hours after.
  


18                  MS. BARNES:  Okay.  So there's nothing written
  


19             into the academic improvement plans to address -- one
  


20             or the other would be a supplemental support to
  


21             academic improvement plans to provide that additional
  


22             support for those students who are below proficient?
  


23                  MS. RUFFINS:  Other than our program,
  


24             intervention that's built within the school day --
  


25                  MS. BARNES:  Okay.
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 1                  MS. RUFFINS:  -- for non-proficient students.
  


 2                  MS. BARNES:  Right.  Okay.  You're currently
  


 3             operating your program as approved.  You're asking to
  


 4             remove the test prep period.  This is effective, if
  


 5             it's granted, for this year.  What does the
  


 6             transition to that look like?  What is the
  


 7             anticipated interruption to the process of the school
  


 8             day?  Students are a month in.  How does that look?
  


 9                  MS. RUFFINS:  Not much differently in that
  


10             almost all -- well, probably 85% of our students are
  


11             bus riders and our school day normally would begin at
  


12             8:45 and with our test prep it's 8:30.  So it's only
  


13             a 15-minute difference before and 15-minutes after
  


14             the regular school day.  So if it does change, if at
  


15             all -- if at all, period, five or ten minutes
  


16             difference in the pickup time.
  


17                  MS. BARNES:  Okay.  So the pickup time, that's
  


18             -- if I were to set it over here -- I'm looking at in
  


19             your school day.  Since the students -- you've been
  


20             doing this for two, three years and they've grown
  


21             accustomed to the way the schedule is set-up; they've
  


22             started school with this same type of schedule,
  


23             anticipating what they're going to be doing.  I do
  


24             agree that it obviously is not having the impact, but
  


25             along with some of the other statements there are
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 1             other ways to look at it.  And so looking at the
  


 2             least amount of disruption to what has already begun
  


 3             and then impacting or maximizing instructional time
  


 4             -- I'm trying to visualize that -- is it just dealing
  


 5             with bus time?
  


 6                  MS. RUFFINS:  Pretty much.  Because we put the
  


 7             full 30 minutes at the beginning of the day and then
  


 8             at the end of the day; you know, the buses would come
  


 9             at 4:00 instead of 3:45.  And if we were to, you
  


10             know, embed the other 30 minutes into the day it
  


11             would afford each period about four minutes --
  


12                  MS. BARNES:  Okay.
  


13                  MS. RUFFINS:  -- each additional.
  


14                  MS. BARNES:  So my final question has to do with
  


15             what's written in your priority intervention plan,
  


16             your PIP.  Is this particular amendment request
  


17             supported through what is going on in your school
  


18             improvement planning process?
  


19                  MS. RUFFINS:  Our school -- our initial school
  


20             improvement plan is due today, so the outcome of this
  


21             meeting will determine what's written in there.
  


22                  MS. BARNES:  Okay.  But you do have -- you have
  


23             been working with --
  


24                  MS. RUFFINS:  Yes.
  


25                  MS. BARNES:  -- your data and you've looked at
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 1             attendance and how well instructors are utilizing
  


 2             their time and all of those pieces put together to
  


 3             determine that "we would like to rewrite it and pull
  


 4             this piece out to enhance the instruction process?"
  


 5             I guess what I'm really asking is how much
  


 6             conversation has gone on with school improvement
  


 7             specialists -- with the school improvement
  


 8             specialists from the Department, with the leadership
  


 9             team, to support changing this in your priority
  


10             intervention plan?
  


11                  MS. RUFFINS:  And this is my second year at
  


12             Cloverdale and we've made a few changes to that 30-
  


13             minute block since I've been there.  But there's
  


14             always been concern that the test prep time, the way
  


15             we've utilized it has been, like Dr. Whitehorn said,
  


16             the shotgun approach.  We looked at our overarching
  


17             measure of strands that we're weak in as a school,
  


18             but it hasn't been individualized to meet the needs
  


19             of the students and logistically that's kind of a
  


20             challenge.  So we've talked about it.  We have
  


21             students that arrive late and that's a concern.  You
  


22             know, we do spend money to pay the teachers to come
  


23             this time and we've got students arriving late and we
  


24             don't want that, you know, waste to be there.  For
  


25             one thing, I think with our students starting to
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 1             school a little bit later our first period should
  


 2             have all of our kids in it ready to go.  So that's
  


 3             just a thought.  We've talked about it, we've tweaked
  


 4             it, but -- and again, as Dr. Whitehorn said, you
  


 5             know, it is very difficult to determine that the
  


 6             extension of the day school-wide and the manner in
  


 7             which we've used it if it's been the most beneficial
  


 8             for our students.
  


 9                  MS. BARNES:  Thank you.
  


10                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Ms. Pfeffer.
  


11                  MS. PFEFFER:  And again we do appreciate the
  


12             fact that you're looking at your data and your
  


13             student performance and your school day and you're
  


14             looking at things that are and are not working.  But
  


15             I guess kind of going back to some of the questions
  


16             that Ms. Coffman was asking, how did you come to the
  


17             decision to shorten the day rather than to reallocate
  


18             that time in a different manner?  Who was part of
  


19             that discussion or decision-making?  How do parents
  


20             feel about the shortening of the school day?  And are
  


21             we shortening the school day more out of convenience
  


22             or are we shortening it -- you know -- are there not
  


23             other options for this extended time that would yield
  


24             different results?  Because, you know, you all -- and
  


25             just from my background I would've loved to have had
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 1             an extra 30 minutes to the school day when I was a
  


 2             principal.  So I guess my question would be, you
  


 3             know, were there other considerations and things like
  


 4             that?
  


 5                  DR. WHITEHORN:  As far as the impact on parents
  


 6             and the school, that sort of thing -- I may ask Ms.
  


 7             Ruffins later to come up but I can tell you that, you
  


 8             know, the bottom line for us if we saw evidence that
  


 9             this was working we would not be here; there is no
  


10             way that we would be here today.  And we haven't seen
  


11             that.  And, you know, it's getting back to the -- you
  


12             know -- they've tried things; they've tried different
  


13             things, my understanding, in test prep, in talking to
  


14             Ms. Ruffins.  They've tried different things and
  


15             nothing really seems to make -- is making a
  


16             significant change that we can determine as far as
  


17             the data goes.  And once again, I get back to the
  


18             argument that integrating these basic skills within
  


19             all the classes seems to work better.  And also, you
  


20             know, the fact that we had these intervention classes
  


21             in math and literacy where all these kids that need
  


22             help that are below proficient they get it too.  And
  


23             we -- you know -- we have an umbrella where we can do
  


24             different things to help those kids.  But, you know,
  


25             there was -- you know -- you know -- discussion under
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 1             the leadership team and -- the school leadership team
  


 2             and they did not see that, you know, we could get any
  


 3             data from it that it was really effective.  And I
  


 4             know the -- as far as the, you know, the parents and
  


 5             what they think, their influence or whatever, I may
  


 6             have to defer to Ms. Ruffins within the actual
  


 7             school.
  


 8                  MS. RUFFINS:  I would have --
  


 9                  DR. WHITEHORN:  Come up here.
  


10                  MS. RUFFINS:  Oh, sorry.  I talk so loud.  Just
  


11             the parents, the few parents -- we did not survey the
  


12             parents, but the ones that I spoke to concerning the
  


13             shortening of the school day, because it did not
  


14             impact a lot, you know, before school or after
  


15             school, there wasn't much opposition to it, nor was
  


16             there a lot of talk about what the purpose of the 30
  


17             minutes was either though.  It was about the
  


18             scheduling.
  


19                  MS. PFEFFER:  Okay.
  


20                  MS. RUFFINS:  And we talked about the extended
  


21             day that we would be offering our students.
  


22                  MS. PFEFFER:  Okay.  But I guess going back to
  


23             were there other considerations for what might be
  


24             done with the extended time, I'm not saying keep
  


25             doing test prep if you've recognized that isn't
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 1             working.  But were there stakeholders involved in
  


 2             looking at -- okay.  If we realize that this isn't
  


 3             working are there things we might do different within
  


 4             this time that we have with students?  You know,
  


 5             particularly, you have the intervention classes in
  


 6             place.  I don't know.  I mean, you know, is there
  


 7             evidence that those are working in the way you're
  


 8             doing them now?  So I guess our question is going
  


 9             back to is shortening the day what needs to be done
  


10             or are there other considerations that might -- and I
  


11             didn't know if you all had kind of talked through
  


12             those or if the stakeholders had been involved in
  


13             this decision or is this just something that the
  


14             school leadership has talked about?
  


15                  MS. RUFFINS:  It's not one that we discussed
  


16             other than with our 21st Century.  There's a three-
  


17             hour maximum time that we have to allow for the grant
  


18             usage and an hour can be used before school and two
  


19             hours after.  And we did discuss, you know, being
  


20             able to start our afterschool program 15 minutes
  


21             earlier.  That would allow for our kids to be home a
  


22             little bit sooner in the evening and we would
  


23             definitely target our non-proficient students.
  


24             That's the biggest discussion we had but not much
  


25             about how we would look at the 30 minutes embedded
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 1             and use it in a different way.
  


 2                  MS. PFEFFER:  And I do want to follow-up on a
  


 3             question that I had asked earlier when I was -- when
  


 4             you were talking about the actions.  You know, if
  


 5             we're not looking at -- and again going back to your
  


 6             application here, your amendment, that that
  


 7             instruction might look different during those times
  


 8             allowed.  And you said it should be in your ACSIP
  


 9             plan, so I'm assuming you have your strategies
  


10             outlined in your ACSIP plan.  What type of monitoring
  


11             will you have in place that you can be monitoring
  


12             success throughout the year to make sure that things
  


13             aren't falling off?  Because you're asking us to
  


14             shorten your day in a school where there's already
  


15             evidence of issues with student achievement, so --
  


16                  MR. GLASGOW:  May I answer that?
  


17                  MS. PFEFFER:  Okay.
  


18                  MR. GLASGOW:  Hello.  My name is Dennis Glasgow;
  


19             I'm associate superintendent for accountability.  And
  


20             we have -- of course, we'll be back talking to the
  


21             ADE board on October 14th about our plan to assist
  


22             the schools that are in academic distress, Cloverdale
  


23             being one of them, but I'll kind of let the cat out
  


24             of the bag on that a little bit with you all.  We
  


25             feel like that the main problem with Cloverdale and
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 1             with all of our schools on academic distress is
  


 2             ineffective instruction across the board.  So we have
  


 3             some actions that may sound simple but we think
  


 4             they'll be very effective.  We had training for our
  


 5             principals and our instructional facilitators and our
  


 6             teachers on several key areas that we think are
  


 7             deficits in those schools; one of them is lesson
  


 8             planning.  We even met with our teachers' union and
  


 9             got them to agree that they'll support every teacher.
  


10             And I know in some school districts across the state
  


11             I'm sure this is required but we haven't really done
  


12             it in our district.  Teachers are required to have
  


13             lesson plans.  They're required to have eight
  


14             components in their lesson plans.  They're then
  


15             trained on how to do the lesson plans.  And we found
  


16             that the biggest problems over the years at our
  


17             schools in doing our classroom walk-throughs were,
  


18             number one, student engagement was low; number two,
  


19             rigor was low; number three, rituals and routines in
  


20             the classroom and throughout the schools weren't in
  


21             place.  Now at least two of those things, student
  


22             engagement and rigor, has to be planned for.  You
  


23             can't show up in the classroom and those things just
  


24             happen.  So teachers are doing lesson plans.  The
  


25             principals are required -- and I know you remember
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 1             Smart Accountability, the state initiative, and
  


 2             principals then were required to do several hours of
  


 3             CWT's every day.  We found that CWT's -- although
  


 4             they have a place, we've suspended doing CWT's this
  


 5             year because that doesn't give direct feedback to
  


 6             teachers.  We know that there's an effect size of
  


 7             point-seven (.7) if the principal is in the classroom
  


 8             and giving feedback to the teacher on the
  


 9             instruction, what's going well and what's not going
  


10             well.  So all of our principals are required to
  


11             observe the classrooms frequently; they're required
  


12             to give the teachers good feedback.  So how do we
  


13             know that's happening?  We have an electronic tool
  


14             that when the principals go in the classrooms they
  


15             take notes electronically, they script what's
  


16             happening in the lesson, and then they give feedback
  


17             to the teacher on how the lesson went.  As soon as
  


18             they leave the classroom they push a button and that
  


19             feedback goes to the teacher.  Well, I can look at
  


20             the feedback all over the district, the
  


21             superintendent can, Dr. Whitehorn can.  We can see
  


22             exactly what principals are scripting; we can see
  


23             what principals -- what kind of feedback principals
  


24             are giving to the teachers.  Then our job, which we
  


25             have our own district 30-day plan, is that we're
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 1             providing support to the principals; at every
  


 2             leadership meeting we're training them on the
  


 3             elements in the lesson plan; we're training them on
  


 4             how to observe and give feedback.  As we look at the
  


 5             feedback that they're giving, for those principals --
  


 6             if we see that Ms. Ruffins is not visiting -- by the
  


 7             way, on the feedback form it tells the time you went
  


 8             in the classroom and the time that you left the
  


 9             classroom, so we know exactly how long the principals
  


10             are in the classrooms.  We can actually read what
  


11             they wrote; we can read the feedback that they're
  


12             giving the teachers.  So if Ms. Ruffins is not doing
  


13             her job, Dr. Whitehorn is looking at her work and
  


14             he's giving her feedback on it.  If we see there are
  


15             teachers that are not being observed and if we see
  


16             the feedback is not high-quality feedback that's
  


17             based on the lesson plan and the alignment between
  


18             the lesson plan and the instruction that's being
  


19             given then it's our job to make sure that -- to
  


20             support her in doing better.  It may be training.  So
  


21             we think the problem is what's going on in the
  


22             classroom during the normal time that's scheduled for
  


23             students to be there.  The teachers, not all of them
  


24             but especially in our schools on academic distress,
  


25             teachers aren't doing their job.  Quite frankly,
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 1             principals aren't doing their job.  And quite
  


 2             frankly, I'm not doing my job.  So we're going to all
  


 3             start doing our job and we think we have a plan in
  


 4             place to hold everyone accountable from the top down
  


 5             to the bottom and we have data that we can get.  We
  


 6             can configure the data that comes from those
  


 7             observations any way we want.  We can look at it, say
  


 8             -- let's say we have a teacher and we're looking at
  


 9             the score that you all are now producing.  And if we
  


10             see that a teacher is not very effective on student
  


11             growth, well, that teacher ought to be observed more
  


12             often.  So we can select that teacher to see how many
  


13             times that teacher was observed electronically and
  


14             see the feedback that the principal has been giving
  


15             that teacher.  So we think that we're getting to the
  


16             heart of the matter and that's what's actually
  


17             happening in the classroom during the normal time
  


18             that we have scheduled.  We can schedule all kinds of
  


19             time but unless what's going on in the classroom is
  


20             effective -- which at Cloverdale and our other
  


21             schools on academic distress obviously it hasn't been
  


22             effective; we admit that.  It has not been good and
  


23             we're responding to that.
  


24                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  How in your opinion would
  


25             keeping this time hinder the process that you've just
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 1             outlined?
  


 2                  MR. GLASGOW:  I don't think the time that we're
  


 3             talking about would have necessarily any effect on
  


 4             this process, other than we have a regular eight-
  


 5             period day at our middle schools and a teacher's
  


 6             contract is based on that eight-period day.  Now the
  


 7             extra time that they work, teachers get a per diem
  


 8             for that time.  So it is expensive to do that and we
  


 9             think there's a better way to do it at less expense.
  


10             If we thought extending the school day for four
  


11             minutes per period -- eight periods times four is 32;
  


12             so if four minutes was going to yield dividends based
  


13             upon the cost of about $340,000 that we're paying for
  


14             that we'd gladly do it.  But we think our other plan
  


15             would be less expensive and would give better
  


16             results.
  


17                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  And that was one of my
  


18             questions.  So the way that this extra time has
  


19             worked in your district is by just an hourly
  


20             timesheet type basis, not a contractual agreement
  


21             between you and the employees?
  


22                  MR. GLASGOW:  Well, no.  There's a contract but
  


23             not part of the normal contract; it's supplemental.
  


24                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  So the savings that we're
  


25             talking about here would be immediately realized?







Sharon Hill Court Reporting
(501) 847-0510


- September 17, 2014


41


  
 1                  MR. GLASGOW:  That's correct.
  


 2                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Thank you.
  


 3                  MR. GLASGOW:  Of course, you know, we're cutting
  


 4             corners on the budget as you well know.
  


 5                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  I understand.  And this
  


 6             might be a question for Ms. Perry: when is this --
  


 7             the charter for Cloverdale up for renewal?
  


 8                  MS. PERRY:  This is one of the charters with a
  


 9             contract ending in July.
  


10                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  June 30 of this year?
  


11                  MS. PERRY:  June 30 of this year, of 2015.  Yes,
  


12             sir.
  


13                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Okay.  Thank you.  Other
  


14             questions?  I think we're at Mr. Decker.
  


15                  MR. DECKER:  No questions at this time.
  


16                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Dr. Jones.
  


17                  DR. JONES:  I do have additional questions.
  


18             What are the total instructional minutes that
  


19             Cloverdale currently has, cutting out lunchtime,
  


20             passing time, just instructional minutes?
  


21                  DR. WHITEHORN:  Three-sixty.
  


22                  MS. RUFFINS:  Whatever the requirements are.
  


23                  DR. JONES:  I didn't hear that other part.
  


24                  DR. WHITEHORN:  I think it's 360.  It should be
  


25             anyway.  Let's see --
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 1                  MS. RUFFINS:  Ours is 360, whatever the
  


 2             requirements are.
  


 3                  DR. WHITEHORN:  It is 360.  It's 360, not
  


 4             including the test prep.
  


 5                  MS. RUFFINS:  Three-sixty.
  


 6                  DR. WHITEHORN:  Because it's 45 minutes per
  


 7             period and eight periods; 45 minutes per period.
  


 8                  DR. JONES:  Okay.  And so the 30 minutes would
  


 9             be additional time --
  


10                  DR. WHITEHORN:  Yes.
  


11                  DR. JONES:  -- on top of that six hours?
  


12                  DR. WHITEHORN:  Yes, ma'am.
  


13                  DR. JONES:  If you cut that back to six hours
  


14             then will that be the equivalent of all the other
  


15             middle schools?
  


16                  DR. WHITEHORN:  Yes, ma'am.
  


17                  DR. JONES:  Okay.  So this original time was
  


18             written into the charter, which was an agreement when
  


19             we approved the charter.  How now will this charter
  


20             school be different from any of your other middle
  


21             schools?
  


22                  DR. WHITEHORN:  Well, I think it will be
  


23             different in that it's an academically distressed
  


24             school and that we are focusing -- you know -- we
  


25             have a school improvement specialist assigned to this
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 1             school and intensive support from my central office
  


 2             that works with the school.  It's definitely
  


 3             different in they need extra help, and we realize
  


 4             that, because of not only priority status but because
  


 5             the school is academically distressed.  But the
  


 6             schedule will be similar to the other middle schools
  


 7             and everything.  The thing is is that, you know, by
  


 8             having the school improvement specialist assigned and
  


 9             us working with the school, you know, we just have to
  


10             provide more time and support at the school to
  


11             monitor, support, and make sure those things are done
  


12             to help those students that are in need or are below
  


13             proficient.
  


14                  DR. JONES:  Are instructional specialists not
  


15             assigned to the other middle schools in Little Rock?
  


16                  DR. WHITEHORN:  The school improvement
  


17             specialists are assigned to the priority academically
  


18             distressed schools.  They have -- now all the schools
  


19             have instructional facilitators, one in literacy and
  


20             one in math.  But, you know, we had Pearson as our
  


21             external provider here in years past and we no longer
  


22             have Pearson.  We've replaced that with school
  


23             improvement specialists for our, you know, priority
  


24             schools and academically distressed.
  


25                  DR. JONES:  I heard Ms. Ruffins say that there
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 1             was a concern getting students to school on time that
  


 2             first period.  Have you attempted to move that 30-
  


 3             minute test prep -- and I don't like that either --
  


 4             but that time to another part of the day, in the
  


 5             middle of the day?  Has the time period been moved
  


 6             itself?
  


 7                  MS. RUFFINS:  Prior to me getting there it's my
  


 8             understanding at one time it was at the end of the
  


 9             day, so -- and then when I came it was the beginning
  


10             of the day.  And if I'm not -- 'cause it's been four
  


11             years, five years, and I think at some point it may
  


12             have been in the middle of the day but they moved it
  


13             around, trying to get the most from the period.  But
  


14             I think wherever it's been there's been an issue or
  


15             two with it.
  


16                  DR. JONES:  Okay.  Thank you.
  


17                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  I've got a question.  Dr.
  


18             Jones asked about being different or how it would be
  


19             different from other middle schools.  You do have
  


20             additional waivers, some of them being in reference
  


21             to teacher licensure and physical education and world
  


22             -- or, I'm sorry -- Arkansas history.  Currently are
  


23             those waivers being utilized, meaning that you are
  


24             not giving the full PE requirements or that you have
  


25             any teachers that are not licensed currently on
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 1             staff?
  


 2                  MS. RUFFINS:  We are following the PE
  


 3             requirements for all of our students.  We do have
  


 4             only one employee that's not fully licensed, but
  


 5             other -- and we are -- we have a focus theme,
  


 6             aerospace science and technology, and the one teacher
  


 7             that is teaching in that area is not fully licensed.
  


 8             But other than that, we meet all the state
  


 9             requirements for licensure.
  


10                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Dr. Saunders.
  


11                  DR. SAUNDERS:  Other than financial, what would
  


12             be the benefit of doing this?
  


13                  DR. WHITEHORN:  Well, I think that one benefit
  


14             that would result in this is, you know, they already
  


15             have eight periods that they're moving around and
  


16             this is tacked on top of that and, you know, that's a
  


17             disadvantage of an eight-period day.  And I've been a
  


18             principal when we had block scheduling and when we've
  


19             had an eight-period day and, you know, the eight-
  


20             period day results in kids being in the hallway and
  


21             transitioning twice as much.  So this would be yet
  


22             another transition for students; you know, it would
  


23             cut down on that.  And, you know, I -- and as I said,
  


24             you know, it all gets back to the idea, you know,
  


25             it's just not working.  I mean, if it was working,
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 1             you know, you know, we would definitely keep it, but
  


 2             we just don't have any evidence that it is at this
  


 3             point.
  


 4                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Ms. Coffman.
  


 5                  MS. COFFMAN:  A point of clarification.  Your
  


 6             question was, Mr. Hernandez, that the charter would
  


 7             be reviewed at the end of this school year.  Is that
  


 8             correct?
  


 9                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Yes.
  


10                  MS. COFFMAN:  No more questions.
  


11                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Is it your -- and this may
  


12             not be a question that you can answer, but do you
  


13             intend to ask for renewal of this application at the
  


14             end of this school year?
  


15                  MR. GLASGOW:  We don't.
  


16                  DR. WHITEHORN:  No, sir.  We don't.
  


17                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Are there any other
  


18             questions?  All right.  You've heard the testimony
  


19             given here today, so I will -- let me ask Ms. Clay to
  


20             come back up and give us our options again just to
  


21             make sure we're clear.
  


22                  MS. CLAY:  You have the option of issuing a
  


23             final decision today or taking the matter under
  


24             advisement.  Part of taking the matter under
  


25             advisement is you can send the charter school back to
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 1             get more technical assistance from Department staff
  


 2             if you feel like that's something that you need.
  


 3             Otherwise, your decision is to either approve the
  


 4             amendment, deny the amendment, or take the matter
  


 5             under advisement.
  


 6                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  So I will entertain a
  


 7             motion.
  


 8                  DR. JONES:  I make the motion that this
  


 9             amendment be denied.
  


10                  MS. COFFMAN:  Second that motion.
  


11                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  You've heard the motion to
  


12             deny and a second.  All in favor say "aye."
  


13                      (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
  


14                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Any opposed?  Motion to
  


15             deny carries.
  


16   A-2:  CONSIDERATION OF THE 2013-2014 REPORT ON THE STATUS OF
  


17   THE PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS PROGRAM TO THE HOUSE INTERIM
  


18   COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND THE SENATE INTERIM COMMITTEE ON
  


19   EDUCATION
  


20                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  All right.  We'll go back
  


21             to our agenda here.  It looks like we have Ms. Perry.
  


22                  MS. PERRY:  The last item on the agenda today is
  


23             the Consideration of the 13-14 Report on the Status
  


24             of Public Charter Schools Program to the House
  


25             Interim Committee on Education and the Senate Interim
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 1             Committee on Education.  This is a report that we
  


 2             bring to you where the legislation is very brief on
  


 3             what the report is to include; it says simply that
  


 4             the authorizer is to "report on the status of the
  


 5             open-enrollment public charter school programs to the
  


 6             General Assembly each biennium and to the House
  


 7             Committee on Education and the Senate Committee on
  


 8             Education during the interim between the regular
  


 9             sessions of the Assembly."  The piece that was in
  


10             quotation marks on the description of the agenda item
  


11             is basically all that is said in that section about
  


12             what should be reported.  You will find that the
  


13             report includes district conversion charter operation
  


14             information as well.  It does seem important that
  


15             that information is included to get a true picture of
  


16             charters in Arkansas.  Although reports in the past
  


17             were many, many pages longer than this we feel like
  


18             this is in keeping with the statutory requirement.
  


19             Should you approve this today it will eventually get
  


20             to the director of Legislative Services for release
  


21             to the legislature.
  


22                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Panel, you've had a chance
  


23             to review this.  I will entertain a motion to approve
  


24             or deny this report.
  


25                  MR. DECKER:  I move to approve.
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 1                  MS. PFEFFER:  Second.
  


 2                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  I've got a motion to
  


 3             approve by Mr. Decker, second by Ms. Pfeffer.  All in
  


 4             favor say "aye."
  


 5                      (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
  


 6                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Any opposed?  Motion
  


 7             carries.
  


 8   FUTURE CAP MEETING DATES AND ADJOURNMENT
  


 9                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Ms. Perry, I don't see
  


10             anything else on our agenda for today.  And so our
  


11             next meeting will be, right now, October 13th and
  


12             14th.  Is that correct?
  


13                  MS. PERRY:  15th and 16th.
  


14                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  15th and 16th.  Okay.  I'm
  


15             off on dates here.  All right.  I will entertain a
  


16             motion to adjourn.
  


17                  MS. COFFMAN:  So moved.
  


18                  DR. SAUNDERS:  Second.
  


19                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  All in favor say "aye."
  


20                      (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
  


21                  CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  We are adjourned.
  


22
  


23               (The meeting was adjourned at 9:35 a.m.)
  


24
  


25
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              1                       P R O C E E D I N G S 


              2  REPORT 1: CHAIR'S REPORT 


              3                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Good morning.  I guess we 


              4            can call this meeting to order.  I've got 8:30.  It 


              5            looks like we'll start off with the agenda.  My name 


              6            is Mike Hernandez, Deputy Commissioner; I also serve 


              7            as the chairman of the Charter Authorizing Panel.  So 


              8            I'll start with our Chair's Report.  I don't have 


              9            much to report other than just welcome and we're 


             10            ready to do the business of the Charter Authorizing 


             11            Panel today.  So I will turn it over to Ms. Perry. 


             12  REPORT 2: UPDATE ON CURRENT CHARTER APPLICATION CYCLES 


             13                 MS. PERRY:  Good morning.  The first item -- 


             14            second report item is the current update on the 


             15            charter application cycles.  I do want to let you 


             16            know this is the last time that I'll be standing 


             17            before you with this update, that the positions have 


             18            changed as I know you're aware here, the Panel is 


             19            aware.  And I'm pleased to let you know that Cindy 


             20            Hogue is the -- Cindy, please stand up -- the 


             21            Director of the Office of Educational Options and 


             22            she'll be presenting the agenda items at all future 


             23            Charter Authorizing Panel meetings and presenting 


             24            agenda items that originate from the Charter and Home 


             25            School Unit as well as the other units that she 




                                                  �


                                                                                4




              1            oversees at state board meetings.  So these other 


              2            units do include ERZ, Scholastic Audit, School Health 


              3            Services, and Schools of Innovation.  So we're very, 


              4            very happy to make -- very, very happy to make that 


              5            announcement.  I'm also thrilled to announce that Sky 


              6            Bledsoe, who has been -- who has served for just 


              7            about a year as the Charter Program Advisor, has been 


              8            named the Coordinator of the Charter and Home Schools 


              9            Office, and they are currently looking for a Program 


             10            Advisor for the Charter -- for charter schools.  So 


             11            that's the changes that have happened in that office. 


             12                 As the update for the application cycles, there 


             13            were seven open enrollment charter applications that 


             14            were submitted by the deadline; however, KIPP Delta 


             15            Public Schools withdrew its application to instead 


             16            submit a request for licensure through the amendment 


             17            process, and this was for KIPP Forrest City College 


             18            Preparatory School.  There were -- so there remains 


             19            for you to do hearings on six remaining applicants 


             20            for open enrollment.  Since we met last, there were 


             21            applications that came in for the district conversion 


             22            schools.  Those were due in last week, on September 


             23            9th, and there were five that were submitted by 


             24            deadline and one that will not be going forward 


             25            because it was not submitted by the deadline.  So the 
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              1            hearings for the open enrollment charter applicants 


              2            and amendments: KIPP will be coming to you, there is 


              3            an amendment to their licensure, as well as one other 


              4            school that has submitted an amendment request, in 


              5            October, and those meetings will be on October 15th 


              6            and 16th.  You'll have, again, six applicant hearings 


              7            for open enrollment and you'll have two amendment 


              8            hearings. 


              9                 Then with the district conversion applications  


             10            -- I mentioned five -- those hearings are slated for 


             11            November 19th and 20th. 


             12                 The renewal applications cycle is also moving 


             13            forward and there are three open enrollment and five 


             14            district conversion charters that have contracts that 


             15            expire on June 30, 2015.  By rule, the applicant must 


             16            submit the renewal application according to a 


             17            schedule set forth by the State Board of Education.  


             18            So the timeline is going to be -- just a timeline -- 


             19            going to the State Board in October, and it will 


             20            indicate that you will be handling those -- is it 


             21            January or February, Sky? 


             22                 MS. BLEDSOE:  February. 


             23                 MS. PERRY:  The February meeting is when you'll 


             24            handle the renewal hearings.   


             25                 Housekeeping before we get to the other pieces 
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              1            of the agenda, Room 201 is reserved so that panel 


              2            members will have a place for a short lunch on the 


              3            15th and 16th.  Here's the bad news: lunch won't be 


              4            provided.  We're looking at the budget so you're kind 


              5            of on your own.  Sorry.   


              6                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Thank you, Ms. Perry. 


              7  CONSENT AGENDA 


              8                 MS. PERRY:  In the minutes would you note -- 


              9            it's the Consent Agenda, but would you note that I've 


             10            given you a revised version and the error is 


             11            highlighted where they'd like to make the strike-


             12            through and then of course any other changes that you 


             13            might request. 


             14                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  All right.  Charter 


             15            Members, you have the minutes before you so I will 


             16            give you a chance to review those and then I'll 


             17            entertain a motion.   


             18                      (FEW MOMENTS OF SILENCE) 


             19                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Ms. Coffman. 


             20                 MS. COFFMAN:  I make a motion we approve the 


             21            minutes as corrected. 


             22                 MS. BARNES:  Second. 


             23                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  I've got a motion and a 


             24            second.  All in favor say "aye." 


             25                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES) 
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              1                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Any opposed say "nay."  


              2            Motion passes. 


              3  A-1:  REQUEST FOR DISTRICT CONVERSION PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL 


              4  AMENDMENT: CLOVERDALE AEROSPACE TECHNOLOGY CONVERSION CHARTER 


              5  MIDDLE SCHOOL, LITTLE ROCK SCHOOL DISTRICT 


              6                 MS. PERRY:  Okay.  And the next item up is an 


              7            action item; it's a request for an amendment for the 


              8            district conversion public charter school, Cloverdale 


              9            Aerospace Technology Conversion Charter Middle School 


             10            in Little Rock School District.  This application was 


             11            approved by the state board from Little Rock on 


             12            January 19, 2010.  The charter is approved to serve 


             13            students in grades 6 through 8 with a maximum 


             14            enrollment of 705.  Representatives of the Little 


             15            Rock School District are appearing before the Panel 


             16            to request an amendment to the current charter.  Dr. 


             17            Daniel Whitehorn will come and speak to you about the 


             18            item and others with Little Rock -- Dr. Whitehorn is 


             19            the associate superintendent over middle schools, and 


             20            there are a few other Little Rock folks who may be 


             21            able to entertain some questions from you.  And 


             22            before that Ms. Clay is here from Legal to discuss 


             23            the process over our hearing -- conducting this 


             24            hearing today.  


             25                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Ms. Clay. 
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              1                 MS. CLAY:  Good morning.  I'll go over your 


              2            hearing procedures for the amendment request before 


              3            you today.  All parties with the exception of 


              4            attorneys need to be sworn.  The conversion charter 


              5            school will then have 20 minutes to present its case 


              6            for approval of its amendment request.  Any parties 


              7            that are opposed to the amendment request will have 


              8            20 minutes after that, and then the conversion 


              9            charter school will have an additional five minutes 


             10            in closing.  At that point you can discuss and ask 


             11            any questions that you have of anyone before you and 


             12            then either issue a final decision today, take the 


             13            matter under advisement, or allow the charter school 


             14            to come back and get some technical assistance and 


             15            bring the matter back before you at another meeting.  


             16            Are there any questions on that? 


             17                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Okay.  We'll get started.  


             18            I want to go ahead and -- if there's anybody here 


             19            speaking for or against this amendment, if they'd 


             20            please stand to be sworn in, if you'd raise your 


             21            right hand.  Do you swear or affirm to tell the 


             22            truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth? 


             23               (ALL SPEAKERS ANSWERED AFFIRMATIVELY) 


             24                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  All right.  Thank you.   


             25                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Good morning.  Mr. Chair, Mr. 
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              1            Hernandez, and Members of the Charter Authorizing 


              2            Panel, my name is Dan Whitehorn; I'm associate 


              3            superintendent of Little Rock School District.  And 


              4            we are requesting that the test prep period at 


              5            Cloverdale Conversion -- Cloverdale Aerospace 


              6            Technology Conversion Charter School -- gosh, that's 


              7            a long name -- we're requesting that we eliminate 


              8            that test prep period.  And really our two main 


              9            arguments on this, number one, it just hasn't worked.  


             10            And at this point from the data we have, when we 


             11            looked at the latest update, when we looked at the 


             12            latest benchmark scores what we found is that for all 


             13            students at the school, you know, the literacy scores 


             14            have actually decreased over the past two years by 


             15            one percent (1%) and that the math scores have 


             16            decreased by eight percent (8%) at the school.  The 


             17            other thing is that we're not sure test prep is 


             18            effective as a separate course, that we think that 


             19            test-taking skills can be integrated into all the 


             20            courses at the school.  And another thing that we've 


             21            had for the -- and this is the third year in the 


             22            Little Rock School District we've had built-in math 


             23            and literacy classes, intervention classes that are 


             24            specifically designed for kids that are below 


             25            proficient, that scored below proficient on the math 
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              1            and/or literacy tests and that's built-in within the 


              2            normal school day.  And those teachers work on the 


              3            students where they need extra help, the skills that 


              4            need help.  They collaborate and work with the 


              5            students' regular math teachers and their regular 


              6            English teachers too, and by working together they 


              7            can focus on those skills that the kids need 


              8            remediation in and help in.  So we found that -- you 


              9            know -- that that helps. 


             10                 The other thing is that we do -- you know -- the 


             11            school does have an afterschool program through a 


             12            21st Century grant that they obtained and that is 


             13            also helping those schools, the students below 


             14            proficient.  It is open to all students.  It is an 


             15            opportunity to work with those students on the basic 


             16            skills, enrichment, and homework help.  And -- but 


             17            that, you know, our thing is, you know, at this point 


             18            we don't see that it's working and, you know, we -- 


             19            because it's not working we don't see the need to 


             20            continue it.  And that's kind of our rationale for 


             21            these two main arguments right here. 


             22                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Is there anybody else that 


             23            you have to speak? 


             24                 DR. WHITEHORN:  I don't think so.  I have -- in 


             25            case of questions I have some -- you know -- I have 
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              1            Dennis Glasgow, he's associate superintendent for 


              2            accountability for the district, and I have Wanda 


              3            Ruffins, who is the principal of Cloverdale. 


              4                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  To answer questions? 


              5                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Yes, sir.  But not to speak. 


              6                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  All right.  So you want to 


              7            yield your time to -- 


              8                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Yes, sir.  I may have to.  I 


              9            mean, I'm not going to make up something or whatever. 


             10                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Right. 


             11                 DR. WHITEHORN:  So there may be some things I 


             12            don't know. 


             13                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Okay.  Fair enough.  Thank 


             14            you. 


             15                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Okay. 


             16                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Is there anybody here to 


             17            speak against the amendment?   


             18                     (BRIEF MOMENT OF SILENCE) 


             19                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Okay.  All right.  We'll 


             20            entertain questions.  We can -- we'll just go around 


             21            the table and, Ms. Barnes, we'll start with you if 


             22            you want to -- have any questions you'd like to ask. 


             23                 MS. BARNES:  I don't have any at this time. 


             24                 MS. PFEFFER:  Good morning.  Thank you -- 


             25                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Good morning. 
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              1                 MS. PFEFFER:  -- for being here.  


              2                 DR. WHITEHORN:  You're welcome. 


              3                 MS. PFEFFER:  One of the questions that -- in 


              4            just reading the amendment that -- and you do point 


              5            out that, you know, obviously this is not impacting 


              6            your student achievement and you talk about that test 


              7            prep will be included as a normal and integral part 


              8            of instruction in the various subjects.  So I guess 


              9            I'm wondering what do you envision this looking like 


             10            if, you know, we're taking something that originally 


             11            was part of the charter that's designed as a way to 


             12            help students and now, you know, it's going to become 


             13            part of that?  What kind of -- what is that going to 


             14            look like?  What kind of training are teachers going 


             15            to get? 


             16                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Well, one thing that we have 


             17            been doing for a few years in the middle school is 


             18            we've -- you know -- there's been a strong focus on 


             19            accompanying PD with it, of doing math -- a focus on 


             20            math and literacy across the curriculum in all the 


             21            courses, not just the core courses but your related 


             22            art courses too.  And really we found another way 


             23            that that is successful is that they can -- that 


             24            teachers can teach their own curriculum while 


             25            integrating math and literacy skills as they 
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              1            naturally occur.  When you think about it almost any 


              2            course you can think of they've got some math and 


              3            literacy in it.  And what we've used to help with 


              4            that too, we have -- we call them instructional 


              5            facilitators now.  All the middle schools have a math 


              6            instructional facilitator and a literacy -- earlier, 


              7            they were called academic coaches but their job 


              8            duties are very similar to what they've always been.  


              9            But they help coordinate that and help the teachers 


             10            get materials they need to do that and, you know, the 


             11            PD for it and that sort of thing.  But that is one 


             12            way that a lot of the things that these kids need 


             13            that are below proficient, the skills they need are 


             14            integrated into all courses. 


             15                 MS. PFEFFER:  Okay.  So have you all developed 


             16            then a plan with teachers to talk about, okay, this 


             17            is maybe how instruction is going to look a little 


             18            different during the regular class time?  Is there -- 


             19            has there been a plan for those instructional 


             20            facilitators to be in those classes and the teachers 


             21            --  


             22                 DR. WHITEHORN:  You know, I may have to -- there 


             23            should be.  Let me put it that way: it really should 


             24            be in the ACSIP, in the school's School Improvement 


             25            Plan.  It should be incorporated into that.  Now Ms. 
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              1            Ruffins might be able to address more specifically 


              2            what you're saying since she's right there in the 


              3            building, you know, what you're asking me, because -- 


              4            is it okay if I let her -- 


              5                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Ms. Ruffins, please come on 


              6            up to the mike. 


              7                 MS. RUFFINS:  Good morning.  Well, as Dr. 


              8            Whitehorn alluded to, our intervention classes -- all 


              9            of our students that are not proficient are directly 


             10            placed into the intervention classes and our 


             11            instructional facilitators work directly in 


             12            collaboration with our classroom teachers.  In the 


             13            math classes they are front-loading the specific 


             14            skills that the regular classroom teacher is teaching 


             15            and most students are front-loaded in the 


             16            intervention classes in math and in literacy.  We 


             17            found that our students' reading ability was so low 


             18            and there is reading instruction and the students are 


             19            there every single day -- and we found that, as 


             20            opposed to test prep, with the intervention classes.  


             21            Test prep, yes, it did extend the day but it was 


             22            general in terms of working with the students' needs 


             23            and in our intervention classes it's more specific, 


             24            catered directly to the individual needs of the 


             25            students.  And in our extended day program that we're 
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              1            about to start we've targeted -- again, all of our 


              2            students in the intervention classes for literacy and 


              3            math will have access to our extended day and that's 


              4            a two-hour period at the end of each day, Monday 


              5            through Thursday. 


              6                 MS. PFEFFER:  Okay.  Have you had the 


              7            intervention classes in place?  Currently, do you 


              8            have those in place and have you had them the past 


              9            couple of years? 


             10                 MS. RUFFINS:  Yes, we have.  And they are -- I 


             11            mean, it's -- we started it two years ago with our 


             12            eight-period day for middle school classes for 


             13            literacy and math, and we're evolving.  I mean, every 


             14            year we make a little change in how the intervention 


             15            instruction is presented and delivered to our 


             16            students.  And this year our instructional 


             17            facilitators -- whereas in the past they've not 


             18            worked directly with the students; they work mainly 


             19            with our teachers -- they're going to be pulling 


             20            small groups from our intervention classes also.   


             21                 MS. PFEFFER:  This would be a change you all 


             22            would want to enact -- 


             23                 MS. RUFFINS:  This year. 


             24                 MS. PFEFFER:  -- this year? 


             25                 MS. RUFFINS:  Yes. 
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              1                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Mr. Decker. 


              2                 MR. DECKER:  Thank you for your presentation.  


              3            I'm looking at the handout that was provided, the 


              4            Cloverdale Amendment Request, and I believe you 


              5            recall as well that literacy scores have decreased 


              6            about one percent (1%) over the past two years; math 


              7            scores have decreased about eight percent (8%) over 


              8            the same time period.  I'm looking at the amendment 


              9            request and towards the bottom of the rationale it 


             10            states, "District central office curriculum 


             11            instruction team will provide support or resources to 


             12            the school's leadership to support and monitor this 


             13            effort."  So my question is: what are those specific 


             14            supports or resources that the district is planning 


             15            to put into place to help with these efforts, 


             16            particularly considering that we're talking about or 


             17            discussing removing that test prep period? 


             18                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Right.  Well, one thing that the 


             19            district is -- you know -- the district no longer has 


             20            an external provider.  But what we do have and what 


             21            we think may be more effective in the long-run is 


             22            we've assigned School Improvement Specialists to work 


             23            with the schools.  And I believe Dr. Cleaver, who's 


             24            Director of Mathematics, Secondary Mathematics in the 


             25            district, has been assigned to Cloverdale.  But she 
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              1            is there working closely with the school's leadership 


              2            team and with the school and providing support and 


              3            guidance and extra help there.  But we also have 


              4            other individuals in the central office positions 


              5            that go into the school and assist.  We, you know, 


              6            have a director of literacy; you know, we have health 


              7            and science, social studies; we have ESL support and 


              8            help, and Cloverdale has a fairly significant 


              9            population of ESL students.  And I go to the school 


             10            myself, you know, quite a bit and go to the 


             11            leadership team meetings and work with them too.  But 


             12            we realize that, you know, we have to give them all 


             13            the extra help and all the support that they need 


             14            because this is an academically distressed school.  


             15            And what has been -- well, you know, the shotgun 


             16            approach doesn't work; you know, we have to be much 


             17            more strategic, much more systematic with everything 


             18            we do and target those areas where, you know, there 


             19            are instructional weaknesses and give the extra 


             20            support to those students that are below proficient 


             21            and don't wait till the end of the game to find out 


             22            how they're doing.  But to measure that, you know, on 


             23            a regular basis and give -- you know -- I'm getting 


             24            into a lot of education talk so forgive me but I get 


             25            carried away.  But, you know, we realize they're 
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              1            going to need a lot of support and we're trying to 


              2            give them all the support that we possibly can. 


              3                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Dr. Jones. 


              4                 DR. JONES:  I have a question specifically about 


              5            the schedule change for the students, so it may take 


              6            Ms. Ruffins to answer this question. 


              7                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Yes, ma'am. 


              8                 DR. JONES:  But can you tell me the difference  


              9            -- I heard you say that remediation is in addition to 


             10            the core class.  Tell me how the schedule changes for 


             11            a student that is non-proficient in both math and 


             12            literacy -- if this were granted how is it going to 


             13            change for a student? 


             14                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Well, if they're non-proficient 


             15            for both math and literacy they would have to take an 


             16            intervention class in math and literacy.  And the 


             17            intervention classes meet every other day, so on one 


             18            day they'd have a math class and the next class 


             19            they'd have -- they'd still have the regular English 


             20            and the regular math class in addition to that.  And 


             21            I do believe now if you had to take intervention in 


             22            both math and literacy it might cut down on your 


             23            electives; you know, you wouldn't have as many 


             24            electives that you could take because of that.  Now 


             25            possibly one elective that you would be able to take, 
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              1            for example, in the 6th grade but there are students 


              2            -- typically, we've found that if they're below 


              3            proficient in for example literacy, chances are 


              4            they're below -- a lot of the same students are below 


              5            proficient in math too.  So there are a lot of, you 


              6            know, kids that have to take both intervention 


              7            classes in math and literacy. 


              8                 DR. JONES:  Okay.  And I hear you talking about 


              9            the afterschool 21st Century program and it sounds as 


             10            if this will be an additional -- 


             11                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Yes, ma'am. 


             12                 DR. JONES:  -- educational time for students.  


             13            Is transportation provided for those students? 


             14                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Yes, ma'am.  It definitely is.  


             15            Am I not correct, Ms. Ruffins? 


             16                 MS. RUFFINS:  That is correct. 


             17                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Okay. 


             18                 DR. JONES:  Okay.  And then the communication to 


             19            the parents for those students that are non-


             20            proficient, do you have the number of students that 


             21            are going to participate? 


             22                 MS. RUFFINS:  We're in the process of getting 


             23            that information as we speak.  We targeted our non-


             24            proficient students through their literacy and math 


             25            intervention classes and mail-outs have gone out to 
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              1            them and we're waiting for our parents to respond.  


              2            But our target date to get it all launched is October 


              3            1, so we're well into it; we're just getting our 


              4            final number. 


              5                 DR. JONES:  And then one -- I have one final 


              6            question.  Can you speak to your RTI program within 


              7            the school?  Is that developed?  And tell us a little 


              8            bit about your program? 


              9                 MS. RUFFINS:  What we -- and it's our S-BIT team 


             10            and it's similar to that where we are -- 


             11                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  If you would, just please 


             12            come to the mic. 


             13                 MS. RUFFINS:  Yes.  We have an S-BIT team and 


             14            that's a team where we look at interventions within 


             15            our school when students are not performing 


             16            academically or are experiencing behavior issues.  


             17            Then we've got a team within our school and we look 


             18            at interventions to address those specific areas for 


             19            those students.  But it's an ongoing process.  We 


             20            meet -- it's scheduled monthly but we can call a 


             21            meeting at any time during our collaboration and our 


             22            RTI team for those students. 


             23                 DR. JONES:  Thank you. 


             24                 MR. WHITEHORN:  By the way, S-BIT stands for 


             25            School-Based Intervention Team in case anybody is 
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              1            wondering. 


              2                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  All right.  Dr. Saunders. 


              3                 DR. SAUNDERS:  Good morning.  To clarify, this 


              4            would be in effect the request for this current 


              5            school year? 


              6                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Yes, sir. 


              7                 DR. SAUNDERS:  When you first talked about the 


              8            percent proficiency being decreased in literacy and 


              9            math and concern about the effectiveness of this 


             10            program do you feel that those would've been greater, 


             11            the decreases, if this program was not in place? 


             12                 DR. WHITEHORN:  I can't honestly answer that.  I 


             13            don't know.  I mean, I really don't know, to tell you 


             14            the truth.  You know, maybe it helped and maybe we 


             15            just can't see it; maybe the decrease would've been 


             16            worse if we'd not had it.  I mean, that just is the 


             17            most honest answer I can give you -- but, you know, I 


             18            really don't know. 


             19                 DR. SAUNDERS:  Okay.  On the -- are you looking 


             20            at viewing, the way I understand it, possibly the 21 


             21            CCLC as being a replacement to this program? 


             22                 DR. WHITEHORN:  No, sir.  I don't think so at 


             23            all.  I definitely don't view it that way and I don't 


             24            think Ms. Ruffins does either.  We just -- having 


             25            been a principal for years -- I was principal for 
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              1            years at Pulaski Heights Middle School and we did 


              2            everything in the district, Little Rock School 


              3            District.  And we -- you know -- those kids below 


              4            proficient, I found over the years that you have to 


              5            do everything you can to help those kids and they 


              6            have to -- you have to set in those specific 


              7            interventions and you have to monitor that over time.  


              8            But it's not -- you know -- back when I was doing it 


              9            we didn't have the built-in intervention classes but 


             10            you had to look at before-school tutoring, you had to 


             11            look at tutoring, you had to look at working with, 


             12            you know, the afterschool program, anything that you 


             13            could do to help those kids below-proficient.  We 


             14            think it would enhance, it would help, but we 


             15            certainly don't view it as a replacement for the test 


             16            prep period. 


             17                 DR. SAUNDERS:  And enrollment in the 21 CCLC, 


             18            that would be optional? 


             19                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Yes, sir.  Yes, sir. 


             20                 DR. SAUNDERS:  Would students be able to fulfill 


             21            their intervention requirements by attending the 21 


             22            CCLC? 


             23                 DR. WHITEHORN:  No, sir.  No, sir.  They still 


             24            have to go to intervention classes because the 


             25            intervention classes are tied into their academic -- 
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              1            their AIP's, their academic improvement plans.  And, 


              2            you know, we're required by the, you know, ADE, the 


              3            state, to do things and to help remediate those kids 


              4            that are below proficient, everything we can, so -- 


              5            no, sir.  No. 


              6                 DR. SAUNDERS:  All right.  That's all I have 


              7            right now. 


              8                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Ms. Coffman. 


              9                 MS. COFFMAN:  Thank you for being here today -- 


             10                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Thank you. 


             11                 MS. COFFMAN:  -- and thank you for your 


             12            presentation.  I'd like to first start off by 


             13            clarifying in my mind what I think I heard you say.  


             14            Currently, today, you have an eight-period day plus a 


             15            test prep period.  Is that correct? 


             16                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Yes, ma'am.  The test prep 


             17            period is right before school.  It's -- I mean, not 


             18            before school; it's at the beginning of school, and 


             19            then you also have the eight-period day.  Right. 


             20                 MS. COFFMAN:  Okay.  So how long is your test 


             21            prep period currently? 


             22                 DR. WHITEHORN:  It's 30 minutes. 


             23                 MS. COFFMAN:  And under the current charter 


             24            could that test prep period, instead of being focused 


             25            on -- and I'm not sure what your curriculum is for 
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              1            the test prep period, but could it not be revised to 


              2            be an additional intervention time? 


              3                 DR. WHITEHORN:  That's a possibility. 


              4                 MS. COFFMAN:  So I'm trying to wrap my mind 


              5            around how a school on academic distress with less 


              6            than 49.5% of your children needs less time?  Help me 


              7            understand.  I understand the afterschool program, 


              8            and I think that's wonderful, but that's optional.  


              9            So when one of two kids needs intervention why would 


             10            we provide less?  Why would we not provide more? 


             11                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Well, and, you know, I would 


             12            agree with you if we had any evidence that it's 


             13            working.  But we really don't have any evidence that 


             14            it's working and it's not revealed in the test scores 


             15            and, you know, this is over a period of time.  If we 


             16            had some idea that it was working then we would -- of 


             17            course, we would want to continue that and support 


             18            that because that would be beneficial for our 


             19            students.  But, you know, one thing as a principal I 


             20            found over the years is that it is so important to 


             21            integrate the skills that kids need in every class.  


             22            You don't need to isolate necessarily periods to just 


             23            focus on remediation or test-taking skills so much as 


             24            in the test prep, because I know we tried study 


             25            skills, of course.  And it was not really very 
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              1            effective 'cause we found out that we could do the 


              2            study skills and test preparation and all that in all 


              3            of our classes; you know, incorporate infusing that 


              4            into the curriculum.  So I don't think that things 


              5            taught in isolation like that, like test prep, so 


              6            much are as effective when we know that we can do it 


              7            within our normal school day in all of our classes.  


              8            And the other thing is we just don't see the 


              9            evidence, like I say, that it's working.   


             10                 MS. COFFMAN:  I would probably agree with you 


             11            that the isolated test prep is not the best use of 


             12            time, so let me ask the question differently.  For 


             13            the period of time that you have the students 


             14            currently, for that block of time, from the time they 


             15            arrive in the morning until the time they leave in 


             16            the afternoon, could you not exceed your -- the 


             17            length of your periods to provide more targeted 


             18            intervention within those content areas? 


             19                 DR. WHITEHORN:  That's possible.  But I think 


             20            that we are providing targeted intervention already.  


             21            I think that with the intervention classes that we 


             22            have in math and literacy we're focused specifically 


             23            on those kids that are below proficient and what 


             24            their deficits are in trying to remediate those 


             25            deficits.  That is already being done.  And I also 
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              1            think that, you know, doing the math and literacy 


              2            across the curriculum where we -- you know -- we talk 


              3            about math skills and literacy skills in all the 


              4            courses, that is being done.  And the -- you know -- 


              5            and I think that the afterschool program will enhance 


              6            and support what we're trying to do with our students 


              7            that are below proficient and help them even further.  


              8            And, you know, so I don't necessarily agree that 


              9            extending courses, more time, may necessarily result 


             10            in greater student achievement because there's too 


             11            many variables there.  You know, it depends on the 


             12            quality of the teachers, et cetera and a lot of 


             13            things.  And so that's the best answer I can give to 


             14            that. 


             15                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  We'll go back to Ms. 


             16            Barnes. 


             17                 MS. BARNES:  Again, thank you for being here.   


             18                 DR. WHITEHORN:  You're welcome. 


             19                 MS. BARNES:  I do have a couple of questions.  


             20            And since we've talked about the fact that the school 


             21            is a priority school, the school is also classified 


             22            in academic distress currently -- and Mrs. Ruffins 


             23            may have to address some of these.  But one of my 


             24            questions has to do with -- I need to clarify, first 


             25            of all, you said that letters were going out to the 
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              1            parents currently, right now? 


              2                 MS. RUFFINS:  Yes. 


              3                 MS. BARNES:  Was that for academic improvement 


              4            plans, consultation, afterschool program? 


              5                 MS. RUFFINS:  The afterschool program. 


              6                 MS. BARNES:  Okay.  So under the 21 CCLC, if 


              7            parents for whatever reason do not have -- or do not 


              8            feel that they can allow their children to remain, 


              9            for whatever reason, those students would not have 


             10            access to this additional remediation that you're 


             11            talking about.  Is that correct? 


             12                 MS. RUFFINS:  That is correct.  We do have also 


             13            though included in our 21st Century grant a before-


             14            school tutoring hour.  And our buses get there pretty 


             15            early and they can enroll in our before-school 


             16            program also, before school and after school; an hour 


             17            before and two hours after. 


             18                 MS. BARNES:  Okay.  So there's nothing written 


             19            into the academic improvement plans to address -- one 


             20            or the other would be a supplemental support to 


             21            academic improvement plans to provide that additional 


             22            support for those students who are below proficient? 


             23                 MS. RUFFINS:  Other than our program, 


             24            intervention that's built within the school day -- 


             25                 MS. BARNES:  Okay. 
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              1                 MS. RUFFINS:  -- for non-proficient students. 


              2                 MS. BARNES:  Right.  Okay.  You're currently 


              3            operating your program as approved.  You're asking to 


              4            remove the test prep period.  This is effective, if 


              5            it's granted, for this year.  What does the 


              6            transition to that look like?  What is the 


              7            anticipated interruption to the process of the school 


              8            day?  Students are a month in.  How does that look? 


              9                 MS. RUFFINS:  Not much differently in that 


             10            almost all -- well, probably 85% of our students are 


             11            bus riders and our school day normally would begin at 


             12            8:45 and with our test prep it's 8:30.  So it's only 


             13            a 15-minute difference before and 15-minutes after 


             14            the regular school day.  So if it does change, if at 


             15            all -- if at all, period, five or ten minutes 


             16            difference in the pickup time.   


             17                 MS. BARNES:  Okay.  So the pickup time, that's  


             18            -- if I were to set it over here -- I'm looking at in 


             19            your school day.  Since the students -- you've been 


             20            doing this for two, three years and they've grown 


             21            accustomed to the way the schedule is set-up; they've 


             22            started school with this same type of schedule, 


             23            anticipating what they're going to be doing.  I do 


             24            agree that it obviously is not having the impact, but 


             25            along with some of the other statements there are 
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              1            other ways to look at it.  And so looking at the 


              2            least amount of disruption to what has already begun 


              3            and then impacting or maximizing instructional time  


              4            -- I'm trying to visualize that -- is it just dealing 


              5            with bus time? 


              6                 MS. RUFFINS:  Pretty much.  Because we put the 


              7            full 30 minutes at the beginning of the day and then 


              8            at the end of the day; you know, the buses would come 


              9            at 4:00 instead of 3:45.  And if we were to, you 


             10            know, embed the other 30 minutes into the day it 


             11            would afford each period about four minutes -- 


             12                 MS. BARNES:  Okay. 


             13                 MS. RUFFINS:  -- each additional. 


             14                 MS. BARNES:  So my final question has to do with 


             15            what's written in your priority intervention plan, 


             16            your PIP.  Is this particular amendment request 


             17            supported through what is going on in your school 


             18            improvement planning process? 


             19                 MS. RUFFINS:  Our school -- our initial school 


             20            improvement plan is due today, so the outcome of this 


             21            meeting will determine what's written in there. 


             22                 MS. BARNES:  Okay.  But you do have -- you have 


             23            been working with -- 


             24                 MS. RUFFINS:  Yes. 


             25                 MS. BARNES:  -- your data and you've looked at 
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              1            attendance and how well instructors are utilizing 


              2            their time and all of those pieces put together to 


              3            determine that "we would like to rewrite it and pull 


              4            this piece out to enhance the instruction process?"  


              5            I guess what I'm really asking is how much 


              6            conversation has gone on with school improvement 


              7            specialists -- with the school improvement 


              8            specialists from the Department, with the leadership 


              9            team, to support changing this in your priority 


             10            intervention plan? 


             11                 MS. RUFFINS:  And this is my second year at 


             12            Cloverdale and we've made a few changes to that 30-


             13            minute block since I've been there.  But there's 


             14            always been concern that the test prep time, the way 


             15            we've utilized it has been, like Dr. Whitehorn said, 


             16            the shotgun approach.  We looked at our overarching 


             17            measure of strands that we're weak in as a school, 


             18            but it hasn't been individualized to meet the needs 


             19            of the students and logistically that's kind of a 


             20            challenge.  So we've talked about it.  We have 


             21            students that arrive late and that's a concern.  You 


             22            know, we do spend money to pay the teachers to come 


             23            this time and we've got students arriving late and we 


             24            don't want that, you know, waste to be there.  For 


             25            one thing, I think with our students starting to 
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              1            school a little bit later our first period should 


              2            have all of our kids in it ready to go.  So that's 


              3            just a thought.  We've talked about it, we've tweaked 


              4            it, but -- and again, as Dr. Whitehorn said, you 


              5            know, it is very difficult to determine that the 


              6            extension of the day school-wide and the manner in 


              7            which we've used it if it's been the most beneficial 


              8            for our students. 


              9                 MS. BARNES:  Thank you. 


             10                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Ms. Pfeffer. 


             11                 MS. PFEFFER:  And again we do appreciate the 


             12            fact that you're looking at your data and your 


             13            student performance and your school day and you're 


             14            looking at things that are and are not working.  But 


             15            I guess kind of going back to some of the questions 


             16            that Ms. Coffman was asking, how did you come to the 


             17            decision to shorten the day rather than to reallocate 


             18            that time in a different manner?  Who was part of 


             19            that discussion or decision-making?  How do parents 


             20            feel about the shortening of the school day?  And are 


             21            we shortening the school day more out of convenience 


             22            or are we shortening it -- you know -- are there not 


             23            other options for this extended time that would yield 


             24            different results?  Because, you know, you all -- and 


             25            just from my background I would've loved to have had 
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              1            an extra 30 minutes to the school day when I was a 


              2            principal.  So I guess my question would be, you 


              3            know, were there other considerations and things like 


              4            that? 


              5                 DR. WHITEHORN:  As far as the impact on parents 


              6            and the school, that sort of thing -- I may ask Ms. 


              7            Ruffins later to come up but I can tell you that, you 


              8            know, the bottom line for us if we saw evidence that 


              9            this was working we would not be here; there is no 


             10            way that we would be here today.  And we haven't seen 


             11            that.  And, you know, it's getting back to the -- you 


             12            know -- they've tried things; they've tried different 


             13            things, my understanding, in test prep, in talking to 


             14            Ms. Ruffins.  They've tried different things and 


             15            nothing really seems to make -- is making a 


             16            significant change that we can determine as far as 


             17            the data goes.  And once again, I get back to the 


             18            argument that integrating these basic skills within 


             19            all the classes seems to work better.  And also, you 


             20            know, the fact that we had these intervention classes 


             21            in math and literacy where all these kids that need 


             22            help that are below proficient they get it too.  And 


             23            we -- you know -- we have an umbrella where we can do 


             24            different things to help those kids.  But, you know, 


             25            there was -- you know -- you know -- discussion under 
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              1            the leadership team and -- the school leadership team 


              2            and they did not see that, you know, we could get any 


              3            data from it that it was really effective.  And I 


              4            know the -- as far as the, you know, the parents and 


              5            what they think, their influence or whatever, I may 


              6            have to defer to Ms. Ruffins within the actual 


              7            school. 


              8                 MS. RUFFINS:  I would have -- 


              9                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Come up here. 


             10                 MS. RUFFINS:  Oh, sorry.  I talk so loud.  Just 


             11            the parents, the few parents -- we did not survey the 


             12            parents, but the ones that I spoke to concerning the 


             13            shortening of the school day, because it did not 


             14            impact a lot, you know, before school or after 


             15            school, there wasn't much opposition to it, nor was 


             16            there a lot of talk about what the purpose of the 30 


             17            minutes was either though.  It was about the 


             18            scheduling. 


             19                 MS. PFEFFER:  Okay. 


             20                 MS. RUFFINS:  And we talked about the extended 


             21            day that we would be offering our students. 


             22                 MS. PFEFFER:  Okay.  But I guess going back to 


             23            were there other considerations for what might be 


             24            done with the extended time, I'm not saying keep 


             25            doing test prep if you've recognized that isn't 




                                                  �


                                                                               34




              1            working.  But were there stakeholders involved in 


              2            looking at -- okay.  If we realize that this isn't 


              3            working are there things we might do different within 


              4            this time that we have with students?  You know, 


              5            particularly, you have the intervention classes in 


              6            place.  I don't know.  I mean, you know, is there 


              7            evidence that those are working in the way you're 


              8            doing them now?  So I guess our question is going 


              9            back to is shortening the day what needs to be done 


             10            or are there other considerations that might -- and I 


             11            didn't know if you all had kind of talked through 


             12            those or if the stakeholders had been involved in 


             13            this decision or is this just something that the 


             14            school leadership has talked about? 


             15                 MS. RUFFINS:  It's not one that we discussed 


             16            other than with our 21st Century.  There's a three-


             17            hour maximum time that we have to allow for the grant 


             18            usage and an hour can be used before school and two 


             19            hours after.  And we did discuss, you know, being 


             20            able to start our afterschool program 15 minutes 


             21            earlier.  That would allow for our kids to be home a 


             22            little bit sooner in the evening and we would 


             23            definitely target our non-proficient students.  


             24            That's the biggest discussion we had but not much 


             25            about how we would look at the 30 minutes embedded 




                                                  �


                                                                               35




              1            and use it in a different way. 


              2                 MS. PFEFFER:  And I do want to follow-up on a 


              3            question that I had asked earlier when I was -- when 


              4            you were talking about the actions.  You know, if 


              5            we're not looking at -- and again going back to your 


              6            application here, your amendment, that that 


              7            instruction might look different during those times 


              8            allowed.  And you said it should be in your ACSIP 


              9            plan, so I'm assuming you have your strategies 


             10            outlined in your ACSIP plan.  What type of monitoring 


             11            will you have in place that you can be monitoring 


             12            success throughout the year to make sure that things 


             13            aren't falling off?  Because you're asking us to 


             14            shorten your day in a school where there's already 


             15            evidence of issues with student achievement, so -- 


             16                 MR. GLASGOW:  May I answer that? 


             17                 MS. PFEFFER:  Okay. 


             18                 MR. GLASGOW:  Hello.  My name is Dennis Glasgow; 


             19            I'm associate superintendent for accountability.  And 


             20            we have -- of course, we'll be back talking to the 


             21            ADE board on October 14th about our plan to assist 


             22            the schools that are in academic distress, Cloverdale 


             23            being one of them, but I'll kind of let the cat out 


             24            of the bag on that a little bit with you all.  We 


             25            feel like that the main problem with Cloverdale and 




                                                  �


                                                                               36




              1            with all of our schools on academic distress is 


              2            ineffective instruction across the board.  So we have 


              3            some actions that may sound simple but we think 


              4            they'll be very effective.  We had training for our 


              5            principals and our instructional facilitators and our 


              6            teachers on several key areas that we think are 


              7            deficits in those schools; one of them is lesson 


              8            planning.  We even met with our teachers' union and 


              9            got them to agree that they'll support every teacher.  


             10            And I know in some school districts across the state 


             11            I'm sure this is required but we haven't really done 


             12            it in our district.  Teachers are required to have 


             13            lesson plans.  They're required to have eight 


             14            components in their lesson plans.  They're then 


             15            trained on how to do the lesson plans.  And we found 


             16            that the biggest problems over the years at our 


             17            schools in doing our classroom walk-throughs were, 


             18            number one, student engagement was low; number two, 


             19            rigor was low; number three, rituals and routines in 


             20            the classroom and throughout the schools weren't in 


             21            place.  Now at least two of those things, student 


             22            engagement and rigor, has to be planned for.  You 


             23            can't show up in the classroom and those things just 


             24            happen.  So teachers are doing lesson plans.  The 


             25            principals are required -- and I know you remember 
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              1            Smart Accountability, the state initiative, and 


              2            principals then were required to do several hours of 


              3            CWT's every day.  We found that CWT's -- although 


              4            they have a place, we've suspended doing CWT's this 


              5            year because that doesn't give direct feedback to 


              6            teachers.  We know that there's an effect size of 


              7            point-seven (.7) if the principal is in the classroom 


              8            and giving feedback to the teacher on the 


              9            instruction, what's going well and what's not going 


             10            well.  So all of our principals are required to 


             11            observe the classrooms frequently; they're required 


             12            to give the teachers good feedback.  So how do we 


             13            know that's happening?  We have an electronic tool 


             14            that when the principals go in the classrooms they 


             15            take notes electronically, they script what's 


             16            happening in the lesson, and then they give feedback 


             17            to the teacher on how the lesson went.  As soon as 


             18            they leave the classroom they push a button and that 


             19            feedback goes to the teacher.  Well, I can look at 


             20            the feedback all over the district, the 


             21            superintendent can, Dr. Whitehorn can.  We can see 


             22            exactly what principals are scripting; we can see 


             23            what principals -- what kind of feedback principals 


             24            are giving to the teachers.  Then our job, which we 


             25            have our own district 30-day plan, is that we're 
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              1            providing support to the principals; at every 


              2            leadership meeting we're training them on the 


              3            elements in the lesson plan; we're training them on 


              4            how to observe and give feedback.  As we look at the 


              5            feedback that they're giving, for those principals -- 


              6            if we see that Ms. Ruffins is not visiting -- by the 


              7            way, on the feedback form it tells the time you went 


              8            in the classroom and the time that you left the 


              9            classroom, so we know exactly how long the principals 


             10            are in the classrooms.  We can actually read what 


             11            they wrote; we can read the feedback that they're 


             12            giving the teachers.  So if Ms. Ruffins is not doing 


             13            her job, Dr. Whitehorn is looking at her work and 


             14            he's giving her feedback on it.  If we see there are 


             15            teachers that are not being observed and if we see 


             16            the feedback is not high-quality feedback that's 


             17            based on the lesson plan and the alignment between 


             18            the lesson plan and the instruction that's being 


             19            given then it's our job to make sure that -- to 


             20            support her in doing better.  It may be training.  So 


             21            we think the problem is what's going on in the 


             22            classroom during the normal time that's scheduled for 


             23            students to be there.  The teachers, not all of them 


             24            but especially in our schools on academic distress, 


             25            teachers aren't doing their job.  Quite frankly, 
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              1            principals aren't doing their job.  And quite 


              2            frankly, I'm not doing my job.  So we're going to all 


              3            start doing our job and we think we have a plan in 


              4            place to hold everyone accountable from the top down 


              5            to the bottom and we have data that we can get.  We 


              6            can configure the data that comes from those 


              7            observations any way we want.  We can look at it, say 


              8            -- let's say we have a teacher and we're looking at 


              9            the score that you all are now producing.  And if we 


             10            see that a teacher is not very effective on student 


             11            growth, well, that teacher ought to be observed more 


             12            often.  So we can select that teacher to see how many 


             13            times that teacher was observed electronically and 


             14            see the feedback that the principal has been giving 


             15            that teacher.  So we think that we're getting to the 


             16            heart of the matter and that's what's actually 


             17            happening in the classroom during the normal time 


             18            that we have scheduled.  We can schedule all kinds of 


             19            time but unless what's going on in the classroom is 


             20            effective -- which at Cloverdale and our other 


             21            schools on academic distress obviously it hasn't been 


             22            effective; we admit that.  It has not been good and 


             23            we're responding to that. 


             24                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  How in your opinion would 


             25            keeping this time hinder the process that you've just 




                                                  �


                                                                               40




              1            outlined? 


              2                 MR. GLASGOW:  I don't think the time that we're 


              3            talking about would have necessarily any effect on 


              4            this process, other than we have a regular eight-


              5            period day at our middle schools and a teacher's 


              6            contract is based on that eight-period day.  Now the 


              7            extra time that they work, teachers get a per diem 


              8            for that time.  So it is expensive to do that and we 


              9            think there's a better way to do it at less expense.  


             10            If we thought extending the school day for four 


             11            minutes per period -- eight periods times four is 32; 


             12            so if four minutes was going to yield dividends based 


             13            upon the cost of about $340,000 that we're paying for 


             14            that we'd gladly do it.  But we think our other plan 


             15            would be less expensive and would give better 


             16            results. 


             17                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  And that was one of my 


             18            questions.  So the way that this extra time has 


             19            worked in your district is by just an hourly 


             20            timesheet type basis, not a contractual agreement 


             21            between you and the employees? 


             22                 MR. GLASGOW:  Well, no.  There's a contract but 


             23            not part of the normal contract; it's supplemental. 


             24                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  So the savings that we're 


             25            talking about here would be immediately realized? 
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              1                 MR. GLASGOW:  That's correct. 


              2                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Thank you. 


              3                 MR. GLASGOW:  Of course, you know, we're cutting 


              4            corners on the budget as you well know. 


              5                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  I understand.  And this 


              6            might be a question for Ms. Perry: when is this -- 


              7            the charter for Cloverdale up for renewal? 


              8                 MS. PERRY:  This is one of the charters with a 


              9            contract ending in July.   


             10                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  June 30 of this year? 


             11                 MS. PERRY:  June 30 of this year, of 2015.  Yes, 


             12            sir. 


             13                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Okay.  Thank you.  Other 


             14            questions?  I think we're at Mr. Decker. 


             15                 MR. DECKER:  No questions at this time. 


             16                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Dr. Jones. 


             17                 DR. JONES:  I do have additional questions.  


             18            What are the total instructional minutes that 


             19            Cloverdale currently has, cutting out lunchtime, 


             20            passing time, just instructional minutes? 


             21                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Three-sixty. 


             22                 MS. RUFFINS:  Whatever the requirements are.   


             23                 DR. JONES:  I didn't hear that other part. 


             24                 DR. WHITEHORN:  I think it's 360.  It should be 


             25            anyway.  Let's see -- 
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              1                 MS. RUFFINS:  Ours is 360, whatever the 


              2            requirements are. 


              3                 DR. WHITEHORN:  It is 360.  It's 360, not 


              4            including the test prep. 


              5                 MS. RUFFINS:  Three-sixty. 


              6                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Because it's 45 minutes per 


              7            period and eight periods; 45 minutes per period. 


              8                 DR. JONES:  Okay.  And so the 30 minutes would 


              9            be additional time -- 


             10                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Yes. 


             11                 DR. JONES:  -- on top of that six hours? 


             12                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Yes, ma'am. 


             13                 DR. JONES:  If you cut that back to six hours 


             14            then will that be the equivalent of all the other 


             15            middle schools? 


             16                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Yes, ma'am. 


             17                 DR. JONES:  Okay.  So this original time was 


             18            written into the charter, which was an agreement when 


             19            we approved the charter.  How now will this charter 


             20            school be different from any of your other middle 


             21            schools? 


             22                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Well, I think it will be 


             23            different in that it's an academically distressed 


             24            school and that we are focusing -- you know -- we 


             25            have a school improvement specialist assigned to this 




                                                  �


                                                                               43




              1            school and intensive support from my central office 


              2            that works with the school.  It's definitely 


              3            different in they need extra help, and we realize 


              4            that, because of not only priority status but because 


              5            the school is academically distressed.  But the 


              6            schedule will be similar to the other middle schools 


              7            and everything.  The thing is is that, you know, by 


              8            having the school improvement specialist assigned and 


              9            us working with the school, you know, we just have to 


             10            provide more time and support at the school to 


             11            monitor, support, and make sure those things are done 


             12            to help those students that are in need or are below 


             13            proficient. 


             14                 DR. JONES:  Are instructional specialists not 


             15            assigned to the other middle schools in Little Rock? 


             16                 DR. WHITEHORN:  The school improvement 


             17            specialists are assigned to the priority academically 


             18            distressed schools.  They have -- now all the schools 


             19            have instructional facilitators, one in literacy and 


             20            one in math.  But, you know, we had Pearson as our 


             21            external provider here in years past and we no longer 


             22            have Pearson.  We've replaced that with school 


             23            improvement specialists for our, you know, priority 


             24            schools and academically distressed. 


             25                 DR. JONES:  I heard Ms. Ruffins say that there 
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              1            was a concern getting students to school on time that 


              2            first period.  Have you attempted to move that 30-


              3            minute test prep -- and I don't like that either -- 


              4            but that time to another part of the day, in the 


              5            middle of the day?  Has the time period been moved 


              6            itself? 


              7                 MS. RUFFINS:  Prior to me getting there it's my 


              8            understanding at one time it was at the end of the 


              9            day, so -- and then when I came it was the beginning 


             10            of the day.  And if I'm not -- 'cause it's been four 


             11            years, five years, and I think at some point it may 


             12            have been in the middle of the day but they moved it 


             13            around, trying to get the most from the period.  But 


             14            I think wherever it's been there's been an issue or 


             15            two with it. 


             16                 DR. JONES:  Okay.  Thank you. 


             17                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  I've got a question.  Dr. 


             18            Jones asked about being different or how it would be 


             19            different from other middle schools.  You do have 


             20            additional waivers, some of them being in reference 


             21            to teacher licensure and physical education and world 


             22            -- or, I'm sorry -- Arkansas history.  Currently are 


             23            those waivers being utilized, meaning that you are 


             24            not giving the full PE requirements or that you have 


             25            any teachers that are not licensed currently on 
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              1            staff? 


              2                 MS. RUFFINS:  We are following the PE 


              3            requirements for all of our students.  We do have 


              4            only one employee that's not fully licensed, but 


              5            other -- and we are -- we have a focus theme, 


              6            aerospace science and technology, and the one teacher 


              7            that is teaching in that area is not fully licensed.  


              8            But other than that, we meet all the state 


              9            requirements for licensure. 


             10                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Dr. Saunders. 


             11                 DR. SAUNDERS:  Other than financial, what would 


             12            be the benefit of doing this? 


             13                 DR. WHITEHORN:  Well, I think that one benefit 


             14            that would result in this is, you know, they already 


             15            have eight periods that they're moving around and 


             16            this is tacked on top of that and, you know, that's a 


             17            disadvantage of an eight-period day.  And I've been a 


             18            principal when we had block scheduling and when we've 


             19            had an eight-period day and, you know, the eight-


             20            period day results in kids being in the hallway and 


             21            transitioning twice as much.  So this would be yet 


             22            another transition for students; you know, it would 


             23            cut down on that.  And, you know, I -- and as I said, 


             24            you know, it all gets back to the idea, you know, 


             25            it's just not working.  I mean, if it was working, 
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              1            you know, you know, we would definitely keep it, but 


              2            we just don't have any evidence that it is at this 


              3            point. 


              4                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Ms. Coffman. 


              5                 MS. COFFMAN:  A point of clarification.  Your 


              6            question was, Mr. Hernandez, that the charter would 


              7            be reviewed at the end of this school year.  Is that 


              8            correct? 


              9                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Yes. 


             10                 MS. COFFMAN:  No more questions. 


             11                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Is it your -- and this may 


             12            not be a question that you can answer, but do you 


             13            intend to ask for renewal of this application at the 


             14            end of this school year? 


             15                 MR. GLASGOW:  We don't. 


             16                 DR. WHITEHORN:  No, sir.  We don't. 


             17                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Are there any other 


             18            questions?  All right.  You've heard the testimony 


             19            given here today, so I will -- let me ask Ms. Clay to 


             20            come back up and give us our options again just to 


             21            make sure we're clear. 


             22                 MS. CLAY:  You have the option of issuing a 


             23            final decision today or taking the matter under 


             24            advisement.  Part of taking the matter under 


             25            advisement is you can send the charter school back to 
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              1            get more technical assistance from Department staff 


              2            if you feel like that's something that you need.  


              3            Otherwise, your decision is to either approve the 


              4            amendment, deny the amendment, or take the matter 


              5            under advisement. 


              6                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  So I will entertain a 


              7            motion. 


              8                 DR. JONES:  I make the motion that this 


              9            amendment be denied. 


             10                 MS. COFFMAN:  Second that motion. 


             11                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  You've heard the motion to 


             12            deny and a second.  All in favor say "aye." 


             13                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES) 


             14                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Any opposed?  Motion to 


             15            deny carries. 


             16  A-2:  CONSIDERATION OF THE 2013-2014 REPORT ON THE STATUS OF 


             17  THE PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS PROGRAM TO THE HOUSE INTERIM 


             18  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND THE SENATE INTERIM COMMITTEE ON 


             19  EDUCATION 


             20                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  All right.  We'll go back 


             21            to our agenda here.  It looks like we have Ms. Perry. 


             22                 MS. PERRY:  The last item on the agenda today is 


             23            the Consideration of the 13-14 Report on the Status 


             24            of Public Charter Schools Program to the House 


             25            Interim Committee on Education and the Senate Interim 
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              1            Committee on Education.  This is a report that we 


              2            bring to you where the legislation is very brief on 


              3            what the report is to include; it says simply that 


              4            the authorizer is to "report on the status of the 


              5            open-enrollment public charter school programs to the 


              6            General Assembly each biennium and to the House 


              7            Committee on Education and the Senate Committee on 


              8            Education during the interim between the regular 


              9            sessions of the Assembly."  The piece that was in 


             10            quotation marks on the description of the agenda item 


             11            is basically all that is said in that section about 


             12            what should be reported.  You will find that the 


             13            report includes district conversion charter operation 


             14            information as well.  It does seem important that 


             15            that information is included to get a true picture of 


             16            charters in Arkansas.  Although reports in the past 


             17            were many, many pages longer than this we feel like 


             18            this is in keeping with the statutory requirement.  


             19            Should you approve this today it will eventually get 


             20            to the director of Legislative Services for release 


             21            to the legislature. 


             22                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Panel, you've had a chance 


             23            to review this.  I will entertain a motion to approve 


             24            or deny this report. 


             25                 MR. DECKER:  I move to approve. 
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              1                 MS. PFEFFER:  Second. 


              2                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  I've got a motion to 


              3            approve by Mr. Decker, second by Ms. Pfeffer.  All in 


              4            favor say "aye." 


              5                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES) 


              6                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Any opposed?  Motion 


              7            carries. 


              8  FUTURE CAP MEETING DATES AND ADJOURNMENT 


              9                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  Ms. Perry, I don't see 


             10            anything else on our agenda for today.  And so our 


             11            next meeting will be, right now, October 13th and 


             12            14th.  Is that correct? 


             13                 MS. PERRY:  15th and 16th. 


             14                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  15th and 16th.  Okay.  I'm 


             15            off on dates here.  All right.  I will entertain a 


             16            motion to adjourn. 


             17                 MS. COFFMAN:  So moved. 


             18                 DR. SAUNDERS:  Second. 


             19                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  All in favor say "aye." 


             20                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES) 


             21                 CHAIRMAN HERNANDEZ:  We are adjourned.   


             22                                   


             23              (The meeting was adjourned at 9:35 a.m.) 


             24   
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